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INDEPENDENT COMPANY AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
Bhagwati Limestone Company Private Limited.

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bhagwati Limestone
Company Private Limited(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as " Ind AS financial
statements")

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Account-
ing Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit (in-
cluding other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flow for the year ended
on that date. .

2. Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled other ethical responsibil-
ities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signifi-
cance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters

were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

/
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4. Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

6. Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always

b
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detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial

statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are requircd to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e LEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transaciions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. -

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may rcasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance n the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the kc- audit matters. We describe these matters in our

<
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auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure — A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

ii

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, the Company has kept proper books of account as required by
Law so far as appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure - B”.

With respect to the other matters, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

i The Company doesn’t have any delay in transferring amounts, required to
be transferred to the investor Education and Protection Fund.

iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

/
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b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knewledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. Based on our examination and representation received from the Company, which
included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for the relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further during the year course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

vi. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors® Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

FOR G.P. KAPADIA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Registration No - 104768W

Atul B Desai

(Partner)

Membership No - 030850
Place: Mumbai

Date: 26'" April, 2024

UDIN: 24030850BKAVSN2837
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ANNEXURE-A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BHAGWATI LIMESTONE COMPANY PRIVATE
LIMITED.

1 a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including  quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B. Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company, it
doesn’t have any intangible assets during the year.

b)  Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company,
property, plant and equipment of the Company located at the Company has been
physically verified and the discrepancies noticed on such verifications is not
material and the same has been adjusted in the books of account. In our opinion
the frequency of verification of property, plant & equipment of the Company is
adequate.

¢)  The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in its favor)
disclosed in the financial statements are held in its name.

d)  The Company/ Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment
(including right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and
accordingly provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

€) According to the information and explanation given to us by the Company, there
are no proceedings initiated or are pending against it for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder and accordingly provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order
are not applicable.

2 a) As per information provided and explained to us by company, physical
verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate; no discrepancies were found in each class of inventory and
inventory is properly dealt in the books of account.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, during any point of time of the year from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the
provisions of the clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

3. a) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, ‘secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties
other than loans given in the normal course of business of the Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(iii) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company it has
not made any investments, provided guarantee and security given to the parties
referred in section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3 (iii) (b) of the Order is
not applicable.

/
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c) Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company, the
repayment of principal and interest for the loan to key managerial persons are
regular based on the schedule stipulated. — No such loans availed by such person
in the Company.

d) Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company, there
are no overdues on the loans granted to key managerial persons during the year. —
No such loans availed by such person in the Company.

e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, made any investments, given guarantees and securities as referred in the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated March 31, 2024, the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant ‘provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended, with regard to the
deposits accepted are not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of
the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the said Order are not applicable.

a) According to the records of the Company, it is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Goods and
Service Tax and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities as of
March 31, 2024. There are no undisputed dues outstanding for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the records of the Company and according to the information and
explanation given to us, there are no dues outstanding on account of any disputes
in respect of income tax, service tax, customs duty or excise duty or goods and
service tax except as detailed below:

Name of | Nature of the | Amount Amount Assessment Forum where

the dues (Rs. In | paid/adjuste year to dispute is
Statue Lakhs) d out of which the pending
refunds (Rs amount |
| in lakhs) relates l
NIL | |

According to the information and explanation provided and as represented to us by the
management, there are no transactions not recorded in the books of account which have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under




10

i1

12

13

16

G. P. KAPADIA & CO.

the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of
the said Order is not applicable at the Company level.

The Company has not taken any loans from the loans or other borrowings.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the said Order is not applicable at the
Company level.

The provisions of clause 3 (x) of the said Order is not applicable at the Company level.

a)

b)

c)

According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as
represented to us, the following frauds on it have been noticed or reported during

the year:

Nature of fraud Amount involved Remarks

(to the extent
quantified by the
Company) (Rs in

lakhs)

NIL

N 1 ———— = —_=

We have not filed any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act in
Form- ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, since frauds as referred to in para 11(a)
above were identified/detected through the Company’s vigil/whistle blower
mechanism or by management and is being dealt with by them.

We have considered whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the
company and the report received in respect of investigation conducted by it.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and as
represented to us by management, all transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act and the details have been’ disclosed in
the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a)

b)

According to the information and explanation given to us and as represented to us
by the management, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business. However, there are open comments of the
internal auditors which need to'be acted upon or remediated by management, as at
year end

The reports of the Internal Auditors for the year under audit were considered by us.

As represented to us by the management and dcco'r'ding to the information and
explanation given to.us, the (,Ompany has not °ntcred into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him, Aucordmgly, the provisions of clause
3(xv) of the Order are not applicable.

The provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the said order is not applicable at the Company level.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately

,ﬁ-
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preceding financial year.

The provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the said order is not applicable at the Company
level.

According to the information and explanation furnished and as represented to us by the
Company and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company will be capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanation furnished and as represented to us by the
Company in respect of other than ongoing projects, it has no unspent amount to be
transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act in compliance with second
proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a)
and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company doesn’t have any subsidiaries and consolidated financial statements is
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the said
Order are not applicable.

FOR G.P. KAPADIA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Registration No - 104768W

Atul B Desai

(Partner)

Mermmbership No - 30850

Place: Mumbai

Date: 26™ April, 2024

UDIN: 24030850BKAVSN2837
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ANNEXURE-B REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 (e) UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF
OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BHAGWATI LIMESTONE COMPANY
PRIVATE LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”):

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhagwati
Limestone Company Private Limited(“the Company/ the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

The Company’s management is responsible for -establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the: Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including ddherente
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility:

Our l’CSpOllSlblllly is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We ‘conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Con itrols Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on “Auditing, is ssued by ICAl and deemcd to be
plescnbed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an dudit of Internal Finarcial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeauacy of the
internal financial controls system over imanmal reperting and their operating effectiveness.
Our ‘audit of internal financial controls over financial v‘eportmov included obtammg an
understandmg of internal financial controls over {manmal reporting, assessmg, the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluatmg the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment ‘of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inhereat Limitations of Internal Financia! Controls Over Financial Reporting:

Becatise of the inherenit limitations of internal financial controls*over financial reporting,
incloding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods arc
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over ﬁndnmal reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comnl:ance ‘with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. -

Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company, has an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such intérnals financial controls” over {inancial reporiing were
overating cffectively in all material respects as at March 31, 2024, based on “‘the internal
¢ontiol over financial reporting critéria establi shed by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in"the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial
Controls Over Imanmal Reporting 1ssued by the [nstitute ‘of Chartéred Accountants of
India”.

FOR .G.P. KAPADIA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Registration No - 104768 W.

H\Z B e
v|=or=

Atul B Desai

(Partner). -

Membership No - 030850
Place: Mumbai

Date: 26" April,2024

UDIN: 24030850BKAVSN2837



Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited

Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2024

in 2 Lakhs

Particulars

Note No.

Asat
Mar 31, 2024

As at
Mar 31, 2023

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and

187.51

Capital Work-in-Progress

Goodwil

ible Assets

ible Assets under Devel

Financial Assets:

Investments

(i) Investments Accounted using Equity Method

Loans

Other Financial Assets

" Income Tax Assets (Net)

Other Non-Current Assets

4.38

4.38

438

Total Non-Current Assets

191.89

191.95

Current Assets

Inventories

3.00

Financial Assets

Investments

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

Loans

Other Financial Assets

Other Current Assets

Assets held for Disposal

Total Current Assets

295.21

TOTAL ASSETS

487.10

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

1.19

1.19

Equity Share Capital
Preference Share Capital

__ Other Equity

138.55

89.19

139.74

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Trade Payables

Total O ding Dues of Micra Enterprises and Small Enterprises

Total O ding Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises B

256.11

110.33

Other Financial Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities
Provisions

10

141.80

397.91

37.03

Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Current Liabllities

397.91

147.36

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

487.10

287.10

Material Accounting Policies —
The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Fi lal St

In terms of our report attached.

For G.P. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

ATUL B. DESAI
Partner
Membership No: 30850

Mumbai, 26 April, 2024

Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited

For and on behalf of the Board

Loz

DIN-06416619



Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited

Statement Of Profit and Loss For the Year Ended March 31, 2024

in ¥ Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rev from Operations 11 _— B 1,050.05 -
Other Income 12 0.002 0.02
TOTAL INCOME (1) 1,050.06 0.02
_EXPENSES
Purchases of stock in trade 13 - -
Change in Inventories of finished goods,work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 14 18,59 {18.44)
Freight Expenses 15 = -
Other Expenses 16 1,081.96 40.70
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 17 0.04 0.09
TOTAL EXPENSES (II) 1.106.60 22.35
Prafit for the Period (IIT) (50.54) (22.33)
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Ttems that wlll not be reclassified to profit & Loss . = -
{ii) Income Tax Relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit & Loss - -
B (i) Ttems that will be reclassified to profit & Loss 5 -
(i) Income Tax Relating to Items that will be reclassified to profit & Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the Period {IV) - -
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Period E.ﬂi (22.33)
Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value ¥ 10 each)
Basic_(in ¥) = (424.73) (187.64)
Diluted {in ¥} (424.73) (187.64)
1

‘Material Accounting Policies

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

For G.P. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

ATUL B. DESAI
Partner
Membership No: 30850

Mumbai, 26 April, 2024

Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited

For on behalf of the Board

» HDads

Atul Daga
Directors
DIN-06416619

Mﬂm

Directors
DIN-03416254



Bhagwati Limestone Company Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended March 31, 2024

in ¥ Lakhs
) As at As at
Particulse Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(A) Cash Flow from Operating Activities: - _
Profit/(Loss) Beforetax (50.54) (22.33)
B Adjustments for: B
~ Depreciation_ B B 0.04 0.09
Sundry Advances written off - -
- Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes (50.50) (22.29)
Movements in working capital:
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables and other Liabilities 250.56 51.76
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade receivables & Other Current Assets (201.21) (29.56)
___ Cash Used in Operations (1.15) (0.04)
Direct Taxes Paid (net off Refund) -
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (A) (1.15) (0.04)
__(B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities: -
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Security Deposit (FD) for mines -
Net Cash generated from / (used in) Investing Activities (B) - -
(C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities: - -
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital L B SR o -
Interest Paid - -
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities (C) - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B+C) (1.15) (0.0_4)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 20.05 20.08
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 18.89 20.05

Notes:

1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS - 7 specified under Section 133 of the Act.

2. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.

Material Accounting Policies
The Accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
In terms of our report attached.

For G.P. KAPADIA & CO. For'and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants \
Firm Registration No: 104768W . %

! Bnga/.nNaI Atul Daga
Atul B. Desai Directors Directors
(Partner) DIN-03416254 DIN-06416619

Membership No: 30850
Place: Mumbai
DATE: 26 April, 2024



Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited
Statement Of Changes in Equity For The Year ended March 31, 2024

A . Equity Share Capital

For the Year Ended March 31, 2023 in ¥ Lakhs
Balance as at April 01, 2022 Changes in equity share ital during Bal as at March 31, 2023
the Period
1.19 = 1.19

For the Year Ended Mar 31, 2024

Balance as at Apr 01,2023 Changes in equity share capital during Balance as at Mar 31, 2024
the Period
1.19 - 1.19
B. Other Equity
For the Year Ended Mar 31, 2024 in ¥ Lakhs
Reserves & Surplus Effective Total Equity
- — — - - - portion of Cash
Particulars Capital Reserve | Securities Premium . Share opt_uon Retained Eamings | ' pqw Hedges
Redemption Reserve outstanding
Reserve reserve#

Balance as at Apr 01,2023 207.86 - - - (68.31) 138.55
Profit for the Period (1) - B - = (50.54) (50.54)
Remeasurement gain / loss on defined benefit
plan (2)
Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) for the
Period (3)
Total Comprehensive Income / (loss) for = i 1
the Period(1+2+3) 207.86 (119.86) 88.00
Balance as at Mar 31, 2024 207.86 - - - (119.86) - 88.00

Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited
Statement Of Changes in Equity For The Year Ended Mar 31, 2024

For the Year Ended Mar 31, 2024

Reserves & Surplus Effective Total Equity
- - — = - - - - portion of Cash
Particulars Capital Reserve | Securities P [ Share option Retained Earnings Flaw Hedges
Redemption Reserve outstanding
Reserve reserve#

Balance as at April 01, 2022 207.86 - - - (46.98) 160.88
Profit for the Period (1) . - - - (22.33) (22.33)
Remeasurement gain / loss on defined benefit
plan (2)
Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) for the
Period (3)
Total Comprehensive Income / (loss) for _ . .
the Period(1+2+3) 207.86 (69.31) 138.55
Balance as at March 31, 2023 207.86 - - - (69.31) 138.55
Materail Accounting Policles Note 1
The accompanying Notes form an gral part of the Fi jal Statements.
In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board

For G.P. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

AR RN

ATUL B. DESAIL

Partner

Membership No: 30850 Atul Daga

Mumbai, 26 April, 2024 Directors
DIN-03416254 DIN-06416619

Bhagwati Limestone Company Pvt Ltd



Bhagwati Lime Stone Co. Pvt. Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Material Accounting Policies
i. Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”), and amendments thereto other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held
on Apr 20, 2024.

iii. Basis of Preparation & Presentation:
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The statement of financial position presents Assets and Liabilities as current and non-current. For this purpose, an
asset is classified as current if:

It is expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or It is expected to realize the asset within 12 months after the
repoiting period; or

The asset is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments
at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
iii. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires estimates and assumptions to be
made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements, the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities
as of the date of the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on the management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes different from the estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known or materialize.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

iv. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use,
including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are
incurred.

A



Bhagwati Lime Stone Co. Pvt. Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
{major components) of PPE.

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when they
meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

V. Depreciation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of property, plant & equipment over its useful
life and is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013

Depreciable amount for property, plant & equipment is the cost of property, plant & equipment less its estimated
residual value. The useful life of property, plant & equipment is the period over which property, plant & equipment
is expected to be available for use by an entity, or the number of production or similar units expected to be
obtained from the asset by the entity.

vi. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such
an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the fiability. Unwinding of the discount is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not
disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized or disclosed in financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income is virtually certain, then the related
asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

vii. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer
for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

= Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account the
amount of discounts, volume rebates, outgoing taxes on sales. Any amount receivable from the
customer and are recognized after the control of the goods sold are transferred.

= Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the income is established.

= Difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment is recognized as profit or loss on
sale / redemption on investment on trade date of transaction.

o



Bhagwati Lime Stone Co. Pvt. Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

viii. Income Taxes:
Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting period in accordance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted by the reporting date. Tax relating to items
recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT):

MAT is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI,
the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and is shown as MAT Credit
Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each reporting date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT
Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal
Income Tax during the specified period.

ix.  Earnings Per Share:

The basic Earnings Per Share ("EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable
to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year attributable to the
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

X. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand, short-term

deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

A
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Notes to Financial Statements

in ¥ Lakhs
As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
NOTE 3
OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS:
Security Deposits 438 438
4.38 4.38
NOTE 4
INVENTORIES: (Valued at lower of Cost and net value, unless otherwise stated) T~ o
Finished Goods 3.00 2159
3.00 21.59
NOTE 5 o -
TRADE RECEIVABLES =
Ultratech Cement Limited — .—_
Secured, Cc d good 9.99 9.99
9.99 9.99
Jigte 5.1; Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule Qutstanding from e date of Payment
T ] at M h 31, 2024 Receivable but not due  Less than 6 Months 6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered qood - 9.99
(it} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in = =
) Py_l Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -
—_(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good
(V) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have sianificant increase in =
vi} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired
R = - = - 5.9 :
Total as at Ma 31.2023 _' _
i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered qgood Il 9.99
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired =
__(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - — =
(v] Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in -
Disputed Trade Receivables — cred gd
otal = R = [XT] - =
There are no unbilled trade receivables. hence the same 15 not discosed in the ageina schedules.
NOTE 6
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS o -
Balance with banks {Current Account) 18.89 20.05
18,89 20.05
NOTE 7 - B
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Dead Rent 4.05
Advance Royalty - o 62.75 12.52
Other Receivables- TCS & TDS 12.44 0.2
Other Recei GST 183.74 30.44
Accrued Interest on Mines FD 0.36 0.36
263.33 43.53
NOTE 8 = = No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
'EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 50,000.00 500 50,000.00 5.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
Equity Shares of % 10 each fully paid-up 11,900.00 1.19 11,900.00 119
NOTE 9 o ) ) -
TRADE PAYABLES o - - - -
Particulars As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31,2023
Trade Payables (other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises) 4.63 443
Due to Refated Party -Ultratech Cement Limited 251.47 105.90
256.11 110.33

Note - There i no principal amount and interest overdue to Micro, Small and Medium _Enterprises. During the Period no Interest has been paid to such parties. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identifk

on the basis of information available with the Company and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.
NOTE 9.1 :- Trade Payables Ageing

Particulars Unbilled

Qutstanding but not due

Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

Total

As on March 31, 2024 s Less than 1 year 1-2 years

2-3 years More than 3 years

(i) MSME

116.38 50.77

{ii) Others -

88.96

iii} Disputed- MSME

{iv) Disputed Dues- Others

116.38 50.77

Total as on March 31, 2024 - -

88.96 -

As on March 31, 2023

(il MSME

21.37 3.80

| (if) Others -

85.16

(iii} Disputed- MSME

liv) Disputed Dues- Others

21.37 3.80

Total as on March 31, 2023 -

85.16 -

Particulars

Asat
Mar 31, 2024

Asat
Mar 31, 2023

NOTE 10
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liability for Capitzl Goods

Security and other deposits

Advance from customers and others

Due to Related Party -Ultratech Cement Limited
Others (incl Provision for Exp & Statutory liabilities)

30.25
6.78

37.03

Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited



Particulars As at Period ended

Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
NOTE 11 -
'REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS - =
SALE OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES ( Gross)
Sale of Limestone 1,050.05 -
1,050.05 -
NOTE12 I
OTHER INCOME B i
Reversal of Provision related to earlier Periods -
Others 0.002 0.02
0.002 0.02
NOTE 13 -
COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening Stock - -
NOTE 14
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS o
Closing Inventories B
Finished Goods (Li ) - - 3,00 21.59
Opening Inventories B )
Finished Goods (21.59) (3.15)
(18.59) 18.44
NOTE 15 - -
FREIGHT AND FORWARDING EXPENSE
On Finished Products - -
NOTE 16 B
OTHER EXPENSES =
" Limestone Extraction/Mining charges B 536.00 - 1249
Overburden Removal Charges — 28.48 2614
Tree Plantaion Charges - -
Rent (including Lease Rent) B 0.22 022
Rates and Taxes o o 514.59 0.61
Csr Expenses 1.37 119
Sundry Balances Written off - - =
Professional Fees 0.15 -
Miscellaneous Expenses B 121 0.05
1,081.96 40.70
NOTE 17
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE -
" Depreciation 0.04 0.09
0.04 0.09

Bhagwati Lime Stone Company Private Limited



BhaEwati Limestone Comiani Private Limited

Note 18 - Disclosure of Related Parties / Related Party as required by Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”:

(A) List of Related Parties: (in ¥ Lac)
Name of Related Party Country of Incorporation % Shareholding and Voting
power
(I) Holding Company: As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2023
UltraTech Cement Limited 100%
(B)The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:(in¥ Lac)
Period Ended | Period Ended
Nature of Transaction/Relationship Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2023
Receiving of Services:
Holding Company:
UltraTech Cement Limited (Including Tax) 666.08 45.83
Total 666.08 45.83
Providing Sales/Services:
UltraTech Cenient Limited (Including Tax) 1102.56 -
Total 1102.56 45.83
(C) Outstanding Balances: (in ¥ Lac)
As at As at
Nature of Transaction/Relationship Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2023
Trade payables:
Holding Company:
UltraTech Cement Limited 251.47 105.90
Other Current Liabilities:
Holding Company:
UltraTech Cement Limited 108.73 30.25
Total B 360.20 136.15

Terms and Conditions of transactions with Related Parties:

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the Period-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no

guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

Note 19 - Earning per Share (EPS):

(in ¥ Lac)

Particulars

Period Ended
Mar 31, 2024

Period Ended
Mar 31, 2023

(A) Basic EPS:

(i) Net Profit/(loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (50.54) (22.33)
(ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (Nos.) 11,900 11,900
Basic EPS (Rs.) (i)/(ii) (424.73) (187.64)

!
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Bhagwati Limestone Company Private Limited

NOTES

Note 20 — Auditors’ remuneration (excluding service tax) and expenses (in ¥ Lac)
. Period Ended | Period Ended
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2023
(A) Statutory Auditors:
Audit fees 0.15 0.15
Total 0.15 0.15
Note 21
::_ Ratio ';ue:';'i':gn' Dg:z::_;:;?; ) FY24 FY23 9% Variance Reason for vari
1 Current Ratio Current Assets | Current Liabilities 0.74 0.65 13.85%
(in times) excluding Current
Borrowings
2 Debt-Equity Total Debt Equity - - -
Ratio (in times) o . 4
3 Debt Service Profit for the Gross Interest + Lease - -
Coverage Ratio | year+ Finance | Payment + Repayment of
(in times) Costs + Long Term Debt excluding
Depreciation pre-payments
and
Amortization
Expense +
Loss/(Gain)
on sale of
fixedassets | | _ o
4 Return on Profit for the Average Net worth -44.20% -14.80% 199%
Equity Ratio (in | year
%) o =
5 Inventory Sale of Average Inventory 85.42 NA 100%
Tumover Ratio Products and
(in times) Services o J .
6 Trade Sale of Average Trade Receivable 105.16 NA 100%
Receivables Products and
turnover Ratio Services
(101 P ——————— -} = o
7 Trade Payables | Cost of Sales Average Trade Payable 5.73 NA 100%
tumover Ratio
(in times) B - | =
8 Net Capital Sale of Working Capital -10.22 NA 100%
turnover ratio Products and
(in times) Services | - _
9 Net profit ratio Profit for the Sale of Products and 4.81% NA 100%
(in%) year Services i -
10 Return on Profit for the Net worth + Current and -0.57% -0.16% 256%
Capital year + Tax Non-current borrowings +
employed (in +Finance Deferred Tax Liability
times) Costs el
11 Return on Treasury Weighted treasury = - -
Investment (in Income investment
%)

[
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Bhagwati Limestone Company Private Limited

NOTES

Note 22

In light of the COVID-19 outbreak being declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization, the Company has been taking
various precautionary measures to protect employees and workmen, their families, and the eco system in which they interact, while
at the same time ensuring business continuity. The company expects to recover the carrying amount of all its assets including
inventory, receivables and loans in the ordinary course of business based on information available on current economic conditions.
The company will continue to monitor any material changes on future economic conditions.

Signatures to Note ‘1’ to *22’ For and on behalf of the Board

In terms of our reports attached.
For G.P. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 104768W

T

/\ J/%’L Bigers

Il.
A\

HAege

ATUL B. DESAI garwal Atul Daga
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 30850 DIN-03416254 DIN-06416619

Mumbai, Apr 26, 2024



G.P. KAPADIA & CO Hamam House
Chartered Accountants Ambalal Doshi Marg,
Mumbai - 400 001

Tel. T 22654239, 2265 4313
E-mail- : gpkco@yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT COMPANY AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
Gotan Limestone Khanji Udyog Private Limited.

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Gotan Limestone Khanji
Udyog Private Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as " Ind AS financial
statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Account-
ing Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit (in-
cluding other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flow for the year ended
on that date. .

2. Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled other ethical responsibil-
ities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signifi-
cance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.




G. P. KAPADIA & CO.

4. Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

6. Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always

b
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detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial

statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

‘We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our

b
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auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure — A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, the Company has kept proper books of account as required by
Law so far as appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure - B”.

With respect to the other matters, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. The Company doesn’t have any delay in transferring amounts, required to
be transferred to the investor Education and Protection Fund.

iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Cb/
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b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. Based on our examination and representation received from the Company, which
included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for the relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further during the year course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

Vi. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

FOR G.P. KAPADIA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Registration No - 104768W

IP[B {)f Caan—
Atul B Desai

(Partner)

Membership No - 030850
Place: Mumbai

Date: 26" April,2024
UDIN: 24030850BKAVSM2851
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ANNEXURE-A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GOTAN LIMESTONE KHANJI UDYOG
PRIVATE LIMITED.

1 a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including  quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B. Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company, it
doesn’t have any intangible assets during the year.

b)  Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company,
property, plant and equipment of the Company located at the Company has been
physically verified and the discrepancies noticed on such verifications is not
material and the same has been adjusted in the books of account. In our opinion
the frequency of verification of property, plant & equipment of the Company is
adequate.

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in its favor)
disclosed in the financial statements are held in its name.

d)  The Company/ Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment
(including right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and
accordingly provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

e) According to the information and explanation given to us by the Company, there
are no proceedings initiated or are pending against it for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder and accordingly provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order
are not applicable.

2 a) As per information provided and explained to us by company, physical
verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate; no discrepancies were found in each class of inventory and
inventory is properly dealt in the books of account.

b)  The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, during any point of time of the year from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the
provisions of the clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

3. a) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties
other than loans given in the normal course of business of the Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(iii) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

b)  Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company it has
not made any investments, provided guarantee and security given to the parties
referred in section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3 (iii) (b) of the Order is
not applicable.

;
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c) Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company, the
repayment of principal and interest for the loan to key managerial persons are
regular based on the schedule stipulated. — No such loans availed by such person
in the Company.

d) Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company, there
are no overdues on the loans granted to key managerial persons during the year. —
No such loans availed by such person in the Company.

e)  No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, made any investments, given guarantees and securities as referred in the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated March 31, 2024, the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended, with regard to the
deposits accepted are not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of
the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the said Order are not applicable.

a) According to the records of the Company, it is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Goods and
Service Tax and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities as of
March 31, 2024. There are no undisputed dues outstanding for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

b)  According to the records of the Company and according to the information and
explanation given to us, there are no dues outstanding on account of any disputes
in respect of income tax, service tax, customs duty or excise duty or goods and
service tax except as detailed below:

Name of | Nature of the | Amount Amount Assessment | Forum where
the dues (Rs. In | paid/adjuste year to dispute is
Statue Lakhs) d out of which the pending
refunds (Rs amount
in lakhs) relates

NIL .

According to the information and explanation provided and as represented to us by the
management, there are no transactions not recorded in the books of account which have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under

L
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the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of
the said Order is not applicable at the Company level.

The Company has not taken any loans from the loans or other borrowings.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the said Order is not applicable at the
Company level.

The provisions of clause 3 (x) of the said Order is not applicable at the Company level.

a) According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as
represented to us, the following frauds on it have been noticed or reported during
the year:

Nature of fraud Amount involved Remarks
(to the extent
quantified by the
Company) (Rs in
lakhs)

12

13

14

15

16

17

NIL

b) We have not filed any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, since frauds as referred to in para 11(a)
above were identified/detected through the Company’s vigil/whistle blower
mechanism or by management and is being dealt with by them.

¢) We have considered whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the
company and the report received in respect of investigation conducted by it.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and as
represented to us by management, all transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act and the details have been disclosed in
the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and as represented to us
by the management, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business. However, there are open comments of the
internal auditors which need to be acted upon or remediated by management, as at

year end

b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the year under audit were considered by us.

As represented to us by the management and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xv) of the Order are not applicable.

The provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the said order is not applicable at the Company level.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
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preceding financial year.

The provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the said order is not applicable at the Company
level.

According to the information and explanation furnished and as represented to us by the
Company and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company will be capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanation furnished and as represented to us by the
Company in respect of other than ongoing projects, it has no unspent amount to be
transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act in compliance with second
proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a)
and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company doesn’t have any subsidiaries and consolidated financial statements is
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the said
Order are not applicable.

FOR G.P. KAPADIA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Registration No - 104768W

Atul B Desai

(Partner)

Membership No - 30850

Place: Mumbai

Date: 26" April, 2024

UDIN: 24030850BKAVSM2851
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ANNEXURE-B REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 (¢) UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF
OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GOTAN LIMESTONE KHANJI UDYOG
PRIVATE LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”):

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gotan Limestone
Khanji Udyog Private Limited(“the Company/ the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects. '

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.



G. P. KAPADIA & CO.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company, has an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively in all material respects as at March 31, 2024, based on “the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India”.

FOR G.P. KAPADIA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Registration No - 104768W

[IKZ =y
Atul B Desai
(Partner)
Membership No - 030850
Place: Mumbai
Date: 26™ April,2024
UDIN: 24030850BKAVSM2851



Gotan Limestone Khanij Udyog Private Limited

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

% in Lakhs
Particulars Note No. As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment B 2 1,567.93 1,595.71
a Other Intangible assets o B 2 8.23 15.28
Financial Assets -
Others 3 0.15 0.15 41.89
Other non-current assets 4 68.70 58.98
- - 1,645.00 1,711.85
Current assets o B o
Inventories 5 56.89 56.89
Financial Assets
o Cash and cash equivalents B 6 4.87 - 2.26
Loans 3 N
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivale 7 153.25 122.33
Others 3 30.06 188.18 2047
© Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 6.98 6.85
Other current assets 9 50.44 o 50.44
302.49 259.24
Total Assets 1,947.49 1,971.09
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - o
Equity
Equity SWa_pital 10 232.73 232.73
Other Equity o B 1,556.76 1,590.53
1,789.49 1,823.26
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities ] =
Financial Liabilities o
Provisions 11 1.30 1.30
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 12 27.94 27.94
- 29.24 29.24
Current liabilities i
Financial Liabilities T
Trade payables 13 1.20 0.81
Other current liabilities 14 | 127.56 - llﬁ
- 128.76 118.59
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,947.49 1,971.09
Material Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

4

For G.P. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 104768W g

ATUL B. DESAL M.B. ATUL DAGA
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 30850 DIN - 03416254 DIN - 06416619

Mumbai, April 26, 2024

Gotan Limestone Khanif Udyog Private Limited



Gotan Limestone Khanij Udyog Private Limited
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

2 in Lakhs
. Year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2024 MarcY: grle;g;g
Revenue from Operations 15 - -
 Other Income 16 11.33 9.20
Total Income (I) 11.33 9.20
Expenses - B
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in- 17 = o :
Progress and Stock-in-Trade
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 15 34.84 o 52.79
Power and Fuel B o - -
 Other Expenses 19 10.27 20.34
.Total Expenses (II) 45.11 73.14
Profit before Tax Expneses (I)-(II) (33.77) (63.93)
 Total - Ny .
Profit for the Year (III) (33.77) (63.93)
Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value " 10 each)
Basic {In ) (1.44) (2.73)
Diluted (In ) - (1.44) (273)
Material Acoounting_Po_licies 1

The accompanying Notes referred to above form an integral part of th:Fi_nancial Statements.

In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For G.P. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

(} ;i 5@@24”‘*‘ _ﬁ%
ATUL B. DESAI Wal ATUL DAGA

Partner Director Director
Membership No: 30850 DIN - 03416254 DIN - 06416619

Mumbai, April 26, 2024

Gotan Limestone Khanij Udyog Private Limited



Gotan Limestone Khanij Udyog Private Limited
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

¥ in Lakhs
. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(A) Cash Flow from Operating Activities: )

~_ Profit Before tax (33.77) (63.93)
Adjustments for: = -

- Depreciation and Amortisation B 34.84 52.79
Interest and Dividend Income (11.33) {9.20)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (10.27) (20.34)
Movements in working capital:

~ Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables and other Liabilities 10.17 20.30
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories - - -
Decrease/(Increase) in Financial and Other Current Assets (19.45) (24.76)
Cash Generated from Operations (19.55) (24.80)
Direct Taxes paid - -
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) (19.55) (24.80)

(B) Cash Flow from Investing Activities: -
(Investment) / Redemption in Bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) 10.82 14.93
Interest / Dividend Received (Incl. Short excess Provision W/B) 11.33 9.20
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) 22.15 24.13

(C) Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Net Cash used in Financing Activities (C) - -

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) 2.60 (0.67)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year 2.26 2.93

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 4.86 2.26

Cash and Bank balance as per Note 4.87 2.26

Notes:

1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in IndAS - 7 specified under Section 133

of the Companies Act, 2013.

Material Accounting Policies Note 1

The accompanying Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For G.P. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

\

P

, Aoz,

ATUL B. DESAI /Meaﬁrwal ATUL DAGA
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 30850 DIN - 03416254 DIN - 06416619

Mumbai, April 26, 2024
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Gotan Limestone Khanij Udyog Private Limited

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

A . Equity Share Capital

For the Year ended Mar 31,2024

?in Lakhs

Balance as at April 01,2023 Changes in equity share capital| Balance as at March 31,2024
during the year
232.73 - 232,73
For the Year ended March 31,2023
Balance as at April 01, 2022 Changes in equity share capital| Balance as at March 31,2023
during the year
232,73 - 232.73
B. Other Equity
For the Year ended Mar 31,2024 Zin Lakhs
Reserves & Surplus Effective
Capital Securities Debenture General Share option Retained e
N pi Cash Flow i
Particuiars Reserve Premium Redemption Reserve autstanding Earnings Hedges Total Equity
Reserve reserve#
Balance as at April 01,2023 - 2,749.15 = = - (1,158.62) . 1,590.53
Profit for the year (1) - - . d - (33.77) (33.77)
Remeasurement gain / loss on defined - s - 3 - = - Y
benefit plan (2)
Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) ~ ~ I N . N
for the year (3)
Total Comprehensive Income / " ; _ - - .
(loss) for the year(1+2) (33.77) (33.77)
Balance as at March 31,2024 - 2,749.15 s = = (1,192.39) - 1,556.76
For the Year ended March 31,2023
Reserves & Surplus Effrzcﬁvef
on of
Particulars Capital Securities Debenture General Share option Retained 225., Flow Total Equi
Reserve Premium Redemption Reserve outstanding Eamings Hedges quity
Reserve Reserve reserve#
Balance as at April 01, 2022 - 2,749.15 - - - (1,094.68) - 1,654.47
Profit for the year (1) - - - - - (63.93) (63.93)
Remeasurement gain / loss on defined R R _ _ B .
benefit plan (2)
Total Comprehensive Income / . _ _ _ _ .
(loss) for the year(1+2) (63.93) (63.93)
Balance as at March 31,2023 - 2,749.15 - - - (1,15?.62) - 1,590.53

Material Accounting Policies Note 1

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached.

For G.P. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

ATUL B. DESAI
Partner
Membership No: 30850

Mumbai, April 26, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director

DIN - 03416254

Gotan Limestone Khanjj Udyog Private Limited

Ha5e

ATUL DAGA
Director

DIN - 06416619
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Note 1 (A) Company Overview and Material Accounting Policies:
Company Overview

Gotan Lime Stone Khanij Udyog Private Limited (the Company) is a Private Limited Company incorporated in India
having its registered office at Jodhpur, Rajasthan, India. The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of
Mining of Lime Stone.

Material Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards)(Amendment) Rules, 2016, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and guidelines
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on
April 26, 2024.

(b) Basis of Preparation and Presentation:

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value on the consideration given in exchange for goods and service.

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current / Non-Current
classification of its Assets and Liabilities.

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

(i) Itis expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

(ii) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

(iii) It is expected to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

(i) Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or
(i) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
(i) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and
any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use, including
relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss during the period in which they were incurred.



Gotan Lime Stone Khanij Udjog Private Limited

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of PPE.

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when they meet
the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(d) Depreciation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is provided on a
straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Act or as per technical assessment.

Depreciable amount for PPE is the cost of PPE less its estimated residual value. The useful life of PPE is the period
over which PPE is expected to be available for use by the Company, or the number of production or simifar units
expected to be obtained from the asset by the Company.

The Company has componentized its PPE and has separately assessed the life of major components.

In case of certain classes of PPE, the Company uses different useful lives than those prescribed in Schedule II to the
Act. The useful lives have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the PPE and the
estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management’s best estimation of obtaining economic benefits from those
classes of assets.

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the month of installation or acquisition and in case of
Projects from the date of commencement of commercial production. Depreciation on deductions/disposals is provided
on a pro-rata basis up to the month preceding the month of deduction/disposal.

(e) Intangible Assets and Amortization:

= Intangible Assets acquired separately:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment, if any. The Company determines the amortization period as the period over which the
future economic benefits will flow to the Company after taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances. The
estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed periodically, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

= Class of intangible assets and their estimated useful lives are as under:

No | Nature Useful life

Over the period of the respective mining
agreement

1 | Mining Rights

(f) Inventories:
Inventories are valued as follows:

= Raw materials, fuel, stores & spare parts and packing materials:

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). However, these items are considered to be realisable at
cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

=  Work-in- progress (WIP), finished goods, stock-in-trade and trial run inventories:

Valued at lower of cost and NRV. Cost of Finished goods and WIP includes cost of raw materials, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of
inventories is computed on weighted average basis.

= Waste / Scrap:
Waste / Scrap inventory is valued at NRV.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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(g) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not
disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that
may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a
contingent asset and is recognised.

(h) Mines Restoration Provision:

An obligation for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental disturbance is caused
by the development or ongoing extraction from mines. Costs arising from restoration at closure of the mines and other
site preparation work are provided for based on their discounted net present value, with a corresponding amount
being capitalised at the start of each project. The amount provided for is recognised, as soon as the obligation to incur
such costs arises. These costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the operation through
the depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the discount on the provision. The cost are reviewed periodically
and are adjusted to reflect known developments which may have an impact on the cost or life of operations. The cost
of the related asset is adjusted for changes in the provision due to factors such as updated cost estimates, new
disturbance and revisions to discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is depreciated prospectively over the lives
of-the-assets-to-which they relate. The unwinding of the discount is shown-as-afinance cost in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

(i) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer
for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

= Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of
discounts, volume rebates, outgoing taxes on sales. Any amount receivable from the customer and are recognised
of the goods sold are transferred.

= Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the income is established.

» Difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment is recognised as profit or loss on sale /
redemption on investment on trade date of transaction.

(i) Income Taxes:

Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting period in accordance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

_,r'_'.__«;{ )
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Deferred tax is provided, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognised directly in
equity or OCI is recognised in equity or OCI and not in the Statement Profit and Loss. MAT Credits are in the form of
unused tax credits that are carried forward by the Company for a specified period of time, hence it is grouped with
Deferred Tax Asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable.

(k) Earnings Per Share:

The basic Earnings Per Share ("EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable
to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year attributable to the
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(1) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with
banks that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for
the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.



9T'9/S'T ECVLY B 8 e 6V'6EY 6V°050°C - - 6+'050° (a+v) s19ssy |ej01

£€T'8 88'61TT - S0°L 78'CIT T1'8ZT - B TT'8ZT s19ssy ajqibuejuy jej01
£€T'8 88'6TT - S0°L 78211 T1'8ZT - - 11°821 SY6RY BuiLly
sjassy ajqibuelju] (q)

€6°£95'T S PSE - 8L £9'9Z¢ 8ETTE'T - - 8€°TT6'T sjassy a|qibue] [ejol
= ;i 5 = = 00°0 < E 00°0 Sanixi4 pue ainjuing

- - = - 35237 UO UIAID

6Z°€8 T£L°L9T = 9.'ST S6°1ST 00°TST < 2 00°'1S2 umo
juswdinb3 pue jueld

0SSP 0T'0C - we 841 09°S9 : : 09'S9 sbuipjing

PIT $9'997 - 08'6 S895T 60'8LT - - 60°8LT pue pjoyase]

oL'LTv'T s = : : oL LTr'T : = 0L LTyt pue ployaaid
L ) T - o - pue

s19ssy ajqibuey, (v)

$T0C ‘1€ len ¥20z '1€ fen sjusunsnipy  1eak £202 ‘10 iMdy $Z0T 1€ Je syusunsnipy €202 ‘10 [udy
je sy 1e sy /suononpag 3y do4 1e sy je sy /suondnpsq@_suonippy je sy
320jg I°N uonesiuowy pue uopealdag )}o0jg SS045) siejnoijed
suje ul 2 539SSY paxid
INIWAINDI ANV INV1d ‘ALY3dOYd

Z2I0N
SjUSLIR)L]S [eIdueuUly 0} SO10N




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1  Ageing schedule of capital-work-in progress (CWIP) :
% in Lakhs

Total

Amount in CWIP for a period of

More than 3
years

Lessthan 1

year 1-2 years

2-3 years

As at March 31, 2024

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Total

As at March 31, 2023:

Projects in progress NIL
Projects temporarily suspended

Total

2.2 Completion schedule for capital-work-in progress whase completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan:

% in Lakhs
To be completed in
Less than 1 More than 3
year 1-2 years 2-3 years years
As at March 31, 2024
Project 1 |
Project 2 ]
Suspended projects: . - NIL
Project 1 -
Project 2
2.3 Ageing schedule of Intangible assets under development:
¥ in Lakhs
Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period
of Total
Lessthan1 . years 2-3 years More than 3
year years

As at March 31, 2024
Projects in progress [ ~ NoL
Projects temporarily suspended
Total

As at March 31, 2023:
Projects in progress
Projects temporarily suspended
Total

2.4. Completion schedule for Intangible assets under development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan
% in Lakhs

To be completed in

More than 3
years

Less than 1

year 1-2 years

2-3 years

As at March 31, 2024
Project 1
Project 2

Suspended projects: NIL
Project 1
Project 2

Gotan Limestone Khanif Udyog Private Limited ‘



Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 3
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non-current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest Accrued on Deposits - - -
Fixed Deposits with Bank with maturity > 12 months - o 41,83 30.01 2047
Security Deposits 0.15 0.06 0.06
0.15 41.89 30.06 20.47
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
NOTE 4
OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS
Balance with Government Authorities o o N 68.70 o 58.98
68.70 58.98
NOTE 5 B
INVENTORIES: (Valued at lower of Cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated) -
Finished Goods 52,80 52.80
Stores & Spares 4.09 - 4,09
56.89 56.89
NOTE 6
" CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS o o
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balance with banks (Current Account) 4.85 2.24
Cash on hand 0.02 0.02
4.87 2.26
NOTE 7
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B
Fixed Deposits with Banks (Maturity more than 3 months and upto 12 months) 153.25 122.33
153.25 122.33
NOTE 8
CURRENT TAX ASSETS
Advance Tax ey TN 6.98 6.85
6.98 6.85
NOTE 9
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS: - = -
Balance with Government Authorities 50.44 - 50.44_
Advances to suppliers - -
50.44 50.44

Gotan Limestone Khanij Udyog Private Limited



Notes to Financial Statements

Z in Lakhs
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
NOTE 10 No. of Shares Amount (% in Lacs) No. of Shares  Amount (" in Lacs)
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
Equity Shares of * 10 each - - 2,500,000 250.00 2,500,000 250.00
 Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
Equity Shares of * 10 each 2,315,780 231.58 2,315,780 231,58
is_sued, Subscribed and Partly Paid-up
Equity Shares of * 10 each (" 5 Paid-up) 23,000 1.15 23,000 1.15 )
2,338,780 232.73 2,338,780 232.73
(a) Reconciliation of the Shares Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
No. of Shares Amount (€ In Lacs)
—Ouma;lding at theEginning of the yea? 2,338,780 232.73
" Outstanding at the end of the year 2,338,780 232.73
(b) Shares held by Holding Company
UltraTech Cement Limited - 2,338,780 232.73
(c) List of shareholders holding more than 5% of Paid-up Equity Share Capital No. of Shares % Holding
UltraTech Cement Limited 2,33;80 100%
NOTE 11
NON CURRENT PROVISIONS
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
For Mines Restoration Expenditure 1.30 1.30
1.30 1.30
NOTE 12
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY {NET)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Assets:
Provision allowed under tax on payment basis o o - - 17.94 17.94
17.94 17.94
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Others (Accumulated Depreciation) 45.89 45.89
' N o 45.89 45,89
Net Deferred Tax Liability S 27.94 27.94
NOTE 13
TRADE PAYABLES
Due to Others 1.20 0.81
Total 1.20 0.81
Note 23.1: Trade Payables Ageing Schedule¢
Particulars Unbilied Outstandin  Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of Total
dues g butnot Less than1 1-2 2.3 More than 3
due years years
year years
_As on Mar 31, 2024:
(i) MSME =
(ii) Other than MSME 1.20 1.20
(i) Disputed- MSME =
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others =
[Total as on March 31, 2024 1.20 - - - - - 1.20
_As on March 31, 2023;
(i) MSME
(ii) Others 0.81 0.81
(i) Disputed- MSME
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others
Total as on March 31, 2023 0.81 0.81

=

Gotan Limestone Khanii Udyog Private Limited



NOTE 14
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Others (Statutory Liability Disputed- Environment cess, Land tax )

127.56

117.78

Notes to Financial Statements

127.56

117.78

Z in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
NOTE 15
OTHER OPERATING REVENUES
. Provision no longer required - -

NOTE 16

OTHER INCOME

Interest Income_on
Bank and Other Accounts 11.33 9.20

- 11.33 9.20
11.33 9.20

NOTE 17

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FIIEHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE o

Closing Inventories

. Finished Goods 52.80 52.80
52.80 5280

Opening Inventories

Finished Goods - 52.80 52.80
52.80 52.80

NOTE 18 _—

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE il DR o
Depreciation - 27.78 38.69
Amortisation * 5 ) s = 7.05_ T.lo

34.84 52.79

NOTE 19

OTHER EXPENSES
Rates and Taxes N 9.81 19.89
Miscellaneous Expenses = 0.46 0.4_5

10.27 20.34

NOTE 20

The Supreme Court of India has allowed an appeal filed by the State of Rajasthan in a matter relating to transfer of mining lease in the name of the Company and has
directed the State of Rajasthan to frame and notify its policy relating to transfer of mining lease within one month of receipt of the order and thereafter pass
appropriate order in respect of the mining lease of the company. Till such a decision is taken, status quo is to be maintained.

Gotan Limestone Khanif Udyog Private Limited
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Note 21 - Earning per Share (EPS):

% in Lacs
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(A) BasicEPS:
(i) Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (33.77) (63.93)
(i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (Nos.) 23,38,780 23,38,780
Basic EPS (7) (i)/(ii) (1.44) (2.73)
Note 22 — Auditors’ remuneration (excluding GST) and expenses:
¥ in Lacs
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory Auditors:
Audit fees 1.20 0.80
Note 23 - Financial Ratios
Sr. . Numerator - Dengminator - % .
No. Ratio Description De%?::'iption i Fy23 Variance Reason for variance
1 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.35 2.19 7%
(in times) excluding Current
e | Borrowings = | sy e sy = =
2 Debt-Equity Total Debt Equity - - -
_ Ratio (in times) | . e ) . -
3 Debt Service Profit for the year+ | Gross Interest + - - -
Coverage Ratio | Finance Costs + Lease Payment +
(in times) Depreciation and Repayment of
Amortisation Long Term Debt
Expense + excluding pre-
Loss/(Gain) on sale | payments
Of ﬁxed asseB e —————————— e VPR et - SRS SNV VPNV S ———— S
4 Return on | Profit for the year Average Net -14.51 -28.51 16%
Equity Ratio (in worth
k) )
5 Inventory Sale of Products Average Inventory - - -
Turnover Ratio | and Services
|| (intimes) - _ I . B |
6 Trade Sale of Products Average Trade - - -
Receivables and Services Receivable
turnover Ratio
(in times) o
7 Trade Payables | Cost of Sales Average Trade = - -
tumover Ratio Payable
(in times) = IS
8 Net Capital Sale of Products Working Capital - - -
turnover ratio and Services
. (in times) — .
9 Net profit ratio | Profit for the year Sale of Products - - -
(in %) | and Services e o
10 Return on Profit for the year Networth + -14.51 -28.51 2%
Capital + Tax +Finance Current and Non
employed (in Costs current
times) borrowings +
Deferred Tax
Liability IL ) n
11 Return on Treasury Income Weighted treasury = - -
Investment (in investment
%)
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Note 24 - Relationship with Struck off Companies:

The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956:

Signatures to Notes "1’ to '2¢4’ For and on behalf of the Board of the Directors
In terms of our report attached.
For G.P. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

A >4 e ‘ "
H 2D . Mg,
ATUL B. DESAI M_Bmvm. ATUL DAGA

Partner Director Director
Membership No: 30850 DIN — 03416254 DIN - 06416619

Mumbeai, April 26, 2024



G.P. KAPADIA & CO Hamam House
Chartered Accountants Ambalal Doshi Marg,
Mumbai - 400 001

Tel, T 22654239, 2265 4313
E-mail- : gpkco®@yahoo.com

INDEPENDENT COMPANY AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
Harish Cement Limited

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Harish Cement Lim-
ited(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the State-
ment of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS fi-
nancial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other ex-
planatory information (herein after referred to as " Ind AS financial statements")

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Account-
ing Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit (in-
cluding other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flow for the year ended
on that date. .

2. Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled other ethical responsibil-
ities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signifi-
cance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters

were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

}
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4. Other Information

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

6. Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

B
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to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial
statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
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communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure — A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, the Company has kept proper books of account as required by
Law so far as appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure - B”.

With respect to the other matters, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. The Company doesn’t have any delay in transferring amounts, required to
be transferred to the investor Education and Protection Fund.

iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Bencficiaries.

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

\2 Based on our examination and representation received from the Company, which
included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for the relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further during the year course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

Vi. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

FOR G.P. KAPADIA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Registration No - 104768W

JI\;._ > X ‘]—

Atul B Desai

(Partner)

Membership No - 030850
Place: Mumbai

Date: 26" April,2024

UDIN: 24030850BKAVSL2235



G. P. KAPADIA & CO.

ANNEXURE-A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HARISH CEMENT LIMITED.

1 a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B. Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company, it
doesn’t have any intangible assets during the year.

b)  Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company,
property, plant and equipment of the Company located at the Company has been
physically verified and the discrepancies noticed on such verifications is not
material and the same has been adjusted in the books of account. In our opinion
the frequency of verification of property, plant & equipment of the Company is
adequate.

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in its favor)
disclosed in the financial statements are held in its name.

d)  The Company/ Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment
(including right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year and
accordingly provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

¢)  According to the information and explanation given to us by the Company, there
are no proceedings initiated or are pending against it for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder and accordingly provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order
are not applicable.

2 a) As per information provided and explained to us by company, physical
verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate; no discrepancies were found in each class of inventory and
inventory is properly dealt in the books of account.

b)  The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, during any point of time of the year from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the
provisions of the clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

3. a) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties
other than loans given in the normal course of business of the Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(iii) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

b)  Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company it has
not made any investments, provided guarantee and security given to the parties
referred in section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3 (iii) (b) of the Order is

not applicable.
J b
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¢) Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company, the
repayment of principal and interest for the loan to key managerial persons are
regular based on the schedule stipulated. — No such loans availed by such person
in the Company.

d)  Based on the information and explanation furnished to us by the Company, there
are no overdues on the loans granted to key managerial persons during the year. —
No such loans availed by such person in the Company.

e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, made any investments, given guarantees and securities as referred in the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification dated March 31, 2024, the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended, with regard to the
deposits accepted are not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of
the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the said Order are not applicable.

a)  According to the records of the Company, it is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Goods and
Service Tax and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities as of
March 31, 2024. There are no undisputed dues outstanding for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

b)  According to the records of the Company and according to the information and
explanation given to us, there are no dues outstanding on account of any disputes
in respect of income tax, service tax, customs duty or excise duty or goods and
service tax except as detailed below:

Name of | Nature of the | Amount Amount l Assessment Forum where

the | dues (Rs. In | paid/adjuste year to dispute is
Statue Lakhs) d out of which the pending
' refunds (Rs amount
in lakhs) relates
NIL

According to the information and explanation provided and as represented to us by the
management, there are no transactions not recorded in the books of account which have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
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the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of
the said Order is not applicable at the Company level.

The Company has not taken any loans from the loans or other borrowings.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the said Order is not applicable at the
Company level.

The provisions of clause 3 (x) of the said Order is not applicable at the Company level.

a) According to the information and explanation provided by the Company and as
represented to us, the following frauds on it have been noticed or reported during
the year:

Nature of fraud Amount involved Remarks
(to the extent
quantified by the
Company) (Rs in
lakhs)

NIL

12

13

14

15

16

17

b) We have not filed any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, since frauds as referred to in para 11(a)
above were identified/detected through the Company’s vigil/whistle blower
mechanism or by management and is being dealt with by them.

¢) We have considered whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the
company and the report received in respect of investigation conducted by it.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and as
represented to us by management, all transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act and the details have been disclosed in
the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and as represented to us
by the management, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business. However, there are open comments of the
internal auditors which need to be acted upon or remediated by management, as at
year end

b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the year under audit were considered by us.

As represented to us by the management and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(xv) of the Order are not applicable.

The provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the said order is not applicable at the Company level.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
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preceding financial year.

The provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the said order is not applicable at the Company
level.

According to the information and explanation furnished and as represented to us by the
Company and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company will be capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanation furnished and as represented to us by the
Company in respect of other than ongoing projects, it has no unspent amount to be
transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act in compliance with second
proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a)
and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company doesn’t have any subsidiaries and consolidated financial statements is
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the said
Order are not applicable.

FOR G.P. KAPADIA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Registration No - 104768W

A

v et e

Atul B Desai

(Partner)

Membership No - 30850

Place: Mumbai

Date: 26™ April,2024

UDIN: 24030850BKAVSL2235
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ANNEXURE-B REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2 (e¢) UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF
OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HARISH CEMENT LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”):

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Harish Cement
Limited (“the Company/ the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over

financial reporting. .
/ }—
o ‘\I
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company, has an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such intemmal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively in all material respects as at March 31, 2024, based on “the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India”.

FOR G.P. KAPADIA & CO.
(Chartered Accountants)
Firm Registration No - 104768W

/Ilil "_-':-.j_._,__._'e— — AL

Atul B Desai

(Partner)

Membership No - 030850
Place: Mumbai

Date: 26™ April, 2024

UDIN: 24030850BKAVSL2235



" Harish Cement Limited
STANDALDNE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

X in Lakhs
. As at As at
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS -
Non-Current Assets »
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 I[TEme== 9,361.35 B | 9,361.35
Capital Work-in-Progress 2 2,950.58 - 2,936.06
- B 0 12,311.93 ol 12,297.41
Financial Assets: I L
_Other Financial Assets - - 3 I 0.73 -
- - L 0.73 ol -
Income Tax Assets (Net) 1 2.07 2.36
Other Non-Current Assets - 4 IEEER T 3,318.53 ool 3,318.53
Total Non-Current Assets = 15,633.26 15,618.30
Current Assets | e
Financial Assets S0l | P i
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 11.61 744
_Other Financial Assets - - - 3 = 0.67
- O] 11.61 _3 8.11
Other Current Assets 6 =3 97.04 | 94.43
Total Current Assets 108.65 102.54
TOTAL ASSETS 15,741.91 15,720.84
'EQUITY AND LIABILITIES . = L D
EQUITY ==
Equity Share Capital - - 7 (a) 24.87 ! 24.85
Other Equity 7 (b) L 15,480.28 T _15459.03
- 15,505.15 15,483.88
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities 1 .
Trade Payables A - )
Total U!JEEandlng Dues of Cre:altors ofher than Micro 8 0.35 0.55
_Other Financial Liabilities N 9 : . 236.41 236.41
- 236.76 236.96
Total Current Liabilities I 236.76 236.96
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,741.91 15,720.84
Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.
In terms of our report attached.
For G.P. Kapadia & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

ﬁ/tuq\ﬁesa e M. B.AgErwal g AW;Q/-;:{/

Membership No: 030850 Director Director
Partner & DIN: 03416254 DIN: 00703261

Mumbai: 26th April, 2024

Harish Cement Limited



Harish Cement Limited

STANDALPNE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

% in Lakhs
) Period ended Period ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other Operating Revenues i 0.03
Other Income 10 0.08 0.05
TOTAL INCOME (I) 0.08 0.08
EXPENSES
Other Expenses - - 11 0.17 0.17
0.17 0.17
TOTAL EXPENSES (II) 0.17 0.17
Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax Expense (I)-(II) (0.08) (0.08)
Profit before Tax Expense o - {0.08) (0.08)
Total Tax Expense 2 -
Profit for the Year (I1I) (0.08) (0.08)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (ITI+1IV) (0.08) (0.08)
Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value ¥ 10 each) 12
Basic (in ¥) - - [~ (0.03) (0.03)
Diluted (in ¥) (0.03) (0.03)
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached.

For G.P. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

ngp@ﬁ,\/;
Atul B. Desai
Membership No: 030850

Partner

Mumbai: 26th April, 2024

Harish Cement Limited

M. B. A a

r
% DIN: 03416254

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

pad=—

Arun Daga
Director
DIN: 00703261



HARISH CEMENT LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

¥ in Lakhs
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities: Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Profit & (Loss) Before tax (0.08) (0.08)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation - -
(Increase)/Decrease in current Assets (2.38) (2.96)
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payable and other Liabilities (0.20) (0.20)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) (2.66) (3.24)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
CWIP(Advances & project Dev.Expes) (14.52) (14.53)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) (14.52) (14.53)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Shares Issued Amount (Including Premium) 21.35 21.35
Net Cash Generated / (Used) from Financing Activities (C) 21.35 21.35
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) 4.17 3.58
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 7.44 3.86
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 11.61 7.44

Notes:

1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in IndAS - 7 specified under Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

The Accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached.

For G.P. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 104768W

Atul B. Desai M. B(Aga/rwal

Membership No: 030850 Director

Partner
Mumbai: 26th April, 2024 k

DIN: 03416254

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

el —

Arun Daga
Director
DIN: 00703261



Harish Cement Limited

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

For the year ended March 31, 2024

®in lacs
Balance as at April 01, 2023 Changes in Equity Share Balance as at March 31, 2024
Capital during the Year
24.85 0.03 24.87

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Balance as at April 01, 2022

Changes in Equity Share
Capital during the Year

Balance as at March 31, 2023

24.82 0.03 24.85
B. Other Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2024
¥ in lacs
Share Reserves & Surplus

Application Total Other
Farticulars Money Pending Capital Securities R':Z';:::ir:n General Retained Equity

Allotment Reserve Premium Reserve Reserve @ Eamings
Balance as at April 01, 2023 . - 15,459.46 - - {0.43) 15,459.03
Profit for the year = = - - (0.08) (0.08)
Total Comprehensive Income / E = I . s |
(Loss) for the year {0.08) (0.08)!
Issue of Shares 21.33 - 21.33
Balance as at March 31, 2024 = - 15,480.78 - - {0.51) 15,480.28

Harish Cement Limited

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

For the year ended March 31, 2023

R in lacs
Share Reserves & Surplus

Particulars Application .

Money Pending|  Capital Securities R':::;:ir:n General Retained | Total Equity

Allotment Reserve Premium Reseive Reserve Eamings

Balance as at April 01, 2022 - 15,438.13 - - (0.34) 15,437.79
Profit for the year - - - - (0.08) {0.08)
Total Comprehensive Income / . _ _ _ _
(Loss) for the year (0.08) (0.08)
Issue of Shares 21.33 - - - 21.33
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - - 15,459.46 - - (0.43) 15,459.03

Significant Accounting Policies Note 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached.

For G.P. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 104768W

[Pyeer

Atul B. Desai
Membership No: 030850
Partner

Mumbai: 26th April, 2024

Harish Cement Limited

&xand on behalf of the Board of Directors

M. B AGarwal

Director

X

]

DIN: 03416254

QM“”'

—

Arun Daga
Director
DIN: 00703261



Harish Cement Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

Note-1: Accounting Policies

(i) Statement of Compliance

These Standalone financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”) are prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and presentation requirements of Division |l of Schedule 11l notified under Section 133
of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and amendments thereto, other relevant provisions of the Act and
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), as applicable.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting
held on 26™April 2024.

{(ii} Basis of Preparation & Presentation:
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

The statement of financial position presents Assets and Liabilities as current and non-current. For this
purpose, an asset is classified as current if:

a) Itis expected to be realized, or is intended to be soid or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;
or

b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or It is expected to realize the asset within 12 months
after the reporting period; or

¢) The asset is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

a) Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or It is held primarily for the purpose of
trading; or

b) Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

¢) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
(iii) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the
financial statements, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and
the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes different from the estimates.
Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are
known or materialize.



Harish Cement Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods.

(iv) Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE):

The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, net of any trade discounts and rebates, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an
asset to working condition and location for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any
expected costs of decommissioning.

Subsequent costs incurred are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they were incurred.

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of PPE.

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE
when they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of PPE is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

PPE except freehold land are stated at their cost of acquisition/installation or construction net of
accumulated depreciation, and impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at cost less impairment
losses, if any.

{v) Depreciation:
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of property, plant & equipment
over its useful life and is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule
I to the Act or as per technical assessment. Freehold Land with indefinite life is not depreciated.

Depreciable amount for property, plant & equipment is the cost of property, plant & equipment less its
estimated residual value. The useful life of property, plant & equipment is the period over which
property, plant & equipment is expected to be available for use by an entity, or the number of
production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

(vi) Earnings Per Share:
Basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year

attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted
for treasury shares.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit / (loss) after tax for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders is divided by the weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares and is adjusted
for the treasury shares held by the Holding Company to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the
employees.



Harish Cement Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

{vii) Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with banks

that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

(viii) Cash Flow Statement:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit before tax is adjusted for the

effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

L
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 Ageing schedule of capital-work-in progress (CWIP) : % in lacs
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
As on March 31,2024
Projects in progress: 14.52 14.54 16.53 2,905.00  2,950.58
Land acquisition
Total 14.52 14.54 16.53 2,905.00 2,950.58
As on March 3},2023: _ - -
Projects in progress: 15.15 21.42 15.23 2,884.26 2,936.06
Land acquisition -
Total 15.15 21.42 15.23 2,884.26 2,936.06

-

Harish Cement Limited



NOTES TO-STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS:
Non-Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
_Interest Accrued on Deposits and Investments 0.03 - T = 0.37
Fixed Deposits with Bank 0.70 - - 0.30
0.73 - - 0.67
NOTE 4
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
icul As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Capital Advances 775.95 77595
Less: Provision for Impairment - -
775.95 775.95
Balance with Government Authorities 2,542.58 2,542.58
3,318.53 3,318.53
NOTE 5
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -
Bafance with banks (Current Account) 11.61 7.44
11.61 7.44
NOTE 6 B
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS —m=_ =k
Balance with Government Authorities _ 85.55 82.93
Prepaid Expenses 11.49 11.49
97.04 94.43

Harish Cement Limited



NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars o Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
NOTE 7 (a) No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL il 2 ol
Authorised =
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 50,00,000 500.00 50,00,000 500.00
Issued, Subsc_ribid and I_=ully Paid-up B 2
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid-up B 2,48,179 24.82 2,48,179 24.82
Issued, Subscribid ﬂi Part_ly Paid-uE s
Equity Shares of %10 each partly paid-up { X 5 each partly paid up) 1,095 0.05 1,095 0.03
2,49,274 24.87 2,49,274 24.85
(a) Reconciliation of the Shares Qutstanding at the beginning and at the end
of the year
Outstanding at the beginning of the year B 2,49,274 24.85 2,48,179 24.82
Add: Partly paid up equity 0.03 1,095 0.03
‘Outstanding at the end of the year 2,49,274 24.87 2,49,274 24.85
(b) Shares held by Holding Company i S— B -
UltraTech Cement Limited L 2,49,274 24.87 2,49,274 - 24.85
(c) List of shareholders holdinﬁ more than 5% of Paid-up Equity Share Capital No. of Shares % Holding No. of Shares % Holding
UltraTech Cement Limited 2,49,274 100% 2,49,274 100%
{d) Shares held by Promoters:
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 o
%o change
Promoter Name o, .
No of Shares /;:: :stal No of Shares % of total shares during the year
UltraTech Cement Limited 2,49,274 100% 2,49,274 100%
NOTE 7 (b)
OTHER EQUITY
% in Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Securities Premium 15,480.78 15,459.46
Retained Earnings (0.51) (0.43)
Total Other Equity. 15,480.28 15,459.03

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

a) Securities Premium: Securities premium is credited when shares are issued at premium. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide
for premiurn on redemption of shares or debentures, equity related expenses like underwriting costs, etc.

Harish Cement Limited



NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8
TRADE PAYABLES -
Total Qutsanding Dues of Creditors Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Other Trade Payable 0.35 0.55
0.35 0.55
Note 8.1: Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
Particulars Unbilled ?:‘f‘ Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
d , b:'tg More than 3 Total
] Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
not years
n March 31, 2023:
(i) MSME - =
(ii) Others 0.10 0.10 - 0.15 0.35 0.35
(iii) Diguted— MSME B s = =
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others - -
Total as on March 31, 2024 = 0.10 0.10 - 0.15 0.35 0.35
As on March 31, 2022:
(i) MSME -
(if) Others 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.55 0.55
(iii) Disputed- MSME -
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others - - -
Total as on March 31, 2023 - - 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.55 0.55
NOTE 9
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES % in Lakhs
Non-Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Liability for Capital Goods [ — - 232.92 232.92
Others (Retention money, Liquidated Damages, etc.) - - 3.49 3.49
- - 236.41 236.41

Harish Cement Limited



NOTES TO:STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

% in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
NOTE 10 S
OTHER INCOME - | - - -
Others 0.08 0.05
0.08 0.05
NOTE 11
OTHER EXPENSES - i -
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.17 0.17
0.17 0.17

Harish Cement Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

Note 13— Capital and Other Commitments:

1. “Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, not provided for (net of
advances) Rs.5965.65 Lacs (Previous Year’'Rs.5965.65 Lacs).

2. Certain land owners filed writ petitions challenging (1) acquisition of private lands by the State of Himachal
Pradesh for setting up of cement plant and (2) environmental clearance granted to the project, before the
High Court of Himachal Pradesh. The High Court of Himachal Pradesh quashed the notifications issued under
Section 6 and 7 of the Land Acquisition Act, 1894 and also the environmental clearance granted for the project
on procedural grounds. The Company had filed Special Leave Petitions before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of
India challenging the order of the High court of Himachal Pradesh. The Special leave Petitions filed by the
Company has been admitted and converted to Civil appeals Nos. 1636 — 1641 of 2013. The matter was listed
for a hearing before the Hon’ble Supreme Court on 2nd November, 2023. However, the Court suggested that
the matter be placed before the Chief Justice to decide whether it should be heard by a Green Bench or a
normal bench, given the involvement of matters related to Protected Forest, which is still pending.

Note 14 - Related party disclosures:
A) List of Related Parties where control exists:

% Shareholding and
Name of the Related Party Prmc;z:ilnPeI::e of As at Voting Pm:se;t

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(1) Holding Company: ) ]
UltraTech Cement Limited India 100%




Harish Cement Limited

Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

Disclosure of related party transactions: Amount in X
. As at As at
Nature of Transactions 31% March’ 2024 | 31st March’ 2023
Share Application Money Received from UTCL 21,35,250 21,35,250
Share Issued to UTCL {Including Premium Amount) 21,35,250 21,35,250
Note 15 — Auditors’ remuneration (excluding service tax) and expenses: AmountinX
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
(a) Statutory Auditors:
Audit fees (including quarterly Limited Review) 10,000 10,000

Note 16

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year

classification / disclosure.

Note 17 - Financial Ratios

Sr. Ratio Nume_rafor ) Denon:mr.iator " | FY24 FY23 N , Reason for variance
No. Description Description Variance
1 Current Ratio | Current Assets Current 0.46 0.43 6.98% Cash Flow on account of
(in times) Liabilities 2" Call on Equity Share
excluding
Current
Borrowings
2 Debt-Equity Total Debt Equity NIL NIL NIL
Ratio (in
times)
3 Debt Service | Profit for the | Gross Interest + | NiL NiL NIL
Coverage year+  Finance | Lease Payment
Ratio (in | Costs + | + Repayment of
times) Depreciation and | Long Term Debt
Amortisation excluding pre-
Expense + | payments
Loss/(Gain) on
sale of fixed
assets
4 Return  on | Profit for the | Average  Net | NiL NIL NIL
Equity Ratio | year worth
(in %)
5 Inventory Sale of Products | Average NIL NIL NIL
Turnover and Services Inventory
Ratio (in
times)
6 Trade Sale of Products | Average Trade | NiL NIL NIL
Receivables and Services Receivable
turnover
Ratio (in
times)
7 Trade Cost of Sales Average Trade | NIL NIL NiL
Payables Payable
turnover

B
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Notes to Financial Statements (Contd.)

Ratio {in
times)
8 Net Capital | Average working | Sale of Products | NIL NIL NIL
turnover Capital and Services
ratio (in
times)
9 Net profit | Profit for the | Sale of Products | NiL NIL NIL
ratio {(in | year and Services
times)
10 | Return on | Profit for the | Average of | NIL NIL NIL
Capital year +  Tax | (Networth +
employed (in | +Finance Costs Current and
times) Non current
borrowings)
11 | Return on | Treasury Income | Weighted NIL NIL NIL
Investment treasury
(in %) investment
Signatures to Notes ‘1’ to 17 for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
In terms of our reports attached.
| - ( "
. {]a:j‘,gfff"'f
For G.P. Kapadia & Co. M._B(Amval Arun Daga
Chartered Accountants Director Director
Firm Registration No: 104768W %DIN: 03416254 DIN: 00703261

Atul B. Desai
Membership No: 030850
Partner

Mumbai: 26th April, 2024
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Interoffice Audit Report on Financial Information Prepared for Consolidation
Purposes

TO-BSR & CO.LLP -GROUP AUDITORS OF ULTRATECH CEMENT LIMITED.

We have audited the financial information prepared for consolidation purposes of Ultratech Cement Lanka
(Pvt) Limited (“the Company™), on pages 2 to 37 of the accompanying financial reporting package. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the KPMG Audit Manual — International

In our opinion, the financial information prepared for consolidation purposes as at 31 March 2024 and for the
year ended 31 March 2024 has been prepared, in all material respects, in conformity with the instructions
issued by group auditor of UltraTech Cement Limited to components.

This report is intended solely for use by B S R & Co. LLP in connection with its audit of UltraTech Cement
Limited’s consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2024 and for the year ended 31 March 2024 and
should not be used for any other purpose.

kel

18 April 2024
KPMG Sri Lanka
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ULTRATECH CEMENT LANKA (PVTT) LTD

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 ]
INR
Particulars Nole No. As ot

March 31, 2024

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plantand Eguipments 2 61,946,721
Other Intangible Assets 2 38,911
ROU Assets 3 220,402,957
Total Non-Current Assets 282,388,589
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9 48,985,612

Current Assets

Inventorics 4 255,018,827
Financial Asscts
Investment others 5 18,062,630
“I'rade Receivable 6 367,873,337
Cash and cash equivalents 7 79,549,604
Other Current Assels 8 374,791,166
Total Current Assets 1,095,295,564
TOTAL ASSETS 1,426,6069,766

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Sharcholders' Funds
Share Capital 10 138,943,308
Other Equity 243,868,562
382,811,870
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Non-Current Provisions 11 14,623,816
Financial Liabilitics
Lcase Liability 12 300,322,956
Total Non-Current Liabilities 314,946,772
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
I.case Liability 12 118,990,343
Trade Payables 13 422,531,026
Other Current Liabilities 14 160,751,909
Short-term Provisions 11 4,434,400
Current Tax Liabilities -
Other Financial Liabilities 15 22,203,447
Total Current Liabilities 728,911,124
L]
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 1,426,669,766

Material Accounting Policies
The accompanying Notes referved to integral part of the Financial Statements

INR
Asat

VMareh 31, 2023

70.313.972
130972
239,128,563
329575507

63606814

209.443.961

331.425.203
283.836,051

36,240,147
295,133,430
136.078.792

551.261,113

126.015.369
262.573,987
388,589.356

7.814.972

413,256.870
421.071.842

113.137,089
368,388,093
186,003,187
3,002,363
56,303,139
14,764,042
741.599,915

1,551.261.113

In terms of our report attached.

— A &/-J
— N

For
Director

Date: 18.04.2024




ULTRATECH CEMENT LANKA (PVT)LTD

Revenne

Sale of Products & Services (Gross)
Operating Income

Revenue from Operations (Net)
Other Income

Total Revenne (1)

Expenses
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress & Stock-n-Trade
Employee Benefits ixpenses
Power and Fuel Consumed
Freight & Forwarding Expenscs
Other Iixpenses
Finance Cost
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Total Expenses
(Loss)/Profit hefore Tax Expenses
Income Tax Expenses

Provision for Current Tax

Deferred Tax Expenses
(Loss)/Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit & Loss

: 3 »
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Notes

16
17

18

19
20
21

22
23
24

(ii) Income Tax Relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit & Loss

B (i) Income Tax Relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange dilference arising {rom translation
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
(Loss)/Profit Per Equity Share (Face Valne ™ 10 each)
Basic  (in ")

Diluted (in ")

Material Accounting Policies
Accompanying Notes arc integral part of Financial Statements

INR

April 23 - March 24

4,927402,638

21,363,723

4.948,766,361
89,897,958

5,038.664,319

4,648,230,731
(51,507,397)
77,373,296
17,387,489
71,686,252
255,667,719
(18,223,858)
77,422,158

5,078,036,390

(39,372,071)

22,608,443

(21,915,829)
(38,679,457)

(5,938,195)
1,781,458

(42,836,193)

24,130,766

(18,705,427)

(0.77)
(0.77)

INR
Apnl 22 - March 23

1.682.611.793
10.285.713
221 499.667
1.944.427.173

3.444.179.851
12.833.947
74.126.992
9.517.234
45.180.622
596.581,472
80.266.027
66,194.576
4.329.180,721
615.246.452

(61.957.487)

(81.420.,961)
471.868.004

25,312
(7.594)
471,885,722
69.375.458
541,261,180

9.44
9.44

In terms of our report attached.

For

Date: 18.04.2024

Director



ULTRATECH CEMENT LANKA (PVT) LTD

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT MARCH 31,2024 _

A . Equity Share Capital

For the Period ended March 31, 2024

INR

Balance as at
April 01,2023

Changes in equitly
share capital during the
period

Balance as at March
31,2024

126.015.369

12.927.959

138.943.308

For the period ended March 31,2023

Balance as at
April 01, 2022

Changes in equity
share capital during the
period

Balance as at March
31,2023

131.133.095

(5.117.726)

126.015.369

B. Other Equity

FFor the Period ended March 31, 2024

INR

Exchange Variation

Total Equity

Particulars Reserve Reserves & Surplus

Retained Earnings
Batgnce gs/ot Apel 01, 2023 126.179.334 136,394,652 262.573 987
Lass Tor the i - (42.836,193) (42.836.193)
FForeign currency translation gain/(loss) 24,130,766 - 24,130.766
Total Comprehensive Income lor the year 24,130,766 (42.836.193) (18.705.427)
Palance aEa0Mach 31,2024 150,310,100 93,558,460 243,868,562
For the period ended March 31,2023 INR

Particulars

Exchange Variation

Reserves & Surplus

Total Equity

Reserve Retained Earnings
Balance as at April 01, 2022 56,803,876 (335.491.070) (278,687,194)
Loss for the year - 471.885,722 471,885,722
Foreign currency translation gain/(loss) 069,375.458 - 69,375,458
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 69,375,458 471.885,722 541,261,180
Balance as at March 31,2023 126.179.334 136.394,652 262,573,987

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

Retained Earnings

a) Retained Earnings : The profit after tax after Dividend payment transfers to retained camnings for appropriation purposes.

b) Exchange Variation Reserve : Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve has been created for Exchange variation in Opening Equity

Share Capital and Reserves and Surplus

Date: 18.04.2024

Director

Director




ULTRATECH CEMENT LANKA (PVT) LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

A Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

=

Profit/(Loss) Before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Obsolescence

Provision for Retirement Benefits

Interest Income

Impairment provision on trade receivable

Unrealiscd Foreign Exchange Loss

Unrealised Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Loss on lease liability
Reversal ol provision made [or trade debtors

PPayment for short term leasc liabilitics

Interest expense on Bank overdrafl

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments for:

(Increasc)/ Decrease in Inventories

(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade receivables

(Increase) Decrease in Other current assles

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Pavables and Other Liabilities
Cash Generated from Operations

Taxes paid

Retiring gratuity paid

Payment for short term lease liabilities

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities ()

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

PPurchase of Fixed Assels

(Increase)/Decrease in Current Investments

Proceeds on disposal of property. plant and equipment
Interest Received

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (13)

* Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Interest paid on bank overdraft

Interest expense on lease liability

Payment for long term lease liabilities

Net Cash used in Financing Activities (C)

Net Increase/(Decerease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+(0)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

Date: 18.04.2024

INR

INR
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(39,372,071) 615.246.452
77,422,158 60.494.576
3,006,133 2.091.490
(43,104949) {220.982.118)
. 16.735
47,624,496 83.473.671
(35,012,121) 62.344.153
(3.854,672) (296.235)
2,103,773 80.163.834
118,467 243.680
(82,792) (517.549)
8,848,422 688.278.696
(45,574,866) 17.112,148
(80,182,613) 63.225.438
(34,851,728) 63.499.034
36,329,060 (1.710.695.670)
(115,431,725) (878.580.354)
(75,764,496) -
(2,251,719) (2.562.481)
(2,103,773) (80.163.834)
(195,551,714) (961.306.669)
(1,404,900) (808.202)
313,362,573 866.623.0061
82,792 954.208
43,104,949 220,982,118
355,145,415 1.087.751.185
(118467) (243.680)
16,669,796 17.678.188
(132,835,573) (128.256.156)
(116,284,244) (110.821.654)
43,309,457 15.622.862
36,240,147 20.617.285
79,549,604 36.240.147

Direclor
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Company Overview & Significant Accounting Policies:
[(A) Company Overview
UltraTech Cement Lanka (Pvt) Limited (“Company™) is a Private Limited Liability Company incorporated on
29 August 1997 and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, No. 17
ol 1982 and re-registered under the Companies Act. No. 7 of 2007. The registered office and the principal

place ol business are situated at No 81/11/1, New Nuge Road, Peliyagoda. Kelaniya. The Company is engaged
in the importing naked cement and marketing the same in 50kg bags and in bulk form.

1 (B) Material Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of Compliance:

These accounting policies adapted by the Group have been adopted consistently by the Group entities for
Group reporting purposes.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their
meeting held on 18 April, 2024.

(b) Basis of Preparation and Presentation

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
a. Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan and leave accrual plan as per actuarial valuation.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial statements are prepared in Sri Lankan Rupees which is the functional currency of the
Company and converted to Indian Rupees for consolidation purposes.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current:

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current/ Non-
Current classification of its Assets and Liabilities.

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

(i) Itis expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;
or

(i1) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
(iii) It is expected 1o realise the asset within twelve months afler the reporting period; or

(iv) The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months afler the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:
(i) Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; of

(ii) 1t is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
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L)

(c) Fynandif

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period: or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months afier the repoiting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not aflect this
classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Assessment of Implications of cconomic crisis of Sri Lanka and Going Concern Basis of Accounting

Sri Lanka has been facing foreign exchange crisis due 1o the adverse economic conditions which have
grown from acule to severe acute during the financial year ended 31 March 2024. The Government of Sri
Lanka is taking various measures 1o control the outflow of foreign exchange reserves of the country
including restrictions on several imports and outward remittances. Despite the Government’s measures lo
control forcign exchange outflows, the continual deterioration of foreign reserves is putting pressure on the
exchange rate to depreciate in the market. Accordingly, this situation has not put severe pressure on the
Company’s liquidity position.. Nevertheless, the Company is continuously monitoring the conditions to
ensure smooth flow of operations and working capital.

BBased on the Company’s liquidity position as at the reporting date, the Board of Directors has assessed that
there is no uncertainty regarding the settlements of external liabilities during the next 12 months from the
date of authorizing these financial statements.

Accordingly, the Board ol Directors has a reasonable confidence level that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operation for at least the next 12 months and that the going concern basis of
accounting remains appropriate.

Property, Plant & Equipment (I’PE):

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its
intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expectled costs of decommissioning, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asseis’s carrying amount or recognized as a separale assel, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they were incurred.

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of PPE.

Material items such as spare parits, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when
they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment.

L]
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property. plant and equipment is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

PPE are stated at their cost of acquisition/installation or construction net of accumulated depreciation, and
impairment losses, if any.

during construction period:

: 7 g : : i,
e during construction period (including financing cost related to borrowed funds for
isition of qualifying PPE) is included under Capital Work-in-Progress and the same is
'spective PPE on the completion of their construction. Advances given towards

7
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acquisition or construction of PPE cutstanding at each reporting date are disclosed as Capital Advances
under “Other non-current Assets”™.

(d) Depreciation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation ol the depreciable amount of PPE over its uselul life and is
provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule 11 1o the Act or as per
technical assessment. Land with indefinite life is not depreciated.

Depreciable amount for PPE is the cost of PPE less its estimated residual value. The useful life of PPL is
the period over which PPL is expected 1o be available for use by the Company, or the number of
production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the Company.

In case of certain classes of PPE, the Company uses different useful lives than those prescribed in
Schedule 11 1o the Act. The useful lives have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account
the nature of the PPE and the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management's best estimation of
obtaining economic benefits from those classes of assets. he estimated useful life are reviewed
periodically, with the effectof any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Such classes ol assets and their estimated useful lives are as under:

No | Nature Estimated Useful life
I | Buildings 3-60 Years
2 | Leasehold land Over the lease agreement
3 | Plant & Equipment 8-50 Years
4 | Office Equipment 4-7 Years
5 | Furniture and Fixtures 7-12 Years
6 | Mobile Phones 3 Years
Company Vehicles (other than those
77 [T Lother. that 5-12 Years
provided to the employees)
Motor Cars given 1o the employees as
8 5 , ploy 4-5 Years
per the Company’s Scheme
9 | Servers and Networks 3 Years
'es ¢ ares in the nature of
10 Stores and Spares in 8-30 Years
PPE
11 i mdnynduall; CORNEIESS  tidn Fully Depreciated in the year of purchase
or equal to " 10,000

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the month of installation or acquisition and
in case of Projects from the date of commencement of commercial production. Depreciation on
deductions/disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis up to the ‘month preceding the month of
deduction/disposal.

The depreciation period for the building, plant and machinery, H'T Power line and Electronic Installation
assel categories will be as given above or the remaining Lease period of the land, whichever is lower.

(¢) Intangible Assets and Amortisation:

= Internally generated Intangible Assets: (Research and Development expenditure)
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Expenditure pertaining to rescarch is expensed as incurred. Expenditure incurred on development is
capitalised i’ such expenditure leads 1o creation of an assel. otherwise such expenditure is charged to
the Statement of Profit and l.oss.

Subsequent costs incurred are included in the assets’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
assel. as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item

will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Intangible Assets acquired separately:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. The Company determines the
amortisation period as the period over which the future economic benefits will low to the Company
afier taking into account all relevant lacts and circumstances. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed periodically, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

= Class of intangible assets and their estimated useful lives are as under:

No | Nature Useful life
1 Software | 3 vears

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected lfrom
its use or disposal. Gains or losscs arising from derecognition of an item of intangible asset are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of such item of intangible
assel and are recognised in the Statement of Prolit and L.oss when the asset is derecognised.

() Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for disposal:

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amqg its will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales ol such asset and its sale is highly probable. Such assets or group ol assets /
liabilities are presented separately in the Balance Sheet, in the line “Assets / Disposal groups held for sale™
and “Liabilities included in disposal group held for sale™ respectively. Once classified as held for sale,
intangible assets and PPE are no longer amortised or depreciated.

Such assets or disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower ol carrying amount and [air value less
costs to sell.

(g) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial assets 1o
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in grder 1o determine the extent of the
impairment loss (il any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis ol allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite uselul lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for

impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
4

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that

9
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(M)

®

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money an« the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

It the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is cstimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount ol the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in prolit or loss, unless the relevant assct is carried at a
revalued amount. in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal ol an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories:
Inventories are valued as follows:
= Raw materials, fuel, stores & spare parts and packing materials:

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). However, these items are considered to be
realisable at cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or
above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis which includes expenditure incurred for
acquiring inventories like purchase price, impoit duties, taxes (net of tax credit) and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

*  Work-in- progress (WIP), finished goods, stock-in-trade and trial run inventories:

Valued at lower of cost and NRV. Cost of Finished goods and WIP includes cost of raw materials, cost
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost ol inventories is computed on weighted average basis.

= Waste / Serap:
Waste / Scrap inventory is valued at NRV.

Net realisable value for inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing Costs:

General and specific borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of'a
qualifying asset are capitalised as pait of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its
intended use and borrowing costs are being incurred. A qualilying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. .

Borrowing cost includes interest expense, amortization of discounts, hedge related cost incurred in
connection with foreign currency borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with borrowing of
funds and exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as
an adjustment to the Interest cost.

10
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(j) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outtlow of resources, that can be reliably estimated. will be required
to settle such an obligation.

Il the ellect of' the time value ol money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash fows to net present value using an appropriate pre-lax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate. the risks specilic 1o the liability.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and l.oss as a finance cost. Irovisions
are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted 1o reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is cither not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required 1o settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent
liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
cvents, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of onc or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are
not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related assel is not a contingent asset and is recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, in financial
statements, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(k) Revenue Recognition from Contracts with Customers:

1. Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services 1o a
customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects 1o be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when
control of the goods is transferred to the customer, which is generally on dispatch/ delivery of the goods.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price
(net of variable consideration) allocated 1o that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold
and services rendered is net of variable consideration and outgoing taxes on sale.

Variable consideration - This includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc. It is estimated at contract
inception considering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at
end of cach reporting period.

Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its
customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company docs not adjust the promised amount
of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that
the period between the transfer of the promised good or service 1o the customer and when the customer
pays for that good or service will be one year or less.
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2. Rendering of Services

Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/arrangements with the customers as
the service is performed and there is no unfulfilled Obligation.

= Contract balances:

» Trade Receivables and Contract Assets
A trade receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to a customer and
consideration becomes unconditional.
Contract assets are recognized when the company has a right to receive consideration that is
conditional other than the passage of time.

»  Contract liabilitics
Contract liabilities is a Company s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer which
the entity has already received consideration. Contract liabilitics are recognised as revenue
when the company performs under the contract.

(ii) Interest income is recognised using the Effective Interest Method.
(I) Lease:

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. T'o assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether
(i) the contract involves the use of identified asset;
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through
the period of leasc and; |
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset |

As a lessce _
The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROUA™) and a lease liability at the lease commencement i
date. The ROUA is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial dircct costs '
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

Certain leasc arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. The right-of-use assets and leasc liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that
the option will be exercised. : i
The ROUA is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the carlier of the end of the useful life of the ROU asset or the end of the lease term, but if ownership of
the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. In addition, the
ROUA is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of
the lease liability.
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\ast:l Class i l.ensé Te rm_(.in years)

l.and | 30 Years
Ships 10 Years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or. if that rate cannot be
readily determined, and company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally. the company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises lixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except those which is
payable other than functional cuwrrency which is measured at fair value through P&L. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected 1o be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the ROU, or is recorded in Statement of Profit or L.oss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced 1o zero.

l.ease Liabilities have been presented in ‘Financial Liabilities’ and the ‘ROU" have been presented
separately in the Balance Sheel. lLease payments have been classified as financing activities in the
Statement of Cash Flows.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or lower and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term. The related cash flows are classified as
Operating activities in the Statement of Cash Flows

(m) Employee benefits
Gratuity
'

The gratuity, a defined benefit plan, payable to the employees is based on the Employees® service and last
drawn salary at the time of the leaving of the services of the Company and is in accordance with the Rules
of the Company for payment of Gratuity. Liability with regards 1o gratuity plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out by a qualified independent actuary
at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes 1o the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net
interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Refmeasurement recognised in OCI is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Past
service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Interest is

13
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calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or
asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Defined benelit costs are categorised as
follows:

= service cost (including current service cost. past service cost. as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements):

* net interest expense or income; and

= re-measurement

= immediate recognition of (gain)/ loss arising during the year due to plan amendment

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The
defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited 1o the present value
ol any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

Provident Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled 1o receive benefits in respect of provident fund, which
is a defined benefit plan, for which both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a
specified percentage of the covered employees® salary. The contributions as specified under the law are
made to the approved provident fund which is set up by the Company. The Company is liable for annual
contributions and any shortfall in the fund assets based on the government specified minimum rates of
return and recognises such contributions and shortfall, if any, as an expense in the year incurred.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected 1o be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured using the projected
unit credit method by a qualified independent actuary at the end of each annual reporting period, at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected 1o be made by the Company in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. With reference to some employees, liability of
other fixed long-term employee benefits is recognised at the present value of the future cash outflows
expected 1o be made by the Company. )

Remeasurement gains / losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they arise.

Income Taxes:

Income ‘T'ax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable incomerfor the current accounting period in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax (amendment) Act no 45 2022
and other applicable tax laws. '
Applicable tax rates of the Company during the period ol 2024/24 is 30%
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(o)

»)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised lor taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asset are
recognised for deductible temporary difterences. carry forward of unused tax losses, carry lorward of
unused tax credits at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognised directly in
equity or OCl is recognised in equity or OCI and not in the Statement of Profit and l.oss

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set ol the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set ofl’ current tax
assets against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized except:

a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only 1o the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is
probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS™) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) alter tax for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year attributable
to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Foreign Currency transactions:

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s
functional currency (i.e. foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary item$ denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate as at the date of initial transactions.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and l.oss account in the
period in which they arise except for:

r
= Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;
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= [ixchange differences relating to qualifving effective cash flow hedges and qualilying net investment
hedges in foreign operations which are recognised in QCI.

Translation to the presentation currency

The results and financial position of an entity whose functional currency is different from presentational
currency is translated as follow:

= assets, liabilities and components of equity, other than in respect ol current year's income and
expenses for each statement of financial position presented shall be translated at closing rate as at the
reporting date.

= income and expense for each statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income shall be
translated at exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

(q) Financial Instruments:

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable 1o the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to
borrowings) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss over the tenure of the financial assets or financial liabilities.

Classification and Subsequent Mecasurement: Financial Assets
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost. fair value through
other comprehensive income (“IFVOCI™) or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL™) on the basis of

following:

= the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and
= the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assel.

Amortised Cost:

L]
A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

= the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
1o collect contractual cash flows and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specificd dates 1o cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount oufstanding.
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In case of financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost. any interest income. loreign exchange
gains or losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement ol Profit and L.oss.

Fair Value through OCI:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following
conditions are met:

= the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achicved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

FFair Value through Profit or Loss:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI.

All recognised flinancial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

For financial assets at FVTPL, net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or *other financial liabilities’.

Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is a
derivative (except for effective hedge) or are designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL.

Gains or lLosses, including any interest expense on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate)
a shorter period, to the amortised cost on initial recognition.

’
Interest expense (based on the effective interest method), foreign exchange gains and losses, and any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and L oss.
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Impairment of Financial assets:

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent 1o initial recognition other than
financials assets in FVTPL category. FFor linancial assets other than trade receivables. as per Ind AS 109.
the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at
the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition.

The Company’s trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and as per simplified
approach, loss allowances on trade reccivables are measured using provision matrix at an amount equal to
life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derecognition of financial assets:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. [f the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset. the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises an associated liability for amounts it has to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCl
and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and l.oss.

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and shoit-term
deposits with banks that are readily convertible into cash which are subject 1o insignificant risk of changes
in value and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments

L]
(s) Financial liabilitics and equity instruments:

= Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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*  Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity afier
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds
received.

(1) Derivative financial instruments:

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts. interest
rate swaps and cross currency swaps 10 manage its exposure to interest rate, foreign exchange rate risks
and commodity prices. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately excluding derivatives designated as cashflow hedge.

(u) Hedge accounting:

The Company designates certain hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and commodity price risk as cash flow hedges. At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument
is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognised in OCI and accumulated under equity. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity relating to effective portion as described
above are reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects the
Statement of Profit or Loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged
forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains
and losses are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-
financial asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised
in OCI and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected 1o occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company also hedges its risk of change in foreign exchange rates associated with net investment in
certain foreign subsidiaries with a different functional currency than the Companie’s functional currency.
Net investment hedges are accounted for similar 10 cash flow” hedges and accordingly, any foreign
exchange differences on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised
in other comprehensive income as foreign currency translation reserve (‘FCTR®) so as to offset the change

D)
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in the value of the net investment being hedged. The ineflective portion of the gain or loss on these hedges
is immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amounts accumulated in equity are
included in the Statement of Profit and l.oss when the foreign operation is disposed or partially disposed.

(v) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements. estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities. and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting policics:

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

(i) Classification of Lease Ind AS 116:

Ind AS 116 Leases requires a lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain.
The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on lease by lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be
exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold
improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance
of the underlying lease to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying
asset and the availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed 1o
ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. The discount rate is generally
based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases
with similar characteristics.

(v) Key assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are.wreflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

(i) Useful Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:
The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the
economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management
periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is
charged over the remaining useful life of the assets. In case of;ccrlain mining rights the amortisation is
based on the extracted quantity 1o the total mineral reserve,
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(i) Recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses for which there is probability of utilisation against the future taxable profit. The Company uses

judgement to determine the amount ol delerred tax liability / asset that can be recognised. based upon

the likely timing and the level ol future taxable profits and business developments.

(iii) Income Taxes:

The Company calculates income tax expense based on reported income and estimated exemptions /
deduction likely available to the Company The Company is continuing with higher income tax rate
option, based on the available exemptions & deduction enjoyed by the Company. The Company has
applied the same income tax rates on the deferred tax assets / liabilities to the extent these are expected
to realised or settled in the future when the Company may be subject 1o lower tax rate based on the
future financials projections.

(iv) Defined benefit plans:

)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, provident fund and other post-employment medical
benefits and the present value of the gratuity and provident fund obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may ditfer from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models arc taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility.

(vi) Classification of Lease Ind AS 116:

Ind AS 116 Leases requires a lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a
lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on lease by lease basis and
thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract
will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant
leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of lease and
the importance of the underlying lease 1o the Company’s operations taking into account the location of
the underlying asset and the availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. The discount rate
is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.
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NOTE 2 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

INR
Particulars Gross Block Depreciation Net Book
As al Other Additions Deductions/ Asat As at Other For the Deductions Tpw Asat
April 01, 2023 Adjustments Adjustments darch 31,2024  April 01, 2023 Adjustiments period Adjustmentsvlarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2024

(A) Tangible Assets

Buildings 22,772,609 2,336,246 - - 25,108,855 14.659.754 1.628.228 1,896.796 - 18.184.759 6924096
Plant and Machinery 167,048,080 17,142,549 77.162 - 184,267,792 108.299.034 11.949973 12.815.161 - 133.062.168 51205624
Oftice Equipment 3,629,849 403,114 326,660 (9.324) 4,350,300 3.390.908 371.205 213.787 (9.523) 3.966.576 383.705
Furniture and Fixtures 1,156,900 123,258 69,766 - 1,349,925 1.033,286 108.634 40.118 - 1.182.038 167,887
Lab Equipments 1,912,205 196,173 - - 2,108,379 1,810,866 188.571 42,645 - 2042082 66,283
Y Motor Vehicles 2,099,435 215,381 - - 2314814 1.091,310 132,464 312,958 - 1.536,732 TT8.083
Motor Cycles $99.208 428236 - (335,987 991,458 789.995 420.642 55.094 (335.987) 929,744 I' = 61,714
Electric Installation 8.391,385 860,874 - - 9,252,259 7.420.730 774.615 203.271 - 8.398.614 853,645
HT Power Line 84,226 8.641 - - 92,867 84226 8.641 - - 92 866 -
Computers 3,088,558 377.878 931,511 - 4.397,746 2,186,364 229,150 476.549 - 2,892,063 1.505.684
Sub Total 211,082,454 22,092,350 1,404,900 (345.310) 234,234,394 140,766,453 15812121  16,054377  (345,310) 172.287.641 61.946.721
Intangible Assets-Software 825,205 84,658 - - 909,863 (94,234 102461 74257 - 870,952 38911
Particulars Gross Block Depreciation Net Book
As at Other Additions Deductions/ Asat Asat Other For the Deductions/ Up to Axat
April 01, 2022 Adjustments Adjustments darch 31, 2023|  April 01, 2022 Adjustments period vdjustments Varch 31,202) March 31, 2023
(A) Tangible Asscts
Buildings 17.564,767 5,207,842 = = 22,772,609 7,214,941 5.813.940 1,630.854 - 14.639.734 N 12,874
Plant and Machinery 126,968,870 41,166,739 - (1,087,529) 167,048,080 52,362,479 45,506,255  11.081.170 (650.870) 108.299.034 38,749,046
Office Equipment 2892229 679.358 58.262 - 3.629.849 2,527,641 705.861 157.405 - 3.390.90% 238,927
Furniture and Fixtures 913,831 164,124 78,945 - 1,156.900 848,163 160,013 25. 10 - 1.033.286 125614
Lab Equipments 1.916.895 (4,690) 5 2 1,912,205 1,736,656 10,259 63952 - 1.810.866 101.327
Motor Vehicles 3,177,669 (1,078,236) = = 2,099,433 1,813,958 (991,727) 269.079 - 1.091.310 1008123
Motor Cycles 1,297,029 (397.821) - - 899,208 L115.191 (383,497) 58.5301 - 789,993 109,213
Electrical Installation 873.614 1.517,770 - - 8.391,385 (340,948) 7.586.906 174.772 - 7.420.730 970,633
HT Power Line 87,646 (3.421) - - 84226 87.646 (3.421) - - 84226 -
Computers 1.819.116 598,447 670,994 - 3,088,558 1,373.847 542229 270.288 3 2.186.364 902,194
Sub Total 157,511.668 53.850,113 308.202 (1,087.529) 211,082,454 68,739,574 58.946.818 13.730.930 (630.870) 140.766 433 0315972
Add: Capital Work-in-Progress - - - - - - - - - -
Total Tangible Assets 157.511.668 53.850.113 808.202 (1.087.529) 211.082.454 68,739.574 58.946.818  13.730.930 (630.870Y 140,766,453 70).313972

Intangible Assets-Software

838,718

(33.513)

825.205

622,861

694.254

130,972
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NOTE 3 - ROU ASSETS | !

(a) Following are the carrving value ol Right ol'Use Assets for the period ended March 31, 2024:

Particulars Gross Block Depreciation and Amortisation Net Block
As al As at Far the
: x - i o) As at "March 31, : < 5 Asat 'March | As at "March
April 01,2023 Other Adjustment Additions 2024 April 01,2023 Other Vi 31,2024 31,2004
Leasehold Land 4,594,884 471.390 - 5.066273 2,979,984 330,985 385.633 3.,696.603 1.369.671
Ships 701.914,139 72.009.499 - 773.923.638 444400475 49581986 60,907,891 A34890.352 | 219.033.286
Total 706,509,023 72.480.889 - 778989911 H7.380,439 49.912.971 61,293,524 SRH.586,955 220,402,957
Particulars Gross Block Depreciation and Amortisation Net Block
As at Asal As at For the Asat As at
h Y April 01, 2022 Other Adjustment Additions March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 Other vear March 31, 2023 |March 31, 2023
Leasehold Land 4.781.491 (186.607) - 4.594.884 2.713.203 (64.784) 331.565 24979984 1.614.899
Ships 730.420.220 (28,506.081) - 701,914,139 401,197,737 (9.165.497) 52368233 444400475 | 257.513.664
Total 735.201.711 (28.692.688) - 706.509,023 403.910.940 (9.230.281)  52.699.800 447380439 | 239,128.363

(b) Lease Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. nol included in the measurement of lease liabilitics;
¥ in Crores

e Period ended Period ended
March March 31,2023
Expenses relating to short-term leases 0.21 H
(¢) Maturity analysis of lease liabilitics— contractual undiscounted cash flows:
¥ in Crores
e R Period ended Period ended
March March 31,2023
Less than one year 12 I
One to five years 30 41
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at March 31,2024 42 53
{d) Movement of [.case Liabilities
. Period ended Year ended
ot Ay March___ March 31.2023
Opening Lease liabilities 33 60
Add: Interest during the vear 2) 8
Less; Payment of Lease Liabilities (13 (13)
Currency transaction adjustment 4 3)
Closing Leasc liabilitics
Current lease liability 12 1
Non-Current lease liability 30 41

(¢) The Weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 3.5% has been applied for measuring the lease liability at the date of initial application.

(D) Amounts recoznised in Statement of Cash Flows:

s Period ended Period ended
articulars March March 31.2023
Total cash outflow for lcases 13 2]
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NOTEA

INVENTORIES: }Valued atloser of Cost or net realisable value (exeept Scrap))

Finshed Goods
AL Factory
In Transit

Stores & Spares
At Factory
Less-Provision

Packing Maerials
Al Factory

BPD Praducts

38,407,557

27,120,787
217.123)

9,411,458

683,087

»

As at Alarch

31,2014

160,312 861

218,720,618

26,203,665

9411458

683,087

255,018,827

As at March 31,

2023

3R.680.00
89.913.926
148,590,020
17412542
17.112,512

43437399
43.437.3w

209443 961

917,123/~ (March 31, 2023 Nil ) has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss towards write down of inventories considered obselete. The Company follows
suitable provisioning norms for writing down the value of Inventories towards slow moving, non-maving and surplus inventory. Provision as on date is 917.123/- (March 3 1.

2023 Nil).

NOTES
INVESEMENTS-OTHERS

Investment in Government Securities-Treasury Bill Investment

278223618

Investment in Government Securities-Repo Investiment 15,062.630 53.201.586
18,062,630 3131425203
NOTE 6
TRADE RECEIVABLES:
Considered good, Secured 242,886,825 189.272 857
Considered goad, Unsccured 122,274,693 66,907,489
Significant increase in Credit Risk/credit impaired 2,850,290 6,310,170
36801 1,807 262 490,516
Less: Allowances tor credit losses (2.850,290) (6.310,170)
365,161,517 256,180,346
Amount due from related parties 2,711,820 27,655,705
367,873,337 283.836.051
Trade Receivables due from Related Parties included above 2,711,820 (March 31, 2023: 27.655,705)
Note 6.1 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule
H ) LT
o WRereita iz bile Quistanding from due date of Payment 0
not due Less than 6 6 months- | R TrT 23 vears More than 3
Months vear d : VEars
(i) Undisputed I'rade receivables —
’ 241,164,575 123,780,264 55578 2,711,820 - 161,100 367.873,337
considered good
(ll)pllldlspl.llh‘d I'rade Receivables - ) 2,850,200 2.850.290
credit impaired
Total As at 31,03.2024 241,164,575 123,780,264 55,578 2,711.820 - 3,011,390 370,723,627
Recrivabichnt Quistanding from due date of Payment -
Asat 31.03.2023 Less than 6 6 monihs- | More than 3 T'otal
not due ; 1-2 years 2-3 years
Months year years
(i) Undisputed I'rade receivables — ]
: 190,769,416 64,622,096 538,519 - 250315 H 256,180,346
considered good
(i) ljhlldlspl.lllcd I'tade Receivables — E 6.310,170 6,310,170
credit impaired
Total As at 31.03.2023 190,769 416 64,622,006 338,519 - 250315 6,310,170 262,490,516
NOTE?
CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Balance with banks 79,385,943 36.139.987
Cash on hand 163,661 100,160
’ 79,549,604 16,240,147
79,549,604 36,240,147
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NOTE 8
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advances to suppliers

Balances with Government and other Authorities
Security Deposit

Prepaid Expenses

Advances to Employees

Others

NOTE 9
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Net)

»

31915140
333,735,239

4.974.737
409,230
3,756,819

374,791,166

40.827.618

221.680414
20.338.881
4.878.017
102.684
7.305.816
295,133,430

Recogmised in

Recognised

Particulars et March 31, 2023 | statement of Rccogn‘lscd B directly in other
2024, ¢ OCl ;

profit or loss equity
Deferred Tax Assets:
Retirement benefit obligation 5,717,465 3.245.201 357,880 1,781,458
ROU Assets 60,084,004 80,664,088 (28,855 428)
Impairment provision on trade receivables 835,087 1,893,051 (1,232,172)
Foreign currency translation gain/(loss) - - 8,802,478
Deferred Tax Liabilities: 66,656,555 85,802,340 (29,729.721) 1,781,458 8,802,478
Payment allowed under tax not expensed in books (17,670,943) (20,195.526) 4,596,445
Foreign currency translation gain/(loss) - - (2.071.863)

(17,670,943) (20,195,526) 4,596,445 - {2,071,863)

Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) 48,985,612 65,606,814 (25.133.276) 1,781,458 6,730,615

Recognised in Al Recognised
Particulars Marnal, March 31, 2022 sta!clgnent of Recognjscd - dirccti;' in other

2023 = ocCl :

profit or loss equity
Deferred Tax Assets:
Retirement benefit obligation 3,245,201 2,840,912 (141,298) (7.594) &
Carried forward tax losses - 112,552,225 | (120,287.643) - -
ROU Assets 80,664,088 65,991,446 1,240,326 - -
Impairment provision on trade receivables 1,893,051 1,654 403 (83.850) - -
Effect of changes in tax rate - 39,123,755 - =
Foreign currency translation gain/(loss) - - - (17.080,342)
Deferred Tax Liabilities: 85,802,340 183,038,986 (80,148,710) (7,594) (17,080,342)
Effect of changes in tax rate - - (4.173,949) - -
Payment allowed under tax not expensed in books (20,195,526) (19.527,660) 2,901,697 - -
Foreign currency translation gain/(loss) - - - - 604,386

(20,195,526) (19,527.660) (1,272,252) - 604,386

Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) 65,606,814 163,511,326 (81,420,962) (7.594) (16,475.957)
NOTE 10 As at Asat
SHARE CAPITAL March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised

100,000,000 Equity shares of * 10 each (Previous year 100,000,000)

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

50,000,000 Equity shares of * 10 each fully paid-up. (Previous Year 50,000,000)

NOTE 11
PROVISIONS

For Employee Benefits

NOTE 12

LEASE LIABILITY

Lease Liability

1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
138,943,308 126,015,369
.
Non-Current Current
As at March As at March As at March As at March
31,2024 31,2023 31, 2024 31,2023
14,623,816 7.814972 4,434,400 3,002,365
14,623,816 7,814,972 4,434 400 3,002,365
Non-Current Current

As at March

As at March

As at March

As at March

31, 2024 31,2023 31,2024 31.2023
300,322,956 413,256,870 118,990,343 113,137,089
300,322,956 413,256,870 118,990,343 113,137,089




NOTE 13

TRADE PAYABLES »
Due to Suppliers 135,135,779 28.303.914
Due to Related Parties 231,322,703 289411133
Liabilities For Other Expenses 36,072,544 30,673,047

422,531,026 368.388.043

Note 13.1
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

S i Outstaiiding Outstanding from due date of Payment =
Particulars Unbilled dues baf noCduwe I.ess than | 12 years 23 years More than 3 I'otal
year years
(1) Others 422,531,026 - - = 422,531,026
(1) MSME -
Total As on 31.03,2024 - 422,531,026 - - - - 422,531,026
» Qutstanding from due date of Payment
Particulars Unbilled dues Quistanding Less than 1 More than 3 Total
but not due b 1-2 years 2-3 years
FERL years
(1) Others 368.388.093 - - - - 368,388.093
(1) MSME
Total As on 31.03,2023 - 368,388,093 - - - - 368,385,093
NOTE 14
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provident Fund 1,292,574 3,113,721
Other Taxes Payable 13,910,785 11,657,062
Own Your Car Scheme 253,632 213,440
Obligation from customer contracts 109,497,904 128,963,981
Advance from customers 35,797,013 42 056,983
IISI]!'}'SI!'JD'J 186,005,187
NOTE 15
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Employee benefit payable 37,388 64.489
Deposit from Dealers 22,166,058 14,699,552
22,203,447 14,764,042
NOTE 16 S
Sale of Products & Services (Gross)
Sale of Products 4,927,402,638 4682641793

4,927,402,638

4.682.641.793

——i L

The revenue can be classified into two main categories: trade and non-trade. "Trade" revenue encompasses sales of cement bags to hardware stores nationwide, while "Non-
Trade" revenue consists of cement sales for project purposes. In comparison to 2023, revenue has declined by 10% primarily due to a reduction in the selling price of cement.
In the Trade category, the average sales price decreased from INR. 539 to INR. 425 per bag, while in the Non-Trade category, it decreased from INR. 568 to INR. 541 per 50
kg bag. and from INR. 10,912 to LKR. 9,244 in Bulk sales.

Despite the decrease in revenue, the quantity sold up to March 2024 has seen a notable increase, rising from 495,351 MT to 590,665 MT compared to the previous year.
However, the impact of the increase in the quantity sold has been negated by the price reduction.

NOTE 17
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

Scrap Sales 81,730 48,088

BPD Products 659,893 -

Miscellaneous Income / Receipts, Others 20,622,100 40,237,625
21,363,723 40,285,713

The main reason for the reduction in is the significant decrease in Miscellancous Sales coupled with an increase in expenses associated with these sales. This category
typically includes income generated from customers who directly import cement from Ultratech Cement - India, often without paying duties, particularly for government
projects, for which the Company charges a Handling fee per MT.

During the year, the quantity handled by the Company under this has been decreased where in 2023 it was 54,732 MT, where as in 2024 it is 38.300 MT primarily driving
resulting in reduction.

NOTE 18
OTHER INCOME
Interest Income on

Investments measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 42,868,153 215,317,890
Bank and Other Accounts 236,796 5.664,228
43,104,949 220982118

Exchange Gain y 46,710,217 -
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 82,792 517,549
89,897,958 221.499.667
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NOTE 19
COST OF RAW MATERIALS PURCHASES

Purchase and Incidental Expenses -&43'230.?31 3.444,179.851
4,648,230,731 34440179851
4.648.230,731 3.444.179.851

The Cost of Sales primarily consists of the consumption of cement, bags, spare parts, and the depreciation of lease assets. notably the vessel. The most significant component

within the Cost of Sales is the cost of cement consumed. encompassing various factars such as the cost of FOB. freight charges, port and airport levies. commissions,
customs charges, insurance. and other related expenses associated with purchasing cement from India. Given the surge in cement demand compared to the previous year. as
explained under the Revenue. the Company has responded by increasing cement imports accordingly. Consequently. the costs associated with cement iimportation have risen
compared to the previous year

During the year. the Sri Lankan government has increased the import tax (CESS) on imported cement. With effect from 17 June 2023, the import tax on Tkg of artificially
coloured or uncoloured cement has risen [rom INR (067 to INR 1.30

NOTE 20

CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

Closing Stock

Finished Goods & GIT 218,720,618 58.680.094
‘t\f]d / (Lcsqs} : Ex‘changc ra!c ﬂucfuntion on account of average rate (13.449,928) (6472.159)
transferred to currency translation reserve
205,270,690 52207935

Opening stock
Finished Goods & GIT 148,594,020 76,073,987
Add / (Less) : Exchange rate fluctuation on account of average rate

i : 5,169,273 (11.032,106)
transferred to currency translation reserve
153,763,293 65,041,882
Add: Decrease / (Increase) in Stocks (51,507,397) 12.833.947
NOTE 21
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 64,732,906 64,774,714
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 6,073,474 5.613.089
Contribution to Gratuity 3,006,133 2,091,490
Stafl’ Welfare Expenses 3,560,783 1,647,698
'?'?!3?3!296 74,126.992
NOTE 22
Freight & Forwarding Expenses
On Finished Products 71,686,252 45,180,622

71,686,252 45,180,622

22.1 This primarily encompass Freight Outward charges, Travelling expenses including Food & Lodging, and Advertisement costs, Among these, the largest portion of
distribution expenses is attributed to Freight Outward charges, covering the delivery costs incurred by the company for transporting cement to customers' sites, particularly
for bulk sales. During the year, there has been a significant increase in Freight Outward charges due to the increase in the sales volume number of deliveries required to meet
demand.

Further, expenses related to "Travelling - Food & Lodging" have increased by INR. 6 Mn. This escalation is primarily due to the prevailing inflationary trends, resulting in
higher food prices and increased lodging costs compared to the previous year.

NOTE 23
OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores, Spare Parts, Paper Real & Components 17,637,999 12,900,797
Consumption of Packing Materials 178,484,587 151,650,878
Repairs to Plant and Machinery 1,573,134 1,025,045
Insurance 621,916 485.660
Rent (including Lease Rent) 2,103,773 2,236,723
Rates and Taxes 592,742 435,931
Director Fees 78,240 33,635
Sales Promotion expenses 9,232,262 7,732,559
Exchange (Gain)/ Loss - 386,014,797
Miscellaneous Expenses 45,343,067 34,065,447
255,667,719 596.581.472
NOTE 24 R R
NET FINANCE (INCOMEYEXPENSES
Finance Charges on bank overdraft 118,467 243,686
Exchange (Gain)/Loss on Lease Liability (Note 24,1) (35,012,121) 62,344,153
Interest on lease liability 16,669,796 17,678,188
(18,223,858) 80.266.027

24.1 Sri Lankan Rupee (LKR) was significantly appreciated against US Dollar (USD) from LKR, 327/- per USD as of | April 2023 to LKR, 301/- per USD as of 31 March
2024 which has resulted in significant exchanges gain this year compared to the exchange losses in the prior year .

NOTE 25 ¥
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Depreciation 16,128,634 13,794.776
Depreciation on ROU 61,293,524 52,699,800
77,422,158 66.494.576

27



UltraTech Cement Lanka (Private) Limited »

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements (Contd.)

Note 26 - Approval of Financial Statements:
The statutory financial statements prepared in Sri Lankan Rupees were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 18"
April, 2024. These financial statements have been prepared and authorized on 18" April 2024 for consolidation purposes.

Note 27 - Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for) (Ind AS 37):

(A) Court of appeal case no CA/Writ/28/19

This case has been filed by the Company against the Director General of Customs and the inquiring officer appointed in terms of the Customs Ordinance
for the customs case No PCAD/HQO/091/2016 initiated at the Sri Lanka Customs, on the alleged basis that the Company has not declared the unloading
charges (stevedoring charges) paid to the Sri Lanka Ports Authority in relation to imported cement.

The matter is scheduled for argument on 1% August 2024.

Since there is no probable future claims and assessments in relation to the above case, it is of the view that no provision is required against the above
litigation.

(B) Court of appeal case no CA/Writ 324/2023

This case has been filed by the Company against the Director General of Customs and the inquiring officer appointed in terms of the Customs Ordinance
for the customs case No PCAD/2022/00064/CCR/01109 initiated at the Sri Lanka Customs, on the alleged basis that freight declaration by the Company
for Sri Lankan Flagged vessel = MV Mahanuwara is not in line with Customs Ordinance, and it should include certain charges, which are considered for
declaring freight for Foreign flagged vessels,

The matter is scheduled for argument on 30" May 2024.

Since there is no probable future claims and assessments in relation to the above case, it is of the view that no provision is required against the above
litigation.

(C) Assessment on Dividend Tax

The Department of Inland Revenue has raised an assessment on income tax for the year of assessment 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18 disputing the
dividend tax rate of 7.5% applied to the dividend paid to the shareholders domiciled in India claimed under Sri Lanka India double tax treaty. As per
the assessment, dividend tax at the rate of 10% is assessed.

1t is of the view that the Company has followed due process and acted in accordance with the prevailing laws in its tax submissions for and therefore,

the above assessments have no rationale or basis in law. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the financial statements.

There were no other material contingent liabilities as at the reporting date which require adjustments or disclosure in the accounts, except for the
matters stated above.

Note 28 - Employee Benefits (Ind AS 19):
(A) Defined Benefit Plans:
(a) Gratuity:

The gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving the services of the Company
and is in accordance with the Rules of the Company for payment of gratuity.

Inherent Risk '

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In
particular, this exposes the Company to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, inadeguate return on
underlying plan assets, This may result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump
sum in nature, the plan is not subject to any longevity risks.

(b) Leave Accrual:

Leave accrual is the amount of leave that an employee earned as per the company's employee benefits policy, but which has not yet been used
or paid and this is a liability for the company. %
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in INR
Barticulare A _A_s_at_March 31, 20_24__ o As at March 31, 2023
Gratuity Leave Accrual Gratuity Leave Accrual
(i) Change in defined benefit
obllgatlon
Balance at the begmnmg of the year 9,763,872 1,053,465 11,837,135 =
Adjustment of:
Current Service C05t 921,556 97,703 993,458 79,199
Interes_t_(;pe_t____ 10 1,793,378 193,495 | 1,518,080 217,460
Past service cost relating to plan ] 1 ) L
amendments Vol
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in
| Other Comprehensive Income: s b edarad dameitens Lo 4 ST i —l _ wmddasin
3 Change in Fmancral Assumptrons 4,937,470 495,993 (948,752) (92,412)
- Experience Changes 146,301 358,430 (433,881) -
Benefits Paid / Payable {Other (401,362) (302,085) (3,202,168) 849,218
Balance at the end of the year 17,161,215 1,897,001 9,763,872 1,053,465
(i) Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in
the Balance Sheet
Poﬁf;:ttj::'“e of Defined Benefit (17,161,215) (1,897,001) (9,763,872) (1,053,465)
Net Asset / (Liability) in the (I T (R e RS T
Balance Sheet (17,161,215) (1,897,001) (9,763,872) (1,053,465)
(i) Expenses recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 921,556 97,703 993, 458 79; 199
Interest Cost 1,793,378 193,495 1,518,080 217,460
Past service cost relating to plan : . s _
amendments e e
Amount charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss 2,714,934 291,198 2,511,538 296,658
(iv) | Re-measurements recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income
| (OCI): r e
Changes in Flnancral Assumpt]ons (4,937,42_!‘.1)_ | (495,993) (948_,_7_5%)_ Tt (92,412)
Experience Adjustments (146,301) (358,430) (433,881) -
Loss / (Gain) recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI): (5,083,771) (854,423) (1,382,633) (92,412)
(v) | Maturity profile of defined benefit
obligation: ™ O
Within the next 12 months ! 2,779,034 2 3 2,455,039 = - l
Between 1 and 5 years 5,576,461 L 6,457,178 %
Between 5 and 10 years. A 21,452,964 - 2 18,935,82‘_%______ e B
10 Years and above 153,303,560 - 127,285,309 -
(vi) | Sensitivity analysis for significant
| assumptions:* e L e e
Increase/(Decrease) in present
value of defined benefits obligation
at the end of the year e i | R ' oy e
1% increase in discount rate (1,174,284) (116,526) (538,993) (52 802)
1% decrease in dlscount rate 1,325,754 130,769 L 595,740 58,002
1% increase in salary esca1atron rate 1 296 435 127,151 614,651 59,505
1% decrease in salary escalation rate {1,169,520) (115 399) (563,595) (54,929)
1% Increase in employee turnover rate 83,837 6,591 268,973 20,616
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[ 1% decrease in employee turnover rate | (57,060) ] (4,254) (189,516) (13,970}_}
i As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
Gratuity Leave Accrual Gratuity Leave Accrual

(vii) | Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate (p.a.) 120% |  12.0% 17.75% 17.75%

’ | AeE . 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 59

JROeR e Turnover: 11.0% 11.0% 11.0% 7.5% 50% 2.5% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%

GA 1983 Mortality Table
- Selected Age 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 59
Mortality tables Rate for Male  0.0377% 0.0464% 0.0607% 0.0860% 0.1238% 0.2183% 0.3909% 0.6131% 0.8384%
| ey Rate for Female 0.0189% 0.0253% 0.0342% 0.0476% 0.0665% 0.101% 0.1647% 0.2541% 0.3821%

Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 11% 11% 11% 11%

Retirement age:

Management - 60 Yrs. 60 Yrs. 60 Yrs. 60 Yrs.

Non-Management- 60 Yrs. 60 Yrs. 60 Yrs. 60 Yrs.
(viii) \l;\;?.:ggg%dbﬁg:gzﬂe duration of Defined 8.3 Yrs 7.4 Yrs 6.9 Yrs 6.3 Yrs

* These Sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other
changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analyses.
@ The plan does not invest directly in any property occupied by the Company nor in any financial securities issued by the Company.
(ix) Discount Rate:
The discount rate is based on the prevailing market rates of Sri Lankan government securities for the estimated term of obligations.
(x) Salary Escalation Rate:
The estimates of future salary increases are considered taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
(xi) The Company’s expected contribution during next year is ¥ 0.36 Crores. (March 31, 2023 ¥ 0.26 Crores).
(b) Provident Fund:

During the year company has contributed to Employee Provident Fund and Employee Trust Fund.

Amount recognized as an expense under the head "Contribution to Provident and other Funds” of Statement of Profit and Loss ¥ 0.61 Crores
(March 31, 2023 % 0.56 Crores).

Note 29 - Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108):

The Company has presented segment information in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, as per Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments’, no
disclosures related to segments are presented in these standalone financial statements.

Note 30 - Related party disclosures (Ind AS 24):

(A) List of Related Parties:

% Shareholding and
Principal Place of Voting Power
Name of the Related Party Busthass Xa ot o
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
(i) Holding Company: ;
UltraTech Cement Limited India 80% 80%
_(ii) Subsidiary ofUtCL: il " 5 e Wi, o
2 United Arab -
Star Cement C_o. LLC, Dubai Erriratis 0% 0% :
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(a) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

A e in INR
: . Year Ended Year Ended
Nature of Transaction/Related Parties March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Purc_ha_se o_f G_?pds: _ T Ty
_ _U_Itf_aTg_c_h Cement Limited 2,164,930,716 1,687,876,782
Star Cement Co. LLC = 171,130,153
Total 2,164,930,716 1,859,006,935
Services rece_ive_d__ﬂ_‘qrr]; Sl A e
__l!!t__r_a‘_l'ggr_l__(_I_emen_t_l___i_rl]i_t_eg = _for the accounting period 128,747,823 104,174,938
Advance Paid:
UltraTech Cement Limited — for the future period = ”
Total 128,747,823 104,174,938
(b) Outstanding balances:
in INR
A i As at As at
Nature of Transaction/Related Parties March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Payables:
UltraTech Cement Limited 231,322,703 289,411,133
Star Cement Co. LLC = z
Total 231,322,703 289,411,133
Trade Receivable:
Star Cement Co. LLC 2,711,820 27,655,705
Total 2,711,820 27,655,705
(c) Compensation of KMP of the Company:
in INR
Nature of transaction Year Ended March Year Ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Fee paid to directors 78,240 33,635
Short-term employee benefits 6,876,092 13,687,097
Post-employment benefits 872,142 =
Total compensation paid to KMP 7,826,474 13,720,732

Terms and Conditions of transactions with Related Parties:

The sales to and purchases from related parties including fixed assets are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that
prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This

assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party
operates.
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Note 31 - Income Taxes (Ind AS 12):

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate:

Particulars

March 31, 2024

In %
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Applicable tax rate 30 27
Effect of Tak-Exempt Income T s — 0 0
_Iéf_l’_e;:-ﬁudi'"h-lb_r;.-—Deductiblé éxpenses_m RN AT L —D ! L 656 i
 Effect of Allowances for tax purpose = y 0 (5.93)
Effect of Téx_p_a_id ata Iow; r_aé i _ : 0 0
 Effect of changes in tax rate (deferred) NV ...
- _Effect _cnf Previous_\,'gér adjustments i ] v _f.;_ _ =) 0
Others 3 y i =L i “o|  azse)
Effective Tax Rate 0 23.30
Effect of Reversal of Accumulated Provision for Tax and Recognition of MAT credit 0 0
Net Effective Tax Rate 0 23.30
Note 32 - Earnings per Share (EPS) (Ind AS 33):
in INR
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2023

(A) Basic EPS:

Particulars

March 31, 2024

(i) Net profit/(loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (38,679,457) 471,868,004
(i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (Nos.) 50,000,000 50,000,000
Basic EPS (%) (i)/(ii) (0.77) 9.44
Note 33 - Auditors’ remuneration (excluding service tax/VAT) and expenses:
in INR
Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2023

(a) Statutory Auditors:

32

Audit fees (including Quarterly Limited Reviews) 445,154 327,380
Note 34 — '
The following expenses are included in the different heads of expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

in INR

Year Ended March 31, 2024 Year Ended March 31, 2023
icul Raw Materials Power Total Raw Materials Power Total
Parbicuiars Consumed and Fuel Consumed and Fuel
Consumed Consumed
Stores and Spares Consumed 196,122,586 17,387,489 | 213,510,075, 164,551,675 9,517,234 | 174,068,909
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Note 35 (A) — Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Ind AS 107):

in INR
Particulars Marcl:‘ ;:tzom Marci?sala i3
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets at amortised cost
Trade Receivables e 365,161,517 365,161,517 | 256,180,346 256,180,346
 Cash and Bank Balances 79,549,604 | 79,549,604 | 36,240,147 36,240,147
Investments 18,062,630 18,062,630 | 331,425,203 331,425,203
Total 462,773,751 462,773,751 623,845,696 623,845,696
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
TradePayabes | 363,746,662 | 363,746,662 290,059,342 290,059,342
Lease Liability i d| 419,313,299 419,313,299 526,393,959 526,393,959
Total 783,059,961 783,059,961 816,453,301 816,453,301

Note 35 (B) — Fair Value measurements (Ind AS 113):

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in an ordinary transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at measurement date under the current market condition regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using other valuation techniques.

The Company has established the following fair value hierarchy that categorizes the values into 3 levels. The inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value of financial instruments are:

Level 1: This hierarchy uses quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (For example traded bonds, over the counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

The management assessed that cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans, trade payables and other financial assets and liabilities approximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The fair values of the quoted investments/units of mutual fund schemes are based on market price/net asset value at the reporting date.

(a)

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves
and an appropriate discount factor.

(b)

L1
The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is calculated as the present value determined using forward exchange rates and interest
rate curve of the respective currencies.

(c)

The fair value of currency swap is calculated as the present value determined using forward exchange rates, currency basis spreads between
the respective currencies, interest rate curves and an appropriate discount factor.

(d)

The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis. The discount rates used is based on
management estimates.

(e)

Note 36 — Financial Risk Management Objectives (Ind AS 107):
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The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprises of borrowings, trade and other payables. The Tiain L?Err‘ﬁc;se of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets, other than derivatives include trade and other
receivables, investments and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. The Company uses derivative financial
instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts, principal only swaps, cross currency swaps that are entered
to hedge foreign currency risk exposure, interest rate swaps, coupon only swaps to hedge variable interest rate exposure and commodity fixed price

swaps to hedge commodity price risks. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.

The sources of risks which the Company is exposed to and their management is given below:

Risk

Exposure Arising From

Measurement

Management

A) Foreign Currency Risk

* II) Credit Risk

III) Liquidity Risks

“Committed commercial
transaction

Financial asset and Liabilities not
denominated in INR

‘Trade receivables, Investments
and Bank balances

Cash Flb\}v'Forecasting
Sensitivity Analysis

Ageing analysis, Credit Rating

“Borrowings and Other Liabilities

and Liquid Investments

Rolling cash flow forecasts
Broker Quotes

(a) Forward foreign exchange
contracts

(b) Foreign currency options

(c) Principal only/Currency swaps

(a) Credit limit & credit worthiness
monitoring,

(b) Criteria based approval
process

| (a) Adequate unused credit lines

and borrowing facilities

(b) Portfolio Diversification

The Company has standard operating procedures and investment policy for deployment of surplus liquidity, which allows investment in fixed deposits

and Treasury bills.
Compliances of these policies and principles are reviewed by the management on periodical basis.

(I) Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument.
The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices, equity
prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments
including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables and borrowings.

(A) Foreign Currency Risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates, The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the foreign currency borrowings,
raw materials and spare parts and capital expenditure,

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the
hedged exposure.

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions. The Company follows established risk management policies
and standard operating procedures,

5 in INR
Outstanding foreign currency exposure (Gross) as at March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Payables A Bt e | I A L8] Jis o e
ush i A Siplise LNl 00,803 || 201,753,428"
Euro al o548, SO SraAlrER - :
Others 3 -
Foreign currency sensitivity on unhedged exposure: "
100 bps increase in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax.
in INR
Particulars As at As at
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March 31, 2024

uso 2,286,109 2,617,554
EURO - -
Others - -

Note: If the rate is decreased by 100 bps profit will decrease by an equal amount.

(II) Credit Risk Management:

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial
loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing / investing activities, including
deposits with banks/financial institutions. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy for each customer and based on the
evaluation credit limit of each customer is defined. Wherever the Company assesses the credit risk as high the exposure is backed by either bank
guarantee / letter of credit or security deposits.

Total Trade receivable as on March 31, 2024 is ¥ 36.52 Crores (March 31, 2023 X 25,62 Crores)

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. A single largest customer has total exposure in sales 1.3 %
(March 31, 2023: 0.6%) and in receivables 18.8 % (March 31, 2023: 12,9 %)

As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of
default payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk.

As per policy receivables are classified into different buckets based on the overdue period ranging from less than 1 year, 1 - 2 years, 2 - 3 years, more
than three years.

Movement of provision for doubtful debts:

in INR
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening provision = - 6,310,170 6,893,345
Add: Provided during the year = ST (279,499)
" Effect of foreign currency conversion s 394,792 (303,676)
Less: Utilised / write-off during the year (3,854,672) z
Closing Provision 2,850,290 6,310,170

Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equivalent and Deposits with Banks/Financial Institutions

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks / financial institutions is generally low as the said deposits have been made with the
banks / financial institutions who have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies.

Credit Risk on Derivative Instruments are generally low as Company enters into the Derivative Contracts with the reputed Banks and Financial
Institutions.

Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved Financial Institutions. Investments primarily include investment in quoted Bonds issued by
Government.

Total Non-current and current investments excluding Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates 25 on March 31, 2024 is ¥ 1.81 Crores (March 31,
2023 % 33.14 Crores)

(III) Liquidity risk management:
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Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity
risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit
facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company's treasury team is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition,
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s liquidity position through rolling
forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities and investments held for managing the risk at the
reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

in INR
As at March 31, 2024 Less than 1to5 More than 5 Total
1 Year Years Years
Trade Payables 363,746,662 - - 363,746,662
As at March 31, 2023 kendmn Akas © MEesiE S Total
1 Year Years Years
Trade Payables 290,059,342 - - 290,059,342
Note 37 - Distribution made and proposed (Ind AS 1):
in INR
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Proposed dividends on Equity shares:

(March 31, 2023: % 0.00 per share)

Proposed dividends on Preference shares:

Final dividend for the year

Final dividend for the yea;r ended on March_3 1,2024: X OE per share -

Total Dividend proposed

Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at March 31.

Note 38 - Financial Ratios

Sr. : Numerator - Denominator - % .
No. Ratio Description Description FY24 FY23 Vabance Reason for variance
1 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.50 1.58 4.81
(in times) excluding Current
e - ) . |aBOTCOWIAGSE.  _ ldeeeelicgpenl - — UL
2 Return on Profit for the year Average Net (10.03%) 391.53% 102.56
Equity Ratio (in worth
re—m i Dl e o e——y O e ke —
3 Inventory Sale of Products Average 21,22 21.48 1.22
Turnover Ratio | and Services Inventory
| (in times) == dizg e =t EET :
4 Trade Sale of Products Average Trade 15.86 16.28 . - 2:b7
Receivables and Services Receivable
turnover Ratio
i{intimes)= "} = aes == s o =i 5 e
5 Trade Payables | Cost of Sales Average Trade 14.22 2.91 (388.47)
turnover Ratio Payable
(intimes) | _ = M : .
6 Net Capital Average working Sale of Products 0.08 0.02 (285.82)
turnover ratio Capital and Services
N (in times) e Ve = =l = i = i -
7 Net profit ratio | Profit for the year Sale of Products (0.01) 0.10 107.79
_ | (intimes) T | and Services o T S /= S—————
8 Return on Profit for the year Average of (0.10) 5.11 102.00
Capital + Tax +Finance (Networth +
employed (in Costs Current and Non
times)
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current
borrowings)

9 | Return on Treasury Income Weighted treasury 0.25 0.28 12.87
Investment (in investment
%)

Note 39 - Revenue (Ind AS 115)

(A) The Company is primarily in the Business of Import and sale of cement. The product shelf life being short, all sales are made at a point in
time and revenue recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obligations which is typically upon dispatch/ delivery. The Company has a
credit evaluation policy based on which the credit limits for the trade receivables are established, the Company does not give significant credit

period resulting in no significant financing component.

(B) Revenue recognised from Contract liability (Advances from Customers):

in INR

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2024

Year Ended
March 31, 2023

Closing Contract liability

109,497,904

123,963,981

The Contract liability outstanding at the beginning of the year has been recognised as revenue during the year ended March 31, 2024,

(C) Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss:

in INR

Partictilars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per Contract price 5,235,237,942 5,041,600,437
Less: Discounts and incentives (307,835,304) (358,958,644)
Revenue as per statement of profit and loss 4,927,402,638 4,682,641,793

Note 40 — Events after reporting date

No circumstances have arisen since the reporting date which would require adjustments to or disclosure in the financial statements.

Note 41 — Comparative Information

Where necessary, information has been reclassified to conform to current year's presentation and classification.

Signatures to Note *26’ to 41"

In terms of our report j:t/afN.
«
Director

Colombo, April 18, 2024
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YEAR 2023/2024

- MONTHWISE RECEIPT AND DESPATCH DETAILS

ULTRATECH CEMENT LANKA PVT LTD
FROM APRIL 2023 - MARCH 2024

ALL FIGURES IN MT

RECEIPTS CONSUMPTION
MONTH INDIA INDONISIA LOCAL G. TOTAL STOCK
GCW PENNA SAURASHTRA PADANG
OPENNING STOCK 7422
April 43,303 - - - - 43,303 35,705
May 42 566 - - - - 42 566 38,567
June 35,513 - - - 9,998 45,511 45,259
July 34 B77 - = - - 34,877 - 44 642
August 53,844 - - 19,589 - 73,433 50,767
September 38,789 - * 5 - 38,789 46,036
October 57,011 - - - - 57,011 46,386
November 35,344 - - - - 35,344 43,897
December 35,979 - - - - 35,979 54,845
January 81,094 - - - - 81,094 55,253
February 34,022 - - - 9,958 43,980 60,055
March 40,111 - - - 18,265 58,377 69,062
TOTAL 532,453 - - 19,689 38,221 590,263 590,668
CLOSING STOCK 7,019
Goods in transit as at 215t March 2024
Vessel BIL date Qty (Mt} B/L No
M.V ADVAITA 28.03,2024 12,240 UTC/ADVAITAIDY/24
M.V ADVAITA 28.03 2024 9066 UTCIADVAITASD1/24




UltraTech Cement Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.
=" Pperiod: 31stMarch 2024

Inter pany Transactic

Details

Us §

Figures in US §

Sr.No.

Particular

FY24

uTcL

UTCL's Parent Company & Fellow Subsidiaries

UTCL - Subsidiary

UTCL - Joint Venture

Specify Unit Amt

Specify Unit

Amt.

Bhiwani
Textiles Ltd

Sun God
Trading &
Invt. Ltd.

Samruddhi
Swastik
Trading &
Invt, Ltd,

UltraTech
Cement
Lanka (P} Ltd

UltraTech
Cement
Middle East
Investments

PT UltraTEch
Mining
Indonesia

Harish
Cement Ltd

1 Sales of Goods |
a}|Raw materials
Gross Amount

VAT
Excise
Net Amount

b) | Stores & Spares
Gross Amount
VAT

Excise

2 Net Amount

¢} |Finished Goods
Gross Amount
VAT

Excise

Net Amount

d)| Services (pl specify)

2 Interest
Income
Expenditure

3 Other Income
Rent
Qthers (please specify)

4 Purchase of Good
a) |Raw matenals-U.AE

Gross Amount

VAT

Excise

Net Amount

b)|Stores & Spares
Gross Amount
VAT

Excise

Net Amount

¢) |Finished Goods-India
-UAE
c)|Finished Goods
Gross Amount
VAT

Excise

MNet Amount

d)| Services -india
UAE

ervices

25641433

1,530,486

Dakshin
Cements Ltd

Bhaskarpara | Madanpur

Coal (North )Coal
Company Ltd | Company Pvt
Ltd




v UltraTech Cement Lanka [Pvt) Lid.

Period:

Inter-ccmpany Transactions/Balances Details

31st March 2024

Uss FiguresinUS $
FY24
Sr.No. UTCL UTCL's Parent C y & Fellow Subsidiaries UTCL - Subsidiary UTCL - Joint Venture
Particular G Grasim Sun God Samruddhi UltraTech UltraTech | PT UltraTEch Harish Dakshin Bhaskarpara | Madanpur
Bhiwani Trading & Swastik Cement Cement Mining Cement Ltd | Cements Ltd Coal (North JCoal
Specify Unit Amt Specify Unit Amt. Textiles Ltd Invt. Ltd. Trading & |Lanka (P)Ltd| Middie East Indonesia Company Ltd | Company Pvt
Invt, Ltd. Investments Ltd
5 Power & Fuel (pl specify purchase /
Sale) = = - u = 2 & i i = =2 _ E
5 Repairs & Maintenance (pl specify
purchase / Sale) - - - & = i = s 3 _ = = %
T4 Rent Paid - = - = = = P > = 2 = =
8 Investment in Subsidiaries - - - - = S & = o - - - B
[:] Share application money pending
allotment - - - = - & = = 5 = = % 5
a
10 |Loan Received - - - a 4 = = = 2 = 5 = =
11 |Loan payment - - - - - - - - - = = L .
12  |Dividend Received - - - * - = - - . 4 . A .
13 Dividend Payment - < = = % = = = % = = 2 =
14 | Others (Please specify) 404 - - - - - - - 5 = = = <
Please give the above details for Revenue items l.e. those which are charged.in P&L account
| |Purchase of Fixed Assets [ ! | £ R = z = = = x 2 B Stai] :
1 |Sale of Fixed Assels | =5 | E B A i B - - - 211 llf 25.4] 2
Balances as on 31st March 2024
. UTCL Grasim Sun God Swastik UltraTech UltraTech | PT UltraTEch Harish Bhaskarpara | (North JCoal
Se:Ne. [Particutar Grasim Bhiwani | Trading& | Trading& Gement Cement Mining | Cementltd | pakshin Coal Company Pvt
Specify Unit Amt Specify Unit Amt. Textiles Ltd |  invt Ltd Invt. Ltd. | Lanka (P)Ltd| Middle East | Indonesia & Lid | & Ltd Ltd
B QOther Receivables-India (312,952) - - - - - 7 = z 2 2 = 3
2 Trade Payables-India 3,078,831 - - - - = = = = A = = =
3 Trade Payables-U.AE -
4 Other Receivables-UAE (32.401) - - - - = 2 - = - = = u
5 Advances (L iabilities) - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total Net Payable/(Receivable) 2731479 - - - - - - - - - - - -
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Sheikh Zayed Road, P.O. Box 3800
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

Tel. +971 (4) 4030300, www.kpmg.com/ae

Independent auditars repart

To the Shareholder of UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments
Limited ("the Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then
ended, and notes, comprising material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in all material

respects in accordance with the accounting policies issued by UltraTech Cement Limited, India (“Group
Accounting Policies”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Use and Distribution

We draw attention to Note 1 (a) to the consolidated financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. The consolidated financial statements are prepared to assist UltraTech Cement Limited,
India (“the Ultimate Holding Company") to prepare its group consolidated financial statements. As a
result, the consolidated financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is
intended solely for the Company and the Ultimate Holding Company and should not be used by or
distributed to parties other than the Company and the Ultimate Holding Company. Our report is not
modified in respect of this matter.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance

with Group Accounting Policies, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Fawzi AbuRass
Registration No.: 968
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

pate: 24 PR 2024
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UltraTech Cement Middle Easi Investments Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT MAR 31,2024

Amount in INR Crores

Particulars Note No. As at As at
Mar 31,2024 Mar 31,2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 1,297.53 1,363.29
Capital work-in-progress 2 16.70 13.00
Goodwili 2 1,036.93 1,021.43
Other Intangible assets 2 181.39 181.19
Right to Use Asset- tease 3 117.60 133.88
Financial Assets
Investments 4 853,36 816.23
Other Financial Assets 5 15.45 755.08
868.81
Total Non Current Assets 3,518.96 4,284.10
Current assets
Inventories 6 268.07 324.42
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 7 768B.13 627.96
Cash and cash equivalents 8 0.95 3232
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 9 = 41.08
Loans 10 0.21 0.16
Other Financial Assets 11 950.93 157.28
1,720.22
Other current assets 12 27.89 22,69
Asset held for disposal 1.35 1.33
Total Current Assets 2,017.53 1,207.24
TOTAL ASSETS 5.536.49 5491.34
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity : ;
Equity Share Capital 13 885.87 885.87
Other Equity 13 1,707.09 . 1,4590.20
2,592.96 2,376.06
Non-Controlling Interest 48.28 47.84
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14 834.21 821.74
Long term Lease liability 15 124.79 136.84 -
Other Financial Liabilities 16 0.15 46.74
Provisions 17 24.52 21.45
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 18 20.19 -
1,003.86 1,026.77
Current liabilities '
Financial Liabilities )
Borrowings 19 1,376.85 1,479.14
Trade payables 20 343.44 454.79
Short term Lease liability 21 14.63 14.08
Other financial liabilities 22 13156 1,866.48 63.68
Other current liabilities 23 11.06 14.79
Provisions 24 13.85 14.19
1,891.39 2,040.67
FOTAL EQUITY ANDG LIABILITIES 5,536.49 5,491.34
1
inancial Stateme

In terms of our report Set out on pages 1 to 3
For KPMG Lower Gulf Limited

Partner

Stamped for the Purpose
of ldentification only

For and on behalf of the Board

Dated:

/,,



UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD ENDED Mar 31,2024

Amount in INR Crores

Period ended Mar

Particulars Note No. 31,2024 Period ended Mar 31,2023
Continuing Operations
Sale of Products and Services (Net) 25 ' 1,992.47 1,706.09
Other Operating Revenues 25 1.98 29.46
Revenue from Operations 1,994.45 1,735.55
Other Income 26 1.29 e 2.81
Total Income (I} 1,995.74 1,738.36
Expenses
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 27 469.72 291.96
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 28 32.97 37.94
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and 29 (21.27) (18.55)
Work-in-Proaress
Employee Benefits Expense 30 119.38 110.72
Finance Costs 31 107.64 94.53
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 32 109.78 108.21
Power and Fuel 679.20 764.80
Freight and Forwarding Expense 33 158.19 120.28
Other Expenses . 34 200.35 188.73
Total Expenses (1I) 1,855.96 1,698.62
Profit before Exceptional items and Tax Expenses 139,78 39.74
Exceptional items -Investment w/off - (0.11)
Profit before Tax Expenses and Share in Profit of Associate 139.78 39.63
Share in Profit of Associate 22,99 3.52
Profit before Tax Expenses 162.77 43.15
Tax Expenses: '
Deferred Tax Charge : 20.04 o
Total 20.04 J
Profits for the period (IIT) . 142.73 43.15
(Loss) attributable to Mon Controlling Interest (0.27)
Profit attributable to Owners of the Parent 143.00 43.15
Profit for the period (IV = II + III) . 142.73 43.15
Other Comprehensive Profit / (Loss)
A (i) Change in fair value of Investments of associate carried at FVTOCI 1.56 (24.40)
(iDItems that wlll not be reclassified to profit & Loss-Actuarial Gain on Employee (0.76) . 3.03
Benefits
Iterns that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss-Cash flow hedge & FCTR 73.81 60.94
Other Comprehensive Profit / (Loss) for the Period (IV) : 74.61 . 40.47
Other Comprehensive Income attributable to Non Controlling Interest : i 0.71 : -
Other Comprehensive Profit/(Loss) Income attributable to Owners of the Parent 73.90 : 40.47
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (V=III+IV) ’ 217.34 83.62
Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value AED 10 each) — Continuing Operations
Basic  (in INR) 28.25 10.08
Diluted (in INR) 28.25 10.08
Weighted Average Equity Shares (in Nos.) 50,611,952 42,824,302
Weighted AverageEquity Shares incl Diluted Shares (in Nos.) = 50,611,952 42,824,302
Materiat Accounting Folicies 1
Thas accorapany pies form an integrai gact of tiie Finascial Statamant
In terms of our report Set out on pages 1 to 3 For and on behalf of the Board

For KPMG Lower Guif Limited

Partner

Dated:

kbE

Stamped for the Purpose
of Identification only




UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED Mar 31,2024

Amount in INR Crores

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at APR 01, 2022

Chandes in equity share capital
As at Mar 31, 2023

Chanaes in equity share capital
As at Mar 31,2024

526.57
359.29

885.87

885.87

[B. OTHER EQUITY Attributable to Owners of the company Attributab| Total Other
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income Total le to NCI Equity
Securities General Retained Exchange Effective I Change in | Remeasur | Attributable to '
Premium Reserve Earnings | differences on | portion of | fair value | ement of | Owners of the
Reserve translating the | cash flow | of defined company
For the Period ended Mar 31,2024 financial hedges |Investmen| benefit
statements of ts carried plan
I foreign at FVTOCI
| operations
Balance as at APR 01, 2023 572.05 2,05 594.26 341.80 (3.98)| (24.40) 8.42 1,490.20 47.84 1,538.04
Profit for the period (1) - A e ~143.00 g - 143.00 5 143.00
I("{ze)measurement gain on defined benefit plan B - | . _ " 0.76) (0.76) (0.76)
Other Comprehensive Profit (2) o e 5 - i 37.38 35.72 15 | - 74.66 74.66
Total Comprehensive Gain (1+2) = - 143.00 37.38 35.72 1.56 (0.76) 216.90 S 216.90
;ﬁ:;fs""t"b“m“ by and Distribution to | o g 205 | 737.26 379.17 | 3174 | (22.84)| 7.66 | 1,707.09 | 47.84 | 1,754.93
Changes in Ownership Interests - it - _
Acauisition of subsidiary with NCI — 027y (0.27)
Translation reserve 0.71 i
Balance as at March 31, 2024 572.05 2.05 737.26 379.17 31.74 (22.84) 7.66 1,707.09 48.28 1,755.37
Attributable to Owners of the company Attributable| Total Other
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income Total to NCI Equity
Securities General Retained Exchange | Effective [ Change in |Remeasur | Attributable to
Premium Reserve Earnings | differences on | potion of | fair value | ement of | Owners of the
For the Year ended Mar 31,2023 Reserve translating the | cash flow of defined company
] financial hedges |Investmen| benefit
| 1 statements of tsin plan
| ] foreign | Associate
| i operations | carried at
i | FVTOCI
Balance as at APR 01, 2022 | 11381  2.05| 55111 3564 | (5.22) - 449 70188 - | 701.88
Profit for the Year (1) il | R N T [ | A= 5 1 - 43.15
;{zelmeasurement gain on defined benefit plan | : . ; 393 2.93 393
Other Comprehensive Loss (3) = ] S AR VOSSN0 1T NS 6211 S e 1) 283.00
Total Comprehensive aain (1+2+3) > -1 g 43.15| 30616 124 (2440). 393| 33008 = 1330.08
Issue of equity 458.24 | i i ! 458.24 458.24
gxigg’"“ ibution by and Distribution to 572.05 | 205 59426 34180 | (3.98) (24.40) 842 1,490.20 ] 1,490.20
Changes in Ownership Interests = R
Acauisition of subsidiary with NCT —" 47.84 47.84
Transtation reserve | |
Balance as at March 31, 2023 572.05 | 2.05 594.26 341.80 (3.98) (24.40)| 8.42 1,490.20 47.84 1,538.04
tMatarial Accounting Folicies 1

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statemants,

In terms of our report Set out on pages 1
to3
For KPMG Lower Guif Limited

Partner
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the period ended Mar 31,2024

Amount in INR Crores

Mar 31,2024 MAR 31, 2023

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Profit before tax
From Continuing operations 139.78 39.63
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation 109.78 108.21
Provision for Retirement benefits 3.55 0.48
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets . (0.05)
Interest and Finance Charges 100.55 87.26
Borrowing Cost (Lease Liability) 7.09 7.27
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 360.75 242.80
Movement in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 61.28 (87.01)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (130.64) (72.94)
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans and Advances (9.11) (752.62)
(Increase) in Trade Payables and other Liabilities (125.61) 34.53
Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operations 156.67 (635.24)
Payment for Employee Benefits (1.32) (5.27)
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operating Activities (A) 155.35 (640.51)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assets (6.88) (15.40)
Investment payment share purchase of DCPI ) = (19.34)
Sales of Fixed Assets E -0.06
Payment for Investment in Associates - (837.29)
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Investing Activities (B) (6.88) (871.97)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities: )
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital (Including Premium) . : 821.62
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings - o (328.70)
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings (Net) (124.73) ) 1,149.98
Payment of Principal towards Lease Liability (13.84) (13.35)
Interest on Lease Liability (7.09) (7.27)
Interest and Finance Charges paid (79.09) (86.69)
Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from Financing Activities (C) (224.75) 1,535.59
N « - ] (76.28)

et (Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 23.11
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 73.40 41.35
Effect of exchange rate on consolidation of Foreign Subsidiary 3.83 8.94
Cash and Bank balance as per Note 8 & Note 9 0.95 73.40

Notes : :
1. Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under Indirect method.
2. Purchase of fixed assets includes movements of capital work-in-progress & Capital Advances.

3. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.

4. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities Non Current Current Borrowing
Borrowing

As at Mar 31,2023 821.74 1,479.14

Cash flows (Including Preference shares) = (124.73)

Non Cash changes :
Fair Value Adjustment

Others (Transfer to current maturities & Exchange variation) 12.47 22.44
As at Mar 31,2024 834.21 1,376.85
Material Accounting Policies 1

The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

In terms of our report Set out on pages 1 to 3 For and on behalf of the Board
For KPMG Lower Gulif Limited

Director

: M Dated: -
Stamped for the Purpose : .

of Identification only

Partner -




UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statement

NOTE: 2- PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Amount in INR Crores

Particulars Gross Block Net Block
Asat APR | Additions| Onaccount| Deductions/ | Translation | As at Mar As at For the As at Mar| As at Mar
01, 2023 of Adjustments Reserve 31,2024 APR 01, | period | Adjustments Reserve 31,2024 21,2024
Acquisition 2023
(A) Tangible Assets
Freehold Land 5.18 - o - 0.08 5.26 - - - - - 5.26
Buildings 241.45 0.88 = (1.67) 3.66 244.32 61.12 10.64 (1.67) 1.00 71.09 173.23
Plant and Machinery 1,747.01 1.63 - (2.36) 26.50 1,772.78 574.73 77.22 (2.36) 9.30 658.89 1,113.89
Furniture and Fixtures 12.88 0.59 - (0.88) 0.21 12.80 10.00 0.79 (0.87) 0.14 10.06 2.74
Vehicles 6.51 0.25 e (1.17) 0.09 5.68 3.89 0.43 (1.11) 0.06 3.27 241
Total (A) 2,013.03 3.35 = (6.08) 30.54 2,040.84 649.74 89.08 {6.01) 10.50 743,31 1,297.53
(B) Intangible Assets ;
Other Intangible Assets 212.51 2 = - 3.22 215.73 31.32 2.53 B 0.48 34.34 181.39
Total (B) 212.51 = = - 3.22 215.73 31.32 2.53 = 0.48 34.34 181.39
Total Assets (A+B) 2,225.54 3.35 2 (6.08) 33.76 2,256.57 681.06 91.61 (6.01) 10.98 777.65 1,478.92
Capital Work-in-Progress 13.00 6.88 - (3.35) 0.17 16.70 16.70
1,495.62
Notes : )
Depreciation for the period . 91.61
Depreciation as per Profit and Loss Account ' : 91.61
Amount in INR Crores
Particulars Gross Block Depreciation Net Biock
As at APR | Additions| On account| Deductions/ | Translation AsatMar | Asat APR| Forthe | Deductions/ | Translation| AsatMar | As atMar
01, 2022 of Adjustments Reserve 31,2023 01, 2022 Year Adjustments Reserve 31,2023 31,2023
Acquisition
(A) Tangible Assets
Freehold Ltand 4.78 - - 3 0.40 5.18 g - = - 5.18
Buildings 222.59 0.12 - - — 18.74 © 24145 46.59 10.38 - 4.15 61,12 180.33
Plant and Machinery 1,598.92 13.16 - - 134.93 1,747.01 458.74 75.65 - 40.34 574.73 1,172.28
Furniture and Fixtures 11.40 0.52 ¥ (0.01) 0.97 12.88 8.42 0.85 (0.01) 0.74 10.00 2.88
Vehicles 5.77 1.23 2 (0.98) - 049 6.51 3.98 0.29 (0.71) 0.33 3.89 2.62
Total Tangible Assets . 1,843.46 15.03 D (0.99) 155.53 2,013.03 517.73 87.17 (0.72) 45.56 649.74 |  1,363.29
(B) Intangible Assets
Intangible Asset 59.35 - 148.16 A 5.00 212.51 26.58 2.46 - 2.28 31.32 181.19
Total Assets (A+B) 1,902.81 15.03 148.16 (0.99) 160.53 2,225.54 544.31 89.63 (0.72) 47.84 681.06 1,544.48
Capital Work-in-Progress 1.53 15.40 11.30 - {15.03) (0.20) 13.00 E 13.00
1,557.48
Notes : .
Depreciation for the Year C 89.63
Depreciation as per Profit and Loss Account 89.63
Movement in Goodwill:
Particulars As at Mar | As at Mar
31,2024 31,2023
Opening Balance 1,021.43 942.09
ADD: Goodwill on consolidation E 0.01
Add: Exchange difference recognised in FCTR 15.50 79.33
Closing Balance as per Balance Sheet ] 1,036.93 1,021.43

v
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| NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2(A)  Ageing schedule of capital-work-in progress (CWIP) :

2(B)

Amount in INR Crores

Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 2-3
1 1-2 years & _ More than 3 years

As on Mar 31, 2024 _

Projects in progress 3.87 11.48 - 1.35 16.70
Total 3.87 11.48 - 1.35 16.70
As on March 31.2023; _ i

Projects in progress 11.68 - - 1.32 13.00
Total 11.68 - - 1.32 13.00

Completion schedule for capital-work-in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan:

Amount in INR Crores

To be completed in

SCNR system- secondary mitigation for N

Less than 2-3
1 year 1-2 years years More than 3 years
Project 1
m' .
- - - 1.35

|Project 2

2(C) Ageing schedule of Intangible assets under development:
Amount in Intangible assets under development for a

Amount in INR Crores

period of Total
Less than 2-3
{xear 1-2 years = More than 3 Years

As on Mar 31, 2024

Projects in progress

Proiects temporarilv suspended

Total

As on March 31,2023:

Projects in proaress

Projects temporarily suspended

Total

2(D) Completion schedule for capital-work-in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan:

.

Projectl

Amount in INR Crores

To be completed in

2-3
vears'

Less than

1iyear 1-2 years

More than 3 years

rojec

Project 1

Stamped for the Purpose
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statement

NOTE: 3- RIGHT TO USE ASSET- LEASE

(A) Following are the carrying value of Right of Use Assets for the period ended Mar 31,2024
Amount in INR Crores

Particulars Gross Block Depreciation and Amortisation Net Block
Asat Onaccount Deductions/ Translati AsatMar | Asat APR Onaccount Forthe Translation Asat | As atMar
APR 01, of Adjustments on 31,2024 01, 2023 of period  reserve Mar 31,2024
© 2023  acquisition reserve acquisition 31,2024
Leasehold Land 69.71 - e 1.06 7077 22.42 . 3.07 0.36 2585 |  44.92
Plant and Machinery  180.17 3 - 2.73 182.90 | 14242 5 10.36 223 155.01|  27.89
Ships 70.99 - - 1.07 72.06 22.15 - 4.74 0.38 27.27 44.79
Totai 320.87 - - 4.86 325.73 186.59 - 18.17 2.87 208.13 117.60
Particulars Gross Block Depreciation and Amortisation Net Block
Asat Onaccount Deductions/ Translati AsatMar | Asat APR Onaccount Forthe Translation Asat | AsatMar
APR 01, of Adjustments on 31, 2023 01, 2022 of year reserve  Mar 31, | 31,2023
2022  acquisition reserve acquisition 2023
Leaseholdtand  64.73 : (043) 541  69.71| 1788 5 2.97 157 2242 |
Plant and Machinery 166.18 - - 13.99 18017 |  121.00 - 10.98 10.44 142.42
Ships 65.47 - - 5.52 70.99 16.10 - 4.60 1.45 22.15
Total 296.38 - (0.43) 24,92 320.87 154.98 - 18.55 13.46  186.99

(B) Lease Liabilities:
(i) Movement in Lease Liabilities:

. Amount in INR Crores

- Year Ended Year Ended
Rarticolars March 31, 2024 |March 31, 2023
Opening Lease Liabilities » \ 150.92 150.74
Addition during the year - 0.67
Add: Interest accrued during the year 7.09 7.27
Less: Payment of Lease Liabilities (Including Interest) (20.93) (20.62)
Add/Less: Translation reserve 2.34 12.86
Closing Lease Liabilities 139.42 150.92
- Non Current 124.79 136.84
- Current . 14.63 14.08

(i) Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, not included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Particulars Mar 31,2024  Mar 31,2023

Variable lease payments

Expenses relating to short-term leases __es2 -
Expenses relating to

leases of low-value

assets, excluding short- -

term leases of low value

assets

(i) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities— contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Particulars Mar 31,2024  Mar 31,2023
Lessthanoneyear 21.46

One to five years s R —— 83.73

More than five years 97.61

Total undiscounted lease liabllities 202.80 195.89
Discounted Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position .
Current lease liability = : ot . (1483) (14.08)
Non-Current lease liability ' (124.79) (136.84)
Total Discounted Lease liabilities {139.42) (150.92)
(iv) Amounts recognised in Statement of Cash Flows:

Particulars Mar 31,2024  Mar 31,2023
On account of short term leases 0.52 g
Lease repaid o - 13.84 13.35
Interest repaid ) 7.08 7.27
Total cash outflow for 21.45 2052

leases

' ' " | Stamped for the Purpose
of Identification only




UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statement

Amount in INR Crores

. As at As at
Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
NOTE :4 F
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
Investment accounted for using Equity method = o
Associates:
RAK White Cement 149,016,781 816.23 149,016,781 837.58
Add: Share in Profit of Associate 22.99 352
Add: Share in OCI of Associate i.56 (24.40)

Less: Exchange differences on translating the

Associate Income 12.58 (0.47)
853.36 816.23
NOTE :5
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, Considered good:
Advance to other G 740.53
Security Deposit 15.45 14.55
15.45 755.08
NOTE :6
INVENTORIES: (Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value, unless otherwise stated)
Raw Material at factory 69.26 ) 68.29
Work-in-progress 40.71 18.45
Finished Goods at factory 23.80 24.00
Stores & Spares at Factory 122.67 115.11
Fuel at Factory 6.64 89.95
Packing Materials at Factory 4.98 8.61
Scrap (valued at net realisable value) 0.01 0.01
268.07 324.42
NOTE :7 -
TRADE RECEIVABLES
Considered good, Secured 303.08 237.58
Considered good, Unsecured 466.91 392.21
Credit Impaired, Unsecured 22.70 10.35
792.69 640.14
Less: Allowances for credit losses (24.56) (12.18)
: 768.13 627.96
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule
Receivable but Oul.shndlng for the following periods from the due date of payment
Particulars ot dise
d i P Less than 6 Months 6 -1 r "~ 1-2 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 687.57 s 72.24 8.19 1.99 ) 769.99
(ili} Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ credit impaired = - 0.24 22.46 ] 22.70
Total as on Mar 31,2024 687.57 72,24 8.43 24.45 792.69
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule
Particulars Receivable but Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
not due Less than 6 Months 6 months- 1 year 1-2 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered aood 491.90 116.26 8.62 13.01 629.79
(iiiy Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired = = 8 10.35 10.35
Total as on March 31, 2023 491.90 116.26 8.62 23.36 640.14

2
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statement

Amount in INR Crores

. As at As at
Entima) 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
NOTE :8
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balance with banks (Current Account) 0.93 32.22
Cash on hand 0.02 0.10
0.95 32.32
NOTE :9
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Fixed Deposits with Banks (Maturity more than 3 months and upto 12 months) = 41.08
3 41.08
NOTE :10
LOANS
Unsecured, Considered good:
Loan to employees 0.21 0.16
0.21 0.16
NOTE :11
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Deposit with body corporates 157.54 155.19
Security Deposit 1.30 119
Derivative Assets 36.90 0.90
Advance to other 755.19 -
950.93 157.28
NOTE :12
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:
Advances to Related Parties = 0.01
Advances to Employees 1.62 1.17
Advances to suppliers 9.76 5.63
Prepaid Expenses 7.48 8.21
Other Receivables 9.03 7.67
27.89 22.69
NOTE :13 No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 3
Authorised
Equity shares of AED 10 each 50,611,952 885.87 50,611,952 885.87
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
Equity shares of AED 10 each 50,611,952 885.87 50,611,952 885.87
B. OTHER EQUITY
Securities Premium Reserve 572.05 572.05
General Reserve 2.05 2.05
Change in fair value of Investments carried at FVTOCI (22.84) (24.40)
Retained Earnings 737.26 594.26
Effective Portion of Cash Flow Hedges 31.74 (3.98)
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign
ot 379.17 341.80
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 7.66 8.42
Total Other Equity 1,707.09 1,490.20

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

a) Securities Premium Reserve: Securities premium reserve is credited when shares are issued at premium. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on
redemption of shares or debentures,write-off equity related expenses like underwriting costs, etc.

b) General reserve: The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

¢) Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve has been created for Exchange variation in Opening Equity Share Capital and Reserves and Surplus of Ultratech Cement Bahrain Co. WLL.

d) Effective Portion of Cashflow Hedges: The company has designated its hedging instruments obtained after April 01, 2015 as cash flow hedges and any effective portion of cashflow hedge is maintained in the said
reserve. In case the hedging becomes ineffective the amount is recognised to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

il
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
Notes|to the Consolidated financial statement
NOTE :14 Amount in INR Crores

NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

Non-current Current Maturities of Long-Term debts *
As at As at As at As a
31/03/2024 31/03/2023 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Unsecured:
Term Loans from Banks:
In Foreign Currency - Note (a) 83421 82174 2 - -
Total 834.21 821.74 = =
As at As at
(2) Term Loans from Banks in Foreign Currency 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Unsecured: Maturity
Sumitoma Mitsui Banking Corporation Singapore Branch
(USD 100Mn)@ 4.68% (Previous Year- 4.68%) On 27 June'27 834.21 821.74
834.21 821.74
Totat 834.21 821.74
NOTE :15
LONG TERM LEASE LIABILITY
Lease liability 124.79 136.84
124.79 136.84
NOTE :16
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Others - 46.14
Employee Share based payment 0.15 0.60
0.15 46.74
NOTE :17
PROVISIONS NON CURRENT
For Employee Benefits 2 24.52 2145
24.52 21.45
NOTE :18
As at Recognised in As at
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) March 31, 2024 Statement of Profit March 31, 2023
and Loss )
Deferred Tax Assets: ‘
‘Fair valuation of assets (44.87) (44.87) =
Other _ (6.75) (6.75) -
Total Deferred Tax Assets . ) {51.62) (51.62) -
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Intangible Assets 71.76 71.76 -
Fair valuation of assets 0.05 0.05 =
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 71.81 71.81 ) E
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 20.19 20.19 =
NOTE :19
CURRENT BORROWINGS
Unsecured:
From Banks @ 4.88% (Previous Year- 4.23%) s 1,376.85 328.70
Inter Company Deposit
0.5% Nonconvertible Redeemable Preference Shares S 1,150.44
1,376.85 1,479.14
NOTE :20
TRADE PAYABLES
Trade Payables 269.27 385.79
Due to Others - Relates to supplier financing arrangement 74.17 . 69.00
under which vendor has discounted bill from Bank ) :
343.44 454.79
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
o a4 PRI -
Particulars Unbilled due Outstanding but not due g for the g periods from the due date of payment
Less than 1 vear More than 1 Year Total
(i) Others 3 80.58 242.56 20.30 = 343.44
Total as on Mar 31,2024 80.58 242.56 20.30 0.00 343.44
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
Particulars Unbilled due Outstanding but not due Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
i Less than 1 vear More than 1 Year Total -
(if) Others 176.04 36.36 242.39 - 454.79
Total as on March 31, 2023 - 2 176.04 36.36 ©242.39 0.00 454.79
NOTE :21
LEASE LIABILITY SHORT TERM
Lease Liability 14.63 14.08
14.63 14.08
NOTE :22
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings . 24.82 2.56
Others 96.77 46.14
Liability for Capital Goods i 0.12 0.11
Security Deposit . 1.57 0.76
Salary, wages, Bonus & Other employee Payables 8.28 8.0t
Due to Related Parties : = i 6.10
131.56 63.68

Y
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statement

Amount in INR Crores

As at As at
Fanthatars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
NOTE :23
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from Customers 0.31 4.70
Others (including other Deposits, Provision for Expenses etc.) 10.75 10.09
11.06 14.79
NOTE :24
PROVISIONS
For Employee Benafits 13.85 14.19
13.85 14.19
Period Ended Period Ended
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
NOTE :25
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
SALE OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (GROSS)
Sale of Products 1,992.47 1,706,089
1,992.47 1,706.09
OTHER OPERATING REVENUES
Scrap Sales 1.12 1.44
Insurance Claim o 0.07
Miscellaneous Income / Receipts 0.86 27.95
1.98 29.46
1,994.45 1,735.55
NOTE :26
OTHER INCOME
Interest Income on
Bank and Other Accounts 0.37 0.01
Dividend Income on
Investment = 0.30
Exchange Gain (net) 0.29 =
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (net) = 0.05
Others 0.63 2.45
1.29 2.81
NOTE :27
COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening Stock 68.29 45.62
Add: Exchange rate fluctuation on acccount of average 0.52 2.75
rate transferred to currecny translation reserve o
Purchase and Incidental Expenses 469.65 310.38
4 538.46 358.75
Less: Exchange rate fluctuation on acccount of average rate transferred to {0.52) (1.50)
Less: Closing Stock 69.26 68.29
469.72 291.96
NOTE :28
PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Others 32,97 37.94
32.97 37.94
NOTE :29
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Closing Inventories
Work-in-progress 40.71 18.45
Finished Goods 23.80 24.00
Add / (Less): Exchange‘rate fluctuation on. a_cccount of (0.48) (0.94)
average rate to currency N reserve
64.03 41.51
Opening Inventories
Work-in-progress 18.45 10.25
Finished Goods 24.00 11.40
Add / (Less): Exchange rate fluctuation on acccount of average rate
3 0.31 1.31
transferred to currency translation reserve e
42.76 22.96
Increase in Inventories (21.27) (18.55)
Work-in-progress (22.26) (8.20)
Finished Goods 0.20 (12.60)
Exchange rate fluctuation on acccount of average rate transferred to currency translation reserve 0.79 2.25
(18.55)

(21.27)
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statement
Amount in INR Crores

Particulars Period Ended Period Ended
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
NOTE :30
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 110.90 104.42
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 3.55 2,22
Expenses on Employees Stock Options Scheme 0.69 0.38
Staff Welfare Expenses 4.24 3.70
115,38 110.72
NOTE :31 k
FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense:
On Borrowings 89.21 . 8174
Others (Including LC discounting) 11.34 5.52
100.55 87.26
Other Borrowing Cost (Lease Liability) ‘ 7.09 7.27
107.64 94.53
NOTE :32
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Depreciation 89.08 87.20
Amortisation 2,53 2.46
Depreciation on ROU asset 18.17 18.55
109.78 108.21
NOTE :33
FREIGHT AND FORWARDING EXPENSE
On Finished Products 158.19 120.28
158.19 120.28
NOTE :34
OTHER EXPENSES 5
Consumption of Stores, Spare Parts and Components 39.97 39.01
Consumption of Packing Materials ' 20.94 20.68
Repairs to Plant and Machinery, Building and Others 29.43 28.67
Insurance 5.54 5.43
Rent (including Lease Rent) 0.52 b
Rates and Taxes 26.66 26.63
Advertisement 2.60 0.75
Sales Promotion and Other Selling Expenses 0.84 0.66
Exchange Loss (net) ; = ; 2.03
Miscellaneous Expenses 73.85 64.87
s 200.35 188.73
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its Subsidiaries
'Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1(A) Company Overview and Material Accounting Policies:

Company Overview

UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited (the Holding Company) was formed in Jebel Ali Free Zone
pursuant to Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority Offshore Companies Regulations 2003 with limited liability on 20-
October-2009 under Registration No 132239. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries are together referred
as “the Company”.

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Cement and Cement related products. The
company’s holding company is UltraTech Cement Limited, India.

Material Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of Compliance & Basis of Preparation and Presentation:
These consolidated financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”) are prepared in

accordance with the Group Accounting Policies which are in compliance with the Indian Accounting Standards
("Ind AS").

The ﬁnanc'ﬁ sﬁﬁn?ﬁ 4are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting
held on _

(b) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities:

(i) Derivative Financial Instruments measured at fair vajue

(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financia
instruments)

(ii) Assets held for disposal — measured at the the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs on
disposal of assets and its value in use.

(iv) Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation.

(v) Assets and liabilities acquired under Business Combination measured at fair value; and

(vi) Employee share based payment measured at fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
determining the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial statements are presented in INR (Rounded off to crores), however UAE dirhams is the
functional currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates.

Exchange rates adopted 315 March 2024 31%t March 2023
Closing Rate 1 AED = 22.71 INR 1 AED = 22.37 INR
Average Rate 01/04/2023-31/03/2024 01/04/2022-31/03/2023

1 AED = 22.54 INR 1 AED = 21.88 INR

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current/Non-Current

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current / Non Current
classification of its Assets and Liabilities.
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UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if:

()  Itis expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or
(i) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

(iii) Itis expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:

(iy Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

(i) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

(i) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could resuilt in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its
intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning.

Subsequent costs incurred are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they were incurred.

If Significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of PPE.

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as PPE when
they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

PPE are stated at their cost of acquisition/installation or construction net of accumulated depreciation, and
impairment losses, if any.

(d) Expenditure during construction period:

Expenditure/ Income during construction period (including financing cost related to borrowed funds for
construction or acquisition of qualifying PPE) is included under Capital Work-in-Progress and the same is
allocated to the respective PPE on the completion of their construction. Advances given towards acquisition or
construction of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other non-
current Assets”.

(e) Depreciation:
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is provided

on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II to the Act or as per technical
assessment. Freehold Land with indefinite life is not depreciated.
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Depreciable amount for PPE is the cost of PPE less its estimated residual value. The useful life of PPE is the
period over which PPE is expected to be available for use by the Company.

In case of certain classes of PPE, the Company uses different useful lives than those prescribed in Schedule II
to the Act. The useful lives have been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of
the PPE and the estimated usage of the asset on the basis of management’s best estimation of obtaining
economic benefits from those classes of assets. The estimated useful lives, residual values and the
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Such classes of assets and their estimated useful lives are as under:

No | Nature Estimated Useful life
1. | Buildings 3-60 Years
2. | Plant & Equipment 8-50 Years
3. | Office Equipment : : 4-7 Years
4. | Furniture and Fixtures _ 7-12 Years
5. | Company Vehicles (other than those 5-12 Years
provided to the employees)
Motor Cars given to the employees as per :
L the Company’s Scheme HESIERTS
7. | Servers and Networks 3 Years
8. | Stores and Spares in the nature of PPE 8-30 Years
Assets individually costing less than or . .
9. equal to AED 500 (310,000) Fully Depreciated in the year of purchase

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the month of installation or acquisition and in
case of Projects from the date of commencement of commercial production. Depreciation on
deductions/disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis up to the month preceding the month of
deduction/disposal. ’

(f) Intangible Assets and Amortisation:
= Internally generated Intangible Assets:

Expenditure pertaining to research is expensed out as and when incurred. Expenditure incurred on
development is capitalised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the company, otherwise such expenditure is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Subsequent costs incurred are included in the assets’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

* Class of intangible assets and their estimated useful lives / basis of amortisation are as under:

No Nature Estimated Useful life /basis of amortisation
Power Rights - As per period specified in the agreement
2. Software 3 Years

Over the period of the respective mining agreement or

g Hilllggiehts on the basis of mineable life, whichever is lower.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an item of intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of such item of intangible asset and
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.
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(9) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale:

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset and its sale is highly probable. Such assets or group of assets / liabilities
are presented separately in the Balance Sheet, in the line “Assets / Disposal groups held for sale” and
“Liabilities included in disposal group held for sale” respectively. Once classified as held for sale, intangible
assets and PPE are no longer amortised or depreciated.

Such assets or disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

(h) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Inventories:
Inventories are valued as follows:
L] Raw Materials, fuel, stores & spares and packing Materials:

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). However, these items are considered to be realisable
at cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis which includes expenditure incurred for acquiring inventories like
purchase price, import duties, taxes (net of tax credit) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

= Work-in- progress (WIP), finished goods, stock-in-trade and trial run inventories:

Valued at lower of cost and NRV. Cost of Finished goods and WIP includes cost of raw materials, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of
Stock-in Trade includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to the present
location and condition. Cost of inventories is computed on weighted average basis.
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= Waste / Scrap:
Waste / Scrap inventory is valued at NRV.

Net realisable for inventories value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

6)) Employee Share based payments:

For Stock Appreciation Rights ("SARs") which are cash-settled share-based payments, the fair value of liability
is recognised for the services acquired over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to
the payment. At the end of each reporting period until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement,
the liability is re-measured based on fair value of the SAR’s and any changes in fair value of the liability are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

() Borrowing Costs:

General and specific borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its
intended use and borrowing costs are being incurred. A gualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognlsed as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing cost includes interest expense, amortization of discounts, hedge related cost incurred in
connection with foreign currency borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds
and exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the Interest cost.

M Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to
settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding
of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent
liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not
disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, in financial
statements, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2
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(m) Revenue Recognition from Contracts with Customers:
(i Sale of Goods

= Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services
to a customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when
control of the goods is transferred to the customer, which is generally on dispatch/ delivery of the goods.

= Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods
sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration and outgoing taxes on sale.

» Variable consideration - This includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc. It is estimated at
contract inception considering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly
probable that a Significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at
end of each reporting period.

] Significant financing component - Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its
customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount
of consideration for the effects of a Significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that
the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer
pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

(ii) Rendering of Services

Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/arrangements with the customers as the
service is performed and there is no unfulfilled Obligation.

» Contract balances:

> Trade Receivables and Contract Assets

A trade receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to a customer and consideration becomes
unconditional.

Contract assets are recognized when the company has a right to receive consideration that is conditional
other than the passage of time.

> Contract liabilities
Contract liabilities is a Company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer which the entity has
already received consideration. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the company performs
under the contract.

(n) Dividend a.nd Interest Income
« Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the income is established.
¢ Interest income is recognised using the Effective Interest Method.
(o) Lease :

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
_ in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether

Stamped for the Purpose
A\ ‘ of ldentification only




UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

0 the contract involves the use of identified asset;

(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the
period of lease and;

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

As a lessee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The ROU is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that the
option will be exercised.

The ROU is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the ROU asset or the end of the lease term, but if ownership of the
leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. In addition, the ROU
asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the

lease liability.

Asset Class Term (in years)
Land 20-31

Plant & Machinery | 15-20

Ships 15

The ROU is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
end of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, and the company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate. .

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in
an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except
those which are payable other than functional currency which is measured at fair value through Profit or
Loss. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying'
amount of the ROU, or is recorded in Statement of Profit or Loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero,
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Lease Liabilities have been presented in ‘Financial Liabilities’ and the 'ROU” have been presented separately in
the Balance Sheet. Lease payments have been classified as financing activities in the Statement of Cash
Flows.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or lower and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term. The related cash flows are classified as
Operating activities in the Statement of Cash Flows.

(p) Employee benefits:

Gratuity

The gratuity, a defined benefit plan, payable to the employees is based on the Employees’ service and last
drawn salary at the time of the leaving of the services of the Company and is in accordance with the Rules of
the Company for payment of Gratuity. Liability with regards to gratuity plan is determined using the projected
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out by a qualified independent actuary at the end
of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in
the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in OCI is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset and is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

- service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and' settlements); '

= net interest expense or income; and

= re-measurement

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

The defined benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to
the plans.

Other employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave in the period the related service is rendered.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

(q9)  Income Taxes:

Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit.
On 31 January 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance announced the introduction of Corporate Tax. In relation to
this, on 9 December 2022, the UAE published Federal Decree-Law No.47 of 2022 on the taxation of

L
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Corporations and Businesses. This Decree-Law shall apply to Tax Periods commencing on or after 1 June
2023. Hence, the corporate tax applicable for the company effective from 1st April 2024.

Deferred tax is recognized, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax base of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

(r) Earnings Per Share:

Basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year attributable to
the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(s) Foreign Currency transactions:

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of initial
transactions. :

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they arise except for:

] exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

. Exchange differences relating to qualifying effective cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges in foreign operations which are recognised in OCI.

(t) Foreign operations:

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition are translated into AED, the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into AED at the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the
date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity (as exchange
differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation), except to the extent that the
exchange differences are allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, Significant influence or
joint control is lost, the cumulative amount of exchange differences related to that foreign operation
recognized in OCI is reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. If the
Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is re-allocated to NCI. When the Group disposes of only a part of its interest in an
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associate or a joint venture while retaining Significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

{u) Financial Instruments:

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and ancillary costs related to borrowings) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the tenure of the
financial assets or financial liabilities.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial Assets

The Company dassifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”) or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of

following:
. the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
u the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised Cost:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

. the financial asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

In case of financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost, any interest income, foreign exchange
gains or losses and impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair Value through OCI:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions
are met:

] the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through OCI.

For financial assets at FVTPL, net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent
to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets, in
which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following
the change in the business model.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities’.
Financial Liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is a derivative
(except for effective hedge) or are designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL.

Gains or Losses, including any interest expense on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Other Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a
shorter period, to the amortised cost on initial recognition.

Interest expense (based on the effective interest method), foreign exchange gains and losses, and any gain
or loss on de-recognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than
financials assets in FVTPL category. For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the
Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the
reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased Significantly since its initial recognition.
The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset
increases Significantly since its initial recognition.

The Company’s trade receivables do not contain Significant financing component and as per simplified
approach, loss allowances on trade receivables are measured using provision matrix at an amount equal to
life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.-
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De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and recognises an associated liability for amounts it has to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities

Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities are disclosed in financial statements in accordance with Ind AS 109,
Financial Instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either
to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(v) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits
with banks that are readily convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value
and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

(w) Financial liabilities and equity instruments:

" Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

y Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds
received.

() Derivative financial instruments:

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts, interest
rate swaps and Cross currency swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate, foreign»ex'change rate risks and
commodity prices. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately excluding derivatives designated as cash flow hedge.

(y) Hedge accounting:

The Company designates certain hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and commodity price risk as cash flow hedges. At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging instrument is
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognised in OCI and accumulated under equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity relating to effective portion as described
above are reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects the
Statement of Profit or Loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged
forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains
and losses are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-finandial
asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,
or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in OCI and
accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised ‘when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(2) Segment Reporting: Identification of Segments:

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available.
Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business
segments and geographic segments.

(aa) Goodwill:
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
(bb) Business Combination:

The Company applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration
transferred by the Company to obtain control of a business is calculated as the sum of the fair values of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Company as at the acquisition
date i.e. date on which it obtains control of the acquiree which includes the fair value of any asset or liability
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arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as incurred, except to the extent related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values on acquisition-date.

Intangible Assets acquired in a Business Combination and recognised separately from Goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible Assets acquired in a Business Combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. Such goodwill is tested annually for impairment. If the fair value of the net
assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the excess is termed as bargain
purchase.

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognizing a gain in respect thereof, the Company determines whether
there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for dlassifying the business combination as a bargain
purchase thereafter, the Company reassesses whether it has correctly identified all the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed and recognises any additional assets or liabilities that are so identified, any gain thereafter
is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as Capital Reserve. If there does not exist clear evidence of
the underlying reasons for classifying the Business combination as a bargain purchase, the Company
recognises the gain, after reassessing and reviéwing, directly in equity as Capital Reserve.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or financial liability. Amount classified as financial
liability are subsequently re-measured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in statement of
profit and loss. ¢

(ab) Discontinued Operations:

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cashfiows of which can
be clearly distinguished from those of the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations and

= Is a part of single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations; or
3 Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative Statement of Profit and Loss is
represented as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

Note 1(B) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods. ]
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(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting policies:

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most Significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

0] Classification of Lease Ind AS 116:

Ind AS 116 Leases requires a lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The
Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on lease by lease basis and thereby assesses
whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In
evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any Significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of the
underlying lease to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumstances. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

{(b) - Key assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a Significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

(i) Useful Lives of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the
economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically
and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the
remaining useful life of the assets.

(i) Impairment of Assets:

The Company reviews its carrying value of assets annually where there is an indication of impairment by
estimating the future economic benefits from using such assets if the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

(iii)  Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is requiréd in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
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(iv) Defined benefit plans:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

(v) Share-based payments:

The Company measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using Binomial tree model to
determine the fair value of the liability incurred on the grant date. Estimating fair value for share-based
payment transactions requires determination of the most approprlate valuation model, which is dependent on
the terms and conditions of the grant.

This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are
disclosed in Note 46. ‘

35) Principles of Consolidation:

These Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) are prepared on the following basis in accordance with Ind AS
on “Consolidated Financial Statements” (Ind AS - 110), and “Disclosure of interests in other entities” (Ind AS
— 112), specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

O] Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the company. The company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date on which controls commences until the date on which control ceases.

(ii) Non-controlling interest (NCI)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of
acquisition. Changes in the company’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions.

(iii)  Loss of control

When the company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is
measured at fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in prof it or loss.

(iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

The financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries used in the consolidation procedure are drawn
upto the same reporting dates i.e. March 31, 2024.

The Consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Intra- company balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group
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transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. The Company follows uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are comprised of the financial statements of the members of the
Group as under:

Name of the Company Principal % Shareholding and
Place of Voting Power
‘Business
As at As at

31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23

(A) Subsidiary Companies:

i) Arabian Cement Industry L.L.C.$ U.A.E 100% 100%$
ii} Star Cement Co. L.L.C., RAK $ U.AE 100% 100%%$
iii) Star Cement Co. L.L.C., Dubai $ UAE 100% 100%$
iv) Al Nakhla Crusher Co. L.L.C. $ U.A.E 100% 100%$

v) UltraTech Cement Bahrain Co. WLL ( Formerly

i 0, g,

known as Arabian Gulf Cement Co. WLL)# Ealiali o0 0%
vi) Star Super Cement Industries LLC (SSCILLC)@ UAE 100% 100%
vii) Binani Cement (Tanzania) Limited* ' Tanzania 100% 100%
viii) BC Tradelink Limited., Tanzania* Tanzania 100% 100%
iX) Binani Cement (Uganda) Limited* Uganda 100% 100%
X) Dugm Cement Project International LLC, Oman o : G

(w.e.f January 29,2023) IS 40 R
(B) Associates:
i) Ras Al Khaimah Co. For White Cement And Construction UAE 99.79% 29.79%

Materials PSC (w.e.f. April 15,2022)

$ 51% held by nominee as required by local law for beneficial interest of the Company till July 20, 2022.

@ 51% held by nominee as required by local law for beneficial interest of the company

# 1 shares held by nominee for the beneficial interest of the company (to comply with minimum no. of
shareholders)

* Wholly owned subsidiary of SSCILLC. These are classified as asset held for disposal.

Notes on Accounts of the financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries are set out in their
respective financial statements.

36) Goodwill on Consolidation: Goodwill represents the difference between the Company’s share in the
net worth of subsidiaries and the cost of acquisition at each point of time of making the investment in the
subsidiaries. For this purpose, the Company’s share of net worth is determined on the basis of the latest
financial statements prior to the acquisition after making necessary adjustments for material events between
the date of such financial statements and the date of respective acquisition.

The Group has goodwill of INR 1.036.93 Crores as on March 31, 2024 which represents goodwill acquired
through business combination and allocated to Cash Generating Unit ("CGU"). Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if indicators of impairment exist. Potential impairment is identified by
comparing the recoverable value of CGU to its carrying value.

The Group estimates recoverable amount of the CGU using a value-in-use calculation. The key assumptions
used in the value-in-use calculation include estimated future cash flows for five years, industry trend, growth
rates and weighted average cost of capital.

Based on our impairment testing, the recoverable amount of the CGU ex‘ceeds its cérrying amount including
goodwill. Therefore, no impairment loss was recognized during the year ended March 31, 2024. Sensitivity
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analysis with 1% change in growth rate and weighted average cost of capital also indicates that no
impairment required on carrying amount of goodwill.

37)  Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for) (Ind AS 37):
INR Crores.
a) | Claims not acknowledged as debts Mar-24 Mar-23
i) | Others 2.20 2.17
38) Capital and other commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for (net of advances)
INR 13.96 Crores (previous year INR 0.00 Crores).

39) Acquisition of Dugm Cement Projects International LLC

A. The Company has entered into Share Sale and Purchase Agreement on 29th January, 2023 with Seven
Seas Company LLC and His Highness Al Sayyid Shihab Tariq Taimur Al Said for acquisition of 70% equity
share of Dugm Cement Projects International LLC Located in Oman. The Company is mainly in the
business of mining and extracting of limestone. The acquisition provides the Company to secure raw
materials for growing requirement of India Operations and create value for shareholders.

B. Fair value of the consideration transferred:

As per the Ind AS 103 - Business combinations, purchase consideration has been allocated on the basis of
fair valuation determined by an independent valuer.

Total enterprise value works out to INR 159.47 Crores. The effective purchase cohsideration of INR
111.62 Crores.

The Fair value of identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities assumed as on the acquisition date are as

A/H'

under:

Particulars INR Crores.

Capital Work in Progress 11.30

Mining Rights 148.16

Cash and Bank 0.04

Total Assets 159.50

Other Current liabilities 0.04

Fair Value of Assets 159.46

C. Amount Recognised as goodwill:

Particulars a INR Crores.

Fair value of consideration (70%) 111.62

Total Enterprise Value 159.47

Less: Fair value of net assets acquired 159.46
| Goodwill (INR 68,526.46) 0.01

D. Revenue and profit / (io_ss) for the entity for the year ended 315t March 2024 is INR NIL, as the entity has

not yet started it's commercial operations.
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40) Employee Benefits (Ind AS 19):
(A) Defined Benefit Plans:
(a) Gratuity:

The gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee’s service and last drawn salary at the time of
leaving the services of the Company and is in accordance with the Rules of the Company for payment of

gratuity.

Inherent Risk

The plan is defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks
pertaining to the plan. In particular, this exposes the Company to actuarial risk such as adverse salary growth,
change in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan assets. This may result in an increase
in cost of providing these benefits to employee in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature the plan is
not subject to any longevity risks.

in INR Crores
As at
As at
March 31
SL | Particulars 2024 ' blanen 51,2003
Gratuity Gratuity
(Others) (Others)
Change in defined benefit obligation
(i) | Balance at the beginning of the year 25.31 27.76
Related to discontinued operations/Trf on Acquisition - -
Adjustment of: - .
Current Service Cost 2.42 2.80
Past Service cost - - (1.47)
Interest Cost 1.14 0.89
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in Other Comprehensive . )
Income:
- Change in Financial Assumptions (0.52) (3.81)
- Change in Demographic Assumptions - 5
- Experience Changes- 1.28 (0.22)
-Exchange rate variances 0.40 2.23
Benefits Paid (2.07) (2.87)
Balance at the end of the year 27.96 25.31
(ii) | Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation (27.96) (25.31)
Net Asset / (Liability) in the Balance Sheet (27.96) (25.31)
.\ | Expenses recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
(iii) i -
Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 2.42 2.80
Past Service cost - (1.47)
Interest Cost 1.14 0.89
Related to discontinued operations - =
Total Expense 3.56 2.22
(iv) Re-me_:asurements recognised in Other Comprehensive
'~ | Income (OCI): :
Changes in Financial Assumptions (0.52) (3.81)
Change in Demographic Assumptions - =
Experience Adjustments ' 1.28 (0.22)

Related to discontinued operations
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As at As at
March 31,
SL | Particulars 2024 Harsmoi; 2023
Gratuity Gratuity
(Others) {Others)
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 0.76 (4.03)
(OCI):
(v) | Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Within the next 12 months 3.44 3.86
Between 1 and 5 years 6.83 5.17
Between 5 and 10 years 11.02 10.35
10 Years and above 24.22 22.52
Sensitivity analysis for Significant assumptions: *
Increase/(Decrease) on present value of defined
benefits obligation at the end of the year
1% increase in discount rate (2.10) (1.94)
1% decrease in discount rate 241 2.22
1% increase in salary escalation rate 2.07 1.90
1% decrease in salary escalation rate (2.03) (1.84)
1% increase in employee turnover rate 0.51 0.44
1% decrease in employee turnover rate (0.57) (0.49)
(vi) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of
total plan
Insurer Managed Funds
Total
vii)| Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate (p.a.) 4.55%-7.14% | 4.44%-5.91%
Turnover Rate 2.85%-3.15% 2.00%-3.15%
) - UK Mortality
. UK Mortality
Mortality tables Table AM92 [UK] Table AM92
[UK]
Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 2.50%-3.00% | 2.50%-3.00%
Retirement age :
Management - 60 60
Non-Management- 58 58
(viii] Weighted Average duration of Defined benefit 6.09-11.32 6.37-11.66
1 obligation

* These Sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation
and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no

changes from the previous periods in the methods and assum

analyses.

(ix) Salary Escalation Rate:

The estimates of future salary increases are con
other relevant factors.

ptions used in preparing the sensitivity

sidered taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and

(A) Amount recognised as an expense in respect of Compensated Absences is INR 0.48 Crores. (Previous
Year INR 1.18 Crores.)
(B) Amount recognised as expense for other long term employee benefits is INR 3.56 Crores. (Previous
Year INR 2.22 Crores)

kbE
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41) Operating Segments (Ind AS 108):

The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of cement and cement related products. As per Ind AS
108 “Operating Segments”, the Company has only one reportable segment.

The Company revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and
information about its non-current assets by location of assets are detailed below.

Amount in INR Crores

Revengz:::nn:;:ternal Non-Current Assets
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended As at As at
31-March-24 | 31-March-23 31-March-24 31-March-23
UAE (Country of Domicile) 1746.05 1,406.03 3,260.46 4,019.00
Others 246.42 300.06 258.50 265.10
Total 1,992.47 1,706.09 3,518.96 4,284.10

42) Related party disclosures (Ind AS 24):

Names of Related Parties with whom transactions were carried out during the period:

Name of Related Party

Relationship

UltraTech Cement Limited

Ultimate Holding Company

PT UltraTech Cement Indonesia

Fellow Subsidiary

UltraTech Cement Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd.

Holding Company " s Subsidiary

Ras Al Khaimah Co. For White Cement And Construction
Materials PSC (w.e.f April 15,2022) i

Associate

Modern Block Factory Establishment

Associate’s Subsidiary

Ras Al Khaimah Lime Co. Noora LLC

Associate’s Subsidiary

Mr. Nilesh Garg

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Ayman Attia

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

a) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of

business:

Amount in INR Crores

Nature of Transactions/ Relationship

Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Sale of Goods:

UltraTech Cement Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd.

2.51 28.39

Ras Al Khaimah Co. For White Cement And Construction
Materials PSC

- | 0.02

Purchase of Goodsﬁ

Ras Al Khaimah Co. For White Cement And Construction
Materials PSC

0.02 .

Interest Expense:

Uitra Tech Cement Limited

= 29.62

Dividend Paid

Ultra Tech Cement Limited

4.59 5.70

Dividend Received

Ras Al Khaimah Co. For White Cement And Construction
Materials PSC )

= 0.30

Repayment of Preference Share Capital:

1,159.14 o
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Nature of Transactions/ Relationship

Year Ended

Year Ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Ultra Tech Cement Limited

Rendering of Services:

Ultra Tech Cement Limited 1.00 0.22
Receiving of Services:

Ultra Tech Cement Limited 6.69 6.04
KMP 3.60 4.79

b) Outstanding balances:

Nature of Transactions/ Relationship

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Short Term Borrowings

Non-Convertible Redeemable preference shares:

Ultra Tech Cement Limited - 1,150.44
Other Financial Liabilities:

Ultra Tech Cement Limited = 6.11
PT UltraTech Cement Indonesia - -
Dividend:

Ultra Tech Cement Limited - 1.28
Advance from Customers:

UltraTech Cement Lanka (Pvt) Ltd. 0.27 2.75

c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Company:

Amount in INR Crores

_ Year Ended
Nature of Transactions/ Relationship March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Short-term employee benefits 0.62 0.85
Other Long term benefits - 1.10
Share based payment 1.89 0.38
Total 2.50 2.32

Terms and Conditions of transactions with Related Parties:

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end of the
period are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees
provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. .

43) Earnings per Share (EPS) (Ind AS 33):

Amount in INR Crores

Particulars

Year Ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

(A) BasicEPS:

(i) Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders from

Continuing Operations 143.00 43.15
(i) Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders from 3 i
Discontinued Operations
Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (i+ii) 143.00 43.15
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. Year Ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ehnc))s\/\;e@hted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 50,611,952 | 42,824,302
Basic EPS-Continuing operations(in AED) (i)/(iii) 28.25 10.08
Basic EPS-Discontinued operations(in AED) (ii)/(iii) - -
Basic EPS-Continuing & Discontinued operations(in
AED) (i+ii)/(iii) 28.25 10.08
(B) Diluted EPS:
(i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares
Outstanding(Nos.) 50,611,952 42,824,302
(i) Weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding
for calculation of Dilutive EPS (Nos.) 50/611,952 d2,R2d;300
([i)i;l)uted EPS-Continuing operations(in AED) (A)(i)/ 28.95 10.08
Diluted EPS-Discontinued operations(in AED) (A)(i)/ } )
(iii)
Diluted EPS-Continuing & Discontinued operations(in
AED) (A)(i)/ (i) 28.25 10.08

44) Summarised Financial information of individually immaterial Associates:
Ras Al Khaimah Co. For White Cement And Construction Material s PSC

‘ Amount in INR Crores

Year Ended
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit or Loss from continuing Operations 77.19 11.81

Post-tax Profit or Loss from discontinued Operations - -

Other Comprehensive Income - 5.24 (81.91)

Total Comprehensive Income 82.43 (70.10)

45)  Auditors’ remuneration including remuneration for Subsidiaries’ Auditors (excluding VAT)
and expenses:
Amount in INR Crores

Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars

(a) Statutory Auditors: : ;
Audit fees (including quarterly Limited Review) 1.50 1.28
Fees for other services - B
Tax audit fees - 3

46) Employee Sha_re based payment

The company has granted Nil options (inciuding Restricted Stock units) to its eligible employees in various
ESOS Scheme, details are as under:
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(A) Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS 2018) including Stock options, Restricted Stock Units (RSU) and

Stock Appreciation Rights Scheme—-2018 (SAR 2018) including Stock options and RSU

Tranche I (SAR, 2018)

Tranche II (SAR, 2018)

Particulars RSU Stock RSU-FY22 | RSU-FY21 Stock
Options Plan Plan Options
Nos. of Options 1,084 3,924 159 320 1,398
Graded Graded
Gradgd Vesting - Vesting -
Ves,tmg = 50% every 33% every
25% every year after year after 1
vearafter1 | 14904, on completion | year from
v 100% on year from 22.07.2024 f1 date of
esting Plan R o SlfERT e o
18.12.2021 date of grant, from date of | grant
sub;ecﬁ to grant subject to
achieving achieving
performance performance
targets targets

3 Years from

3 Years from

3 Years from

3 Years from

3 Years from

Exercise Period the date of the date of the date of | the date of the date of
Vesting Vesting Vesting Vesting Vesting

Grant Date 18.12.2018 18.12.2018 | 22.07.2021 22.07.2021 22.07.2021

Exercise Price

(in INR per share) 10 4,009.30 10 10 7,424.70

Fair Value on the

date of Grant of

Option (in INR per 3,946 1,539 6,837 7,160 1,387

share)

Method of

Settlement Cash Cash Cash Cash Cash

. Tranche III (SAR, 2018)
Particulars =
RSU Stock Options
Nos. of Options 793 2,001

Vesting Plan

100% on 22.07.2025

Graded Vesting - 33%
every year after 1 year
from date of grant,
subject to achieving
performance targets

Exercise Period

3 Years from the

3 Years from the date of

(in INR per share)

date of Vesting Vesting
Grant Date 22.07.2022 22.07.2022
Exercise Price 10 6,130.70

2t
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S — Tranche III (SAR, 2018)
RSU Stock Options
Fair Value on the date of Grant of Option (in INR
per share) 7,536 2,774
Method of Settlement Cash Cash

(8) Movement of Options Granted including RSU along with weighted average exercise price
(WAEP):

The Company has granted Nil SAR to its employees during the previous year.
The weighted average remaining contractual life for SAR is 2.06 years. (March 31, 2023: 2.66 years)

The exercise price for outstanding options and SAR is INR 10 per share for RSU’s and ranges from INR 2,318
per share to INR 7,424.70 per share for options.

(¢) Fair Valuation:

The fair value of options has been done by an independent firm of Chartered Accountants on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes Model/ Binomial Model.

The Key assumptions in the Black-Scholes Model for calcutating fair value as on the date of grant:

(a) For ESOS — SAR 2018:

1 | Risk Free Rate 5.31% (Tranche II) ; 7.15% (Tranche III)
Option Life (a)  For Options - Vesting period (1 Year) + Average of exercise
period

(b)  For RSU under FY21 plan - Vesting period (2 Years) +
Average of exercise for other RSU-Vesting period (3 years)+
Average of exercise period

3 | Expected Volatility* Tranche-II: 0.25, , Tranche-11I: 0.26

4 | Dividend Yield Tranche -1I: 0.19%, Tranche-III: 0.26%

The Key assumptions in the Binomial Tree Model for calculating fair value as on the date of grant:

(b) For ESOS — SAR 2018:

1 | Risk Free Rate 7.47% (Tranche 1)
Option Life (@) For Options - Vesting period (1 Year) + Average of exercise
period
(b) For RSU-Vesting period (3 years) + Average of exercise
period B

3 | Expected Volatility* Tranche-1: 0.25
4 | Dividend Yield Tranche -I: 0.46%

*Expected volatility on the Company’s stock price on National Stock Exchange based on the data
commensurate with the expected life of the options/RSU’s up to the date of grant.

kb

kB
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(p) Details of Liabilities arising from Company’s cash settled share based payment transactions:
Amount in INR Crores

47)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
| Other non-current liabilities 0.15 0.60
Other current liabilities 0.11 0.58
Total carrying amount of liabilities 0.26 1.18

Jincluded. in Level 3.

A) Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Ind AS — 107):
Amount in INR Crores
As at As at
i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars = - = 2
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value

Financial Assets at Amortised cost
Investments (non-current) 853.36 853.36 816.23 816.23
Trade receivables 768.13 768.13 627.96 627.96
Loans 15.45 15.45 755.08 755.08
Cash and bank balances 0.95 0.95 73.40 73.40
Other Financial Asset 914.03 914.03 156.38 156.38
Fair Value Hedging Instruments:
Derivative assets 36.90 36.90 0.90 0.90
Total 2,588.82 | 2,588.82 | 2,429.95 | 2,429.95
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Foreign Currency Borrowings 834.21 834.21 821.74 821.74
Cash Credits/Working Capital Borrowing 1376.85 | 1376.85 1479.14 1479.14
Trade payables 343.44 343.44 454,79 454.79
Other financial liabilities 131.56 131.56 63.68 63.68
Fair Value Hedging Instruments:
Derivative Liability - 5 B i =
Total 2,686.06 | 2,686.06 | 2,819.35| 2,819.35

B) Fair Value Measurements (Ind AS 113):

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could -
be exchanged in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at measurement date
under the current market condition regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
other valuation technigues.

The company has established the following fair value hierarchy that categorises the values into 3 levels. The
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value of financial instruments are:

Level 1: This hierarchy uses quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (For example traded
bonds, over the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates. The mutual fund units
are valued using the closing Net Asset Value. If all Significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the Significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is

Stamped for the Purpose
of Identification only




UltraTech Cement Middle East Investments Limited And Its Subsidiaries
Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

in INR Crores

Fair Value
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Fair value Hedge Instruments
Derivative Assets — Level 2 ' 36.90 0.90

The management assessed that the carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans,
trade payables, cash credits, commercial papers and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their
fair values largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a) The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on observable yield curves and an appropriate discount factor.

(b)  The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow
analysis. The discount rates used is based on management estimates.

Financial Risk Management Objectives (Ind AS 107):

The company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprises of borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations. The
company’s principal financial assets other than derivatives include trade and other receivables, investments
and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. Company’s overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the company. The company uses derivative financial instruments such
as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts, principal only swaps, Cross currency
swaps that are entered to hedge foreign currency risk exposure, interest rate swaps to hedge variable
interest rate exposure and commodity fixed price swaps to hedge commodity price risks. Derivatives are used
exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments.

The several sources of risks which the company is exposed to and their management are given

below: '
Risk Exposure Arising From Measurement | Management
Committed commercial | Cash Flow | (a)Forward foreign exchange
Foreign Currency tr.ansagtion , e Fore(.:a.s.ting contrach )
Risk Financial asset and Liabilities | Sensitivity (b)Foreign currency options
not denominated in AED &USD | Analysis (c)Principal only/Currency
swaps
long Term Borrowings at | Sensitivity (a)Interest Rate swaps
Interest Rate Risk | V2"12DIe rates Analysis, '
Interest rate
movements
Trade receivables, | Ageing analysis, | (a)Credit limit &  credit
Credit Risk Inve;t.menFs, Derivative | Credit Rating worthine;s monitoring,
financial instruments, Loans (b)Criteria based approval
and Bank balances process _
Borrowings, Other Liabilities | Rolling cash | (a)Adequate unused credit
Liquidity Risks and liquid investments flow forecasts lines and borrowing facilities
. Broker Quotes : ;
Commodity Price Movement in prices of | Sensitivity (a)Commodity Fixed Prices

kb
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Risk Exposure Arising From Measurement | Management
Risk commodities mainly Imported | Analysis, {b)Swaps/Options
Thermal Coal and pet coke Commodity

price tracking

I) Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a
change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of
changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices and other
market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk
sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables and
borrowings.

A) Foreign Currency Risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign
currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the foreign currency borrowings, import of fuels, raw
Materials & spare parts, capital expenditure, exports of cement and the Company’s net investments in foreign
subsidiaries.

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of
those derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure. '

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions. The Company

follows established risk management policies and standard operating procedures. It uses derivative
instruments like foreign currency swaps and forwards to hedge exposure to foreign currency risk.

Amount in INR Crores

Outstanding foreign currency exposure as at : As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings , 2,210.66 2300.88

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the company’s short term borrowing (excluding commercial paper) with
floating interest rates. For all long-term borrowings with floating rates, the risk of variation in the interest
rates is mitigated through interest rate swaps. The company constantly monitors the credit markets and
rebalances its financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost.

Interest rate exposure:
Amount in INR Crores

Total Floating Fixed rate Non-Interest

Particulars borrowings rate borrowings bearing
borrowings borrowings

AED ' - 9 & .-
uUsb .2,211,06 2,211.06 | A £ Flk
Total as at March 31, 2024 2,211.06 2,211.06 - -
AED ’ = = . 5
usD v : 2,300.88 1,150.44 1,150.44 =
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Total Floating Fixed rate Non-Interest
Particulars borrowings rate borrowings bearing
borrowings borrowings
Totai as at March 31, 2023 2,300.88 1,150.44 1,150.44 | E

Note: Interest rate risk hedged for FCY borrowings has been shown under Fixed Rate borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivities for unhedged exposure (impact of increase in 100 bps):
Amount in INR Crores
As aj As at
March 31, 202 March 31, 2023
AED -| R
Note: If the rate is decreased by 100 bps profit will increase by an equal amount

Particulars

Interest rate sensitivity has been calculated assuming the borrowings outstanding at reporting date have
been outstanding for the entire reporting period. Further, the calculations for the unhedged floating rate
borrowing have been done on the notional value of the foreign currency (excluding the revaluation).

Forward Exchange and Interest Rates Swaps Contracts:

(A) Derivatives for hedging interest rates, outstanding are as under:
. Amount in INR Crores
. As at As at Cross
Particulars Purpose | Currency March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 Currency
Other Derivatives:
Interest Rate Swap (IRS) ECB* usb 2,002.11 410.87 AED

*External Commercial Borrowings

Interest rates outstanding receive fixed and pay floating contracts:
Amount in INR Crores

Particulars As at Average contracted Nominal Fair Value
fixed interest rates Amount Assets
(Liabilities)
Less than 1 year March 31,2024 = - -
1to 5 year March 31,2024 4.68% 2,002.11 36.90
Less than 1 year March 31,2023 | - - -
1to 5 year March 31,2023 3.32% 410.87 0.90

Recognition of gains / (losses) under forward exchange & interest rates swaps contracts
designated under cash flows hedges:
Amount in INR Crores

Particulars As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023
Effective Hedge Ineffective Effective Hedge Ineffective
(OoCI1) Hedge (Profit (0CI) Hedge (Profit
and Loss) and Loss)
(Loss)/Gain 35.72 1.24

IT) Credit Risk Management:

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing/investing activities, including deposits with
banks/Financial Institutions, mutual fund investments, and investments in debt securities, foreign exchange
transactions and financial guarantees. The company has no Significant concentration of credit risk with any
counterparty. ’ ' ‘

A b
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Trade receivables

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy
for each customer and based on the evaluation credit limit of each customer is defined. Wherever the
Company assesses the credit risk as high, the exposure is backed by either bank guarantee / letter of credit
or security deposits.

Total Trade receivables as on March 31, 2024 is INR 768.13 Crores (March 31, 2023 INR 627.96 Crores).
The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. Single largest customer
has total exposure in sales 4.49 % (Previous Year 6.56%) and in receivables 5.77% (Previous Year
5.86%).

As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using
a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting
date wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk.

As per policy the provision for impairment loss is calculated on different buckets based on weighted average
loss rates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experienced over the past 3 years.
Amount in INR Crores

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Opening provision 12.18 62.20
Add: Provided during the year 12.20 -
Less: Utilised during the year - (55.25)
Less : FCTR 0.18 (5.23)
Closing Provision 24.56 12.18

Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equivalent and Bank Deposit

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally low as the
said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions who have been assigned high credit rating
by international and domestic rating agencies.

Credit Risk on Derivative Instruments is generally low as Group enters into the Derivative Contracts with the
reputed Banks and Financial Institutions.

Total Non-current and current investments as on March 31, 2024 is INR 853.36 Crores. (March 31, 2023
INR 816.23 Crores.)

Financial Guarantees:

The Company has net exposure of INR 8.34 Crores, (Previous Year INR 8.22 Crores).

Liquidity risk management:

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time
or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations
when due. The company’s treasury team is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.
Management monitors the company’s liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash
flows.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities and
investments held for managing the risk at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.

3 Amount in INR Crores
Less than 1to5 More than

As at March 31, 2024 1 year Years Syears Total

1425.55 962.69 | - 2388.24

Borrowings (includirig current maturities of
long-term debts)
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As at March 31, 2024 Lessthan | 1to5 | More than Total
1 year Years Syears
Trade payables 343.45 - - 343.45
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 24.82 - - 24.82
Other financial liabilities 14.75 124.79 - 139.54
Derivative Liability - - - -
Amount in INR Crores
As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1to5 More than Total
! N e 1 year Years Syears
Borrowings (including current maturities of
long-term debts) 1489.49 987.42 - 2476.91
Trade payables 454.79 = = 454.79
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 2.56 - - 2.56
Other financial liabilities 20.29 136.84 - 157.14
Derivative Liability - - - -

48) Capital Management (Ind AS 1):

Company’s objectives when managing capital are to (a) maximise shareholder value and provide benefits for
other stakeholders and (b) maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
- For the purposes of the Company’s capital -management, capital includes issued capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holdersmonitors capital using debt-equity
ratio, which is total debt less related fixed deposits divided by total equity.

Amount in INR Crores

Particulars _ As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total Debt 2,211.06 2,300.88
Equity 2,592.96 2,376.03
Liquid Investments and Bank Deposits - 41.08
Debt to Equity (Net) 0.85 .0.95

49) Assets/Disposal Group held for Sale (Ind AS 105):

The company has identified one of the assets “Waste Heat Recovery System” (WHRS) which is not useful
anymore as it is not productive and not giving the desired result. The realizable value after considering the
impairment, scrap and dismantling cost is reclassified as assets for disposal. The company is in the process of
discussion with vendors and contractor and expects the same to be disposed off within the due course.

As regards to the subsidiaries classified as Asset held for disposal.

50) The Company is primarily in the Business of manufacture and sale of cement and cement related
products. The product shelf life being short all sales are made at a point in time and revenue recognised upon
satisfaction of the performance obligations which are typically upon dispatch / delivery. The Company has a
credit evaluation policy based on which the credit limits for the trade receivables are established. The
Company does not give Significant credit period resulting in no Significant financing component.
(A) Reconciliation of revenue recognised from Contract liability:

Amount in INR Crores
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

0.31 4.70

Particulars
Closing Contract liability-Advance from Customers

The Contract liability outstanding at the beginning of the year has been recognised as revenue during the
year ended March 31, 2024. Contract fiability of current year will be recognised as revenue in coming twelve
months.

(B) Reconciliation of revende as per contract price and as recognised in statement of profit

and loss:
b
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Amount in INR Crores

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per Contract price 2,047.30 1,742.81
Less: Discounts and incentives (54.83) (36.73)
Revenue as per statement of profit and loss 1,992.47 1,706.09

51) Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current
year classification / disclosure.

Signatures to Note ‘1’ to ‘51° For and on behalf of the Board

In terms of our reports attached.

22 IPR 2024 Craxgy

Dubai, Directogf Director

ﬁ'}ﬁv
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ASSETS

Non-Current Assets:
Investment

Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets:
Other Receivables
Cash and bank balances

BHUMI RESOURCES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore - ACRA No.: 200919951C)
(Certified Management Accounts)

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD 1st April 2023 to 31st Mar 2024

(Loss)/profit for the financial year, representing
total comprehensive income for the financial

year.

Total Assets

EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Other payable & Accruals

Total Current Liabilities
Net Current Assets
Total Liability

Net Assets

Equity
Share Capital

Accumulated Gain/(Loss)
Foreign Exchange Translation Reserve

Current Gain/(Loss)

Equity attributable to owners of the company

Total Equity & Liabilities

As on 31st Mar 2024 As on 31st Mar 2023
NOTE usob usb

1 1,00,000 1,00,000
1,00,000 1,00,000
2 . .
3 50,131 50,723
50,131 50,723
1,50,131 1,50,723
4 16,028 9,915
16,028 9,915
34,103 40,808
16,028 9,915
1,34,103 1,40,808
S 1,51,00,000 1,51,00,000
(1,49,59,192) (1,48,85,994)
(244) J
(6,461) (73,198)
1,34,103 1,40,808
1,50,131 1,50,723

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

BHUMI RESOURCES (SINGA

i
Mani mar Tibrewal
Directbr

Date: 10th Apr'24

RE) PTE. LTD

Shyam Zanwa
Director




BHUMI RESOURCES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore - ACRA No.: 2009-19951C)
(Certified Management Accounts)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
1st April 2023 to 31st Mar 2024

01.04.2023 - 31.03.2024 01.04.2022 - 31.03.2023
NOTE usb usD

Other Income 6 140
Other expenses 7 (6,461) {73,339)
(Loss)/Profit before Tax (6,461) (73,198)
Income Tax expense - -
{Loss)/profit for the financial year, representing total
comprehensive income for the financial year. {6,461) (73,198)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
BHUMI RESOURCES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD

Tobwf
mar Tibrewal Shyam Zanwar

irector Director
Date: 10th Apr'24




BHUMI RESOURCES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD

{Incorparated in the Republic of Singapore - ACRA No.: 200919951()

(Certified Management Accounts)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

NOTE No

1 INVESTMENT
Pt. Persada Makmur Jaya {Investment)
Pt. Anggana Energy Resources {Investment)

2 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Murari Holdings Ltd

Less:
Provision far debit balance written off {Liability)
Net Other Receiveables

3 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash at Banks
State Bank of India (USD A/C)
State Bank of India (SGD A/C)

4 PAYABLES & ACCRUALS
Expenses Payable

5 SHARE CAPITAL
Equity Share Capital

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
BHUMI RESOURCES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD

o,

nish Kumar Tibrewal Shyam Zanwar
Director Director
Date: 10th Apr'24

As on 31st Mar 2024 As on 31st Mar 2023
uso usb

90,000 90,000
10,000 10,000
1,00,000 1,00,000
76,17,000 76,17,000
76,17,000 76,17,000
76,17,000 76,17,000
33,147 43,297
16,985 7,426
50,131 50,723
16,028 9,915
16,028 9,915
1,51,00,000 1,51,00,000
1,51,00,000 1,51,00,000




BHUMI RESOURCES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD
{Incorporated in the Repubiic of Singapore - ACRA No.: 200919951C)
(Certified Management Accounts)

Notes to Profit & Loss Account 01.04.2023 - 31.03.2024 01.04.2022 - 31.03.2023
usb usb

6 OTHER INCOME
Povision write back H
Exchange Gain 140

- 140

7 OTHER EXPENSES

Audit Fees 1,720 2377
Exchange Loss -
Legal & Professional Fees 658 646
Miscellaneous Exps. - 63,000
Secretarial Fee Exps 3,735 7,080
Bank Charges 348 235
6,461 73,339

For and on behaif of Board of Directors

BHUMI RESO":;ES {SINGAPOR TE. LTD
w'l\ Y o
Menist Kumar Tibrewal Shyam Zanwar

Dirgctor Director
Date: 10th Apr'24




BHUMI RESOURCES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore - ACRA No.: 200919951C)

(Certified Management Accounts)

ALL AMOUNTS IN USD

TRIAL BALANCE AS AT 31.03.2024

01.04.2023 - 31.03.2024

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS DEBIT CREDIT
Equity Share Capital - 1,51,00,000
Expenses Payable - 16,028
Murari Holdings Ltd 76,17,000 -
Profit & Loss A/C 1,49,59,192 -
Provision for Taxation - -
Pt. Anggana Energy Resources (Investment) 10,000 -
Pt. Persada Makmur Jaya (Investment) 90,000 -
State Bank of India (USD A/C) 33,147 -
State Bank of India (SGD A/C) 16,985 -
Provision for debit balance written off (Liability) B 76,17,000
PROFIT/LOSS ITEMS

Audit Fees 1,720

Bank Charges 348

Exchange Gain/Loss 244

Legal & Professional Expenses 658 =
Miscellaneous Exps. -

Secretarial Fee Exps 3,735

TOTAL 2,27,33,028 2,27,33,028

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
BHUMI RESOURCES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD

Pt
Manish Km Sh%

Directo Director
Date: 10th Apr'24




BHUMI RESOURCES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD.
01.04.2023 - 31.03.2024
(Related Party Transactions )

Date Particulars

Debit (USD)

Credit{USD)

ULTRATECH NATHDWARA CEMENT LTD.

Share Capital
1-Apr-23 Opening Balance
31-Mar-24 Closing Balance

PT ANGGANA RESOURCES

1,51,00,000

1,51,00,000

1,51,00,000

1,51,00,000

a) Investment (Unguoted equity shares at cost

1-Apr-23 Opening balance
31-Mar-24 Closing Balance

b) Misc.Expenses

PT PARSADA MAKMUR JAYA

10,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

a) Investment (Unquoted equity shares at cost

1-Apr-23 Opening balance
31-Mar-24 Clasing Balance

b) Misc.Expenses

i

anish Kumar Tibrewal Shyam Zanwar.

Director Director
Date: 10th Apr'24

90,000

90,000

90,000

90,000




Letein Valley Cement Limited

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

% in Lakhs
As at

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2024

ASSETS -

Non-Current Assets | 5
Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Capital Work-in-Progress 38.45

S 38.45
Financial Assets: |EI TR

Other Financial Assets -
Other Non-Current Assets B B 1 - 396.00

Total Non-Current Assets I 434.45

Current Assets ; e
Financial Assets S B

~Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 _ | 191.55
Other Financial Assets E
191.55
Other Current Assets B B =

Total Current Assets 191.55

TOTAL ASSETS 626.00

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - - B B _om

EQUITY B
Equity Share Capital 3(a) 62600
Other Equity 3 (b) -

- B - 626.00

Current Liabilities _

Financial Liabilities B - i
Trade Payables
Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro _
. cac | e B
Other Financial Liabilities ¥
Total Current Liabilities -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 626.00
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ao on, ﬁ“;ﬁg
)
K. C. Jhanwar Atul Daga
Director Director
DIN: 01743559 DIN: 06416619
Mumbai: 15th April, 2024 K

Letein Valley Cement Limited



Letein Valley Cement Limited

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

¥ in Lakhs

Particulars

Note No.

Period ended
March 31, 2024

Other Income

TOTAL INCOME (I)

EXPENSES
Other Expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES (II)

Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax Expense (I)-(I1)

Profit before Tax Expense_
Total Tax Expense

Profit for the Year (1IT)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (III+1IV)

Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value ¥ 10 each)
Basic (in ¥)
Diluted (in ¥)

Mumbai: 19th April, 2024

Letein Valley Cement Limited

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N o ‘gpg%

K. C. Jhanwar Atul Daga
Director Director
DIN: 01743559 DIN: 06416619



Letein Valley Cement Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

¥ in Lakhs
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities: Mar 31, 2024
Profit & (Loss) Before tax -
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation -
(Increase)/Decrease in current Assets -
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payable and other Liabilities -
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) -
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Advances & Pre-operative Expes (434.45)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) (434.45)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Shares Issued Amount (Including Premium) 626.00
Net Cash Generated / (Used) from Financing Activities (C) 626.00
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) 191.55
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 191.55

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

K. C. Jhanwar Atul Daga
Director Director
DIN: 01743559 DIN: 06416619

by

Mumbai: 19th April, 2024



Letein Valley Cement Limited
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Tin lacs
Balance as at April 01, 2023 Changes in Equity Share Balance as at March 31, 2024
Capital during the Year
- 626.00 626.00
B. Other Equity
For the year ended March 31, 2024
¥ in lacs
Share Reserves & Surplus
. Application Total Other
Particulars Money Pending Capital Securities Debentu_re General Retained Equity
Allot t Reserve Premium Redemption Reserve @ Earnings
O Reserve g
Balance as at April 01, 2023 - - - - - - -
Profit for the year - - - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income / = 2 - = - o 1
(Loss) for the year
Issue of Shares - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - - - - - - -
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
e
K. C. Jhanwar Atul Daga
Director Director
DIN: 01743559 DIN: 0641661
Mumbai: 19th April, 2024 b"

Harish Cement Limited



NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS: % in Lakhs
particul As at
urbicaiars March 31, 2024
Capital Advances 396.00
396.00
NOTE 2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS o o i
Balance with banks (Current Account) 191.55
191.55

Particulars

NOTE 3 (a)
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
Equity Shares of % 10 each
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid-up
Issued, Sub§crilzed End PaEIy Paid-_up
Equity Shares of 310 each partly paid-up ( % 2.5 gach partly paid up)

(a) Reconciliation of the Shares Outstanding at the beginning and at the end
of the year

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year

Add: Fully paid up equity

Add: Partly paid up equity

Outstanding at the end of the year

(b) Shares held by Holding Company

UltraTech Cement Limited

(c) List of shareholders holding more than 5% of Pa_id_-ui) _Equity Share C_apiEI-
UltraTech Cement Limited

(d) Shares held by Promoters:

As at
March 31, 2024

No. of Shares Amount
5,00,00,000 5,000.00
10,000  1.00
2,50,00,000 625.00
2,50,10,000 626.00
10,000 1.00
2,50,00,000 625.00
2,50,10,000 626.00
~2,50,10,000 626.00
No. of Shares % Holding _
2,50,10,000 ~100%

As at March 31, 2024

Promoter Name
No of Shares %o of total
shares
UltraTech Cement Limited 2,50,10,000 100%
NOTE 3 (b)
OTHER EQUITY
As at
Particulars:
March 31, 2024

Securities Premium
Retained Earnings

Total Other Equity

Mumbai: 15th April, 2024

Letein Valley Cement Limited

Qa DIN: 01743559

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

By

COM oM

\‘————————-——. — A —Eg’

K. C. Jhanwar Atul Daga
Director Director

DIN: 06416619
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